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CORPORATE PROFILE
A LF)

Solomon Systech (International) Limited
and its subsidiaries as a Group is a leading
semiconductor company specializing in the
design, development and sales of integrated
circuits products and system solutions that enable
a wide range of display and touch applications for
smartphones, tablets, TVs/monitors, notebooks
and other smart devices, including wearables,
healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well
as industrial appliances, etc.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited % £ Fft
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Provide the ultimate silicon solution for every
display system
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20" anniversary of Solomon Systech

f PR R AL 20/8 &

Set up of: — Nanjing Technology Center

BRI - (i.e. Solomon Systech (China) Limited)
ﬁeiﬁ?&iﬂ% (B @ FIRHR (hE) BIR
]

— Korea Technology Center

BEEREHL

— Taiwan Technology Center
FRIL & ERHE R

Accredited with ISO14001 Certification
FEISO14001:2 3%

Listed on the Main Board of Hong Kong
Stock Exchange

REBRGHMERL™

Launch of:— e-paper driver controller to drive
the world's 15t e-paper watch
BEHEREEEFHIFENE

FIr4K] - BRBh 4= & 25

— world’s 15t single chip mobile
TFT driver with built-in
capacitive
ﬁﬁ%&ﬁq%%@ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%@b

Launch of the world’s 1t single chip

2D GIGA CSTN LCD driver controller

HE H it 5B B & 2D GIGA CSTN LCDEEE)
25088

Successfully upgrades to 1ISO9001:2000

K I & R IR T £1S09001:2000

Set up of Shenzhen Business & Technology
Center

PR SR I 7 K BB A

Earmarked 10 million™" shipment
ERTEHERNE

Accredited with ISO9001 Certification
Z5XE1SO9001 B 3%
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Launch of the world’s 1t PMOLED TDDI IC

# 23R E % PMOLED TDDI & &

Establishment of Beijing Business &
Technology Center

BE L JE R R B AL

Launch of bistable display driver to drive the
world’s 1t e-paper mobile phone
EHEHEHRENEF R I BBEFTNERE
BRERE) 28

Launch of the world’s 1t MIPI master
bridge chip
R E REMIPIEZE RS NIBES

Chinese Premier Wen Jiabao visits Solomon
Systech’s Hong Kong headquarters
HEAEERREZ2ERAMBMEEBRENSE

Relocation of headquarters to Hong Kong
Science Park
BNEREEERENEE

Launch of the world’s 1%t single chip OLED
driver controller

SR B B & ) OLEDSE Bp 2 ) 238

Establishment of Solomon Systech in Hong
Kon

& P ﬂ&EE%IEEﬁESZfZ

Launch of the world’s 1%t grayscale 32 MUX
LCD driver controller
HE H 5B 82 MUX LCDEE Bf 22 %1/ 28
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OUR NETWORKS R #4%
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NCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

2019 2018

US$ million US$ million

EE-ET EE-E

Revenue SHEZR 108.3 98.1
Gross profit ER 21.3 28.2
Gross margin (%) EFME(%) 19.7 28.7
Net loss BB FE (27.8) (13.8)
Loss per share (US cent) SREE (E4) (1.1) (0.55)
Book-to-bill ratio FTEHEE 1.1 1.0
Total assets BMEE 76.9 107.0
Shareholders’ funds R RES 51.3 79.0
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Committed to Maximizing Shareholder Value HhiEESREREE

Dividend 2
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Technology Promotes
Smart City Development

i} 352 RX i &5 AE Iak

. The Group’s E-Paper technology has been
adopted for use in Electronic Shelf Labels at the

T-Shop & Lab, an unmanned retail shop located
i i at Hong Kong Science Park.

' SENEFRARMENZEANMNT-Shop & Lab
EABERA  BRAREFEREREL -



CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAC

The year 2019 carries profound symbolic significance to Solomon
Systech. Not only did it mark the 20" anniversary of the Group, it
was also a dynamic year filled with challenges. Facing a rapidly
changing and evolving market, the Group has reformulated its
business development strategies and allocated resources during
the reporting period with a view to maintaining its industry leading
position under the competitive business environment.

The Group’s total volume of shipments increased slightly by 4%
to 308.7 million units despite a loss recorded in the 2019 financial
statement.

With intensified trade friction between China and the US,
and uncertainties in the two countries’ trade relations, tariffs
were imposed on certain types of goods including electronic
components. This, inevitably, slowed down the global consumer
electronics market, followed by the pressure risen on the semi-
conductor industry. Since May 2019, the US has raised the tariffs on
certain imported goods from China. Being the factory of the world,
China serves its wide-array of manufacturing clients worldwide. The
aforesaid measure indirectly drove some customers who tapped
into the US market to shift their production bases to other countries
such as Vietnam and Thailand. Some of the Group’s customers also
changed their mass production plants in the reporting period. The
Group has been closely monitored the development of the situation
and adjusted its strategies, as appropriate.

Repositioning and Resources Integration

Despite the uncertainties in the global economy and the less
favorable investment environment during the reporting period as
compared with that of 2018, the Group continued to adhere to the
principle of maintaining a prudent and conservative attitude towards
financial management, striving to improve its operating cash flow
and debt levels.

As the third chief executive officer of the Group since its listing,
| appointed several senior executives with extensive experience
and international perspectives last year. We aimed at optimizing
the organizational structure and work processes of the Group by
leveraging the team’s expertise to introduce innovative thinking
and formulate winning strategies, so as to improve business
management efficiency, enhance the image of the Company and
ultimately earn returns for the shareholders. We restructured the
mobile touch business to align with market direction as well as
reduce ongoing expenses after thorough planning and accurate
valuation, expecting to significantly improve the overall financial
performance by 2020.

/- 3 ‘V \
1T AR B

2019%F HRFINMEMSZERE - ERES
B V20FF bR A MKE - BMSEH—
F-HEMSEBR-—BTE KECEHREH
NEHMBIEBBRER  ARER  EZM
REERFHANERRET - RRAEZFEE
My - EFERE ©

HEASERN2019F M Bk LERGHE - BE
ENESNEMERINEIB.7TEEN -

HEPEXEZERNE  MEESBERRES
WA BOEREREEE T THARNES
B BAUBRMSYEERITESE  2REE
EFMIBHE - XBIH2019F5 8RS E T
TRENERWVENR  PEESERIR &
BERANEFE  LWEFESENNHEER
MENEFEMRANE REFHEREE
it REPAXEEN B0 T F T E L ER
EEIR AKESBIEZEERBER -
REZWR - AEYE -

EFEN BRES
BEXREARBBETHE  KEBRNR
EMER2018F FF > REPETES B A
HEBERTORYEE  RHRASLEMR
SRMEEAT -

Bt ESEE EHURNE=AFTHAER
EFAZRBRTHRASEERKEBRHENS
REEAS HEABEBNEENE  BLE
BASEBIRE  XWEARIHE ST
R EMEAXBEERR  RSQAAKKR
RER/BRTROE - B LBFAGEM
e RMEABRDBEERUNEHSAM
KEdBERX  BER2020F BB HR
BRIBRE °

RFANEARAF




e

» e e )
S b EXFCUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAGE

Tapping into the Mainland Market and
Expanding Business Footprint

Last year Solomon Systech (China) Limited (“Solomon Systech
China”), our wholly-owned subsidiary, generated significant revenue
for the Group, a remarkable year-on-year growth was recorded.
Situated in the convenient and highly accessible Jiangbei New
District, we intentionally made Solomon Systech China as our
Nanjing Technology Center, and considered it as one of the tactical
steps to get prepared for our business expansion in the Mainland.
With its establishment, it will be beneficial for ourmarket penetration
into major cities to capture market share and high-quality customers
at an optimal level. Since 2018, the Group has proactively recruited
and nurtured talents in the region to keep up with its foreseeable
growth. The Group also fully utilized its research and development
resources in achieving synergy effects. It is expected that the
number of employees in the Nanjing office and Nanjing Technology
Center will boom in the future, which will rank second in terms of
scale, next only to the Group’s subsidiary in Taiwan.

Promoting Technological Development and
Grabbing Business Opportunities

Thanks to new advances in semiconductor industry and
technological breakthroughs, all these drive display technologies
forward. With its 20 years of endurance in the industry, the
Group has mapped out its vital strategies amid changing industry
landscape and pivotal challenges, including diversification of its
businesses, expansion of its customer base and allocation of
resources to multiple key areas through data analysis and strategic
market planning, ranging from ePaper, microelectronics to smart
wearable products, etc. Having a global perspective, the Group has
also committed to stay at the forefront by meeting market demand
of display technologies and introducing cutting-edge products.

HREAM A KERRE

BE-—FRPIBEK (PE)BRAT (HFH
) BEESREA - FAEAEER - VER
BERE - NBNENILHE  BAKRLER
R IMERRIIEER  RIRRAMER - 4]
BEEWD  FMEERFMEAT S EE
HEFLE - B20185F i - AEEH—HBEBA
ERBINEEATRERRAY  LERERE
MR MER - A BRI - B ERER
WEERBRPOREAESRRERR R
REAREEREER LB F O -

HERRE BEHH

FERTEXRSEL  NEAHMAE  BERSR
BT EERLH - REHEB20FWES - |
HERKNZTBRR MRS - HERKBERD
BMER  BAZFH BERBBEINMETSER
2 RPEFRBEERAE  BEREFH -
HEF  EEFEHAREHES  LHRER
BREBEERFLE  HHFSRNBEARRE
RWBELHEm °

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, the Chief Executive Officer of the Group, was invited as one of the guest speakers at the Hong Kong
Electronic Forum organized by the Hong Kong Trade Development Council at the Hong Kong Convention and Exhibition Centre in
October 2019, sharing the applications of microelectronics and the latest development of the industry with the participants in the Forum.
SETBAESTIELSEEN019F 108 BB A EREE Y — HFEREBE S RERIHETEERREPLEBINIEEE T
WE| HESATIIZMEFTHNEARITERTERBR
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CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER’S MESSAC

At the Forefront of Industry Evolution
Focusing on Technological Research

The Group has accelerated its pace of technological innovations
and upgrades across different business segments striving to
capture the market share through creating competitive edges by
product differentiation in conjunction with enrichment of product
portfolio, resulting from the efforts put in research and development
of innovative technologies that to be patented.

Risk Management

In view of the nature of our business and the regions in where we
operate, it is inevitably that the Group is subject to various kinds
of risks and uncertainties. We constantly review and revise our
strategies and measures in response to the risks concerned.

For details on how we mitigate major risks, please refer to pages 50
to 52, and 123 to 131.

Outlook

While the shadow of public health issue is looming over the
productivity of factories in Mainland China and the uncertainties
of economies are spanning across the globe, the semiconductor
industry is recovering from a cyclical downturn with robust market
demand for technology products. Notwithstanding these, the
forces concerned are expected to outweigh each other, and hence
we remain confident in the future, striving to adjust the business
development strategies of the Group, increase promotion efforts to
external stakeholders and enhance our brand image in a prompt and
timely manner.

As mentioned above, we will continue proactively tap into the
business opportunities in Mainland China and enrich our product
portfolio, so as to accelerate the pace of technological innovations,
enhance our competitive edges and achieve sustainable growth.

In conclusion, we strongly believe that innovation and excellence
are vitally important for becoming a top-notched technology
company in the world. Having rich management experience and
determination, the management team is committed not only to
manage the company as a whole through visionary leadership, but
also ride over the challenges in the business operating environment.
The year 2019 was the 20" anniversary of the Group, | would
like to take this opportunity to extend my heartfelt gratitude to
the Directors and our colleagues for their unremitting efforts
and contributions to the Group, and our business partners and
shareholders for their continuous support. We hope that all of us will
accomplish the long-term goals of the Group together in the next
decade and yield fruitful returns alike.
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Wang Wah Chi, Raymond T #7&
Chief Executive Officer T A8 &

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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Technology Rejuvenates Our Soul
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Overview

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group’s total sales were
US$108.3 million (2018: US$98.1 million). A net loss of US$27.8
million (2018: US$13.8 million) was recorded, mainly attributable to
provisions made for slow moving inventories due to reduced market
demand for some of the Group’s products resulting in diminished
gross profit margins, a decrease in net finance income due to a
less favourable investment environment during the year of 2019
compared to that of 2018, in conjunction with certain non-recurring
expenses and impairments.

Sales and Gross Profit

The Group recorded an increase in total shipments by around 4%
year-on-year to approximately 308.7 million units (2018: 295.8
million units). The overall book-to-bill ratio of the Group for 2019
was 1.1 (2018: 1.0).

With the strong growth in the sales of the Group’s large display
driver ICs in 2019, the total sales increased by approximately 10%
year-on-year to around US$108.3 million (2018: US$98.1 million).

Owing to the intense price competition in the market and the
aforesaid inventory provision, the gross margin decreased by 9
percentage points to 19.7% (2018: 28.7%) attributable to a change
in the product mix of the Group. The gross profit of the Group
decreased to US$21.3 million (2018: US$28.2 million).

Costs and Expenses

The Group has remained vigilant in controlling its expenses but as
a technology company, it is committed to investing in product R&D
and business development. The Group’s total expenses, including
product R&D costs, S&D expenses, administrative expenses and
other expenses, were US$53.8 million (2018: US$48.7 million), up
by US$5.1 million or 10% year-on-year. The increase was due to
certain material non-recurring expenses such as retrenchment cost
and impairment of intellectual properties and goodwill as a result of
business restructure during the year.

The Group continued to invest in product R&D and business
development and remained selective in its product R&D spending.
New technology development and new product introduction mainly
concentrated on viable and profitable businesses, thereby apart
from the impairment of intellectual properties, an overall decrease in
R&D expenditure from US$31.5 million to US$24.7 million (dropped
US$6.8 million or 21.6% year-on-year). Product R&D costs to sales
ratio was 22.8% (2018: 32.1%).

S&D expenses were US$3.1 million (2018: US$4.0 million) whilst the
S&D expenses to sales ratio was 2.9% (2018: 4.1%).

Administrative expenses were US$12.4 million, decreased by
US$0.8 million from US$13.2 million in 2018. The decrease
was mainly on saving of certain operating cost due to business
restructure during the year.

Other expenses were US$13.5 million, which were non-recurring
(2018: Nil) mainly represented the impairment loss of intangible
assets as a result of business restructure during the year. The
impairment loss arose primarily due to write off of remaining balance
of intellectual properties (US$6.8 million) in relation to the Group’s
Mobile Touch (“MT”) business, write off of goodwill (US$2.3 million)
and intellectual properties (US$1.2 million) in relation to the Group’s
Mobile Display (“MD”) business and termination benefits (US$3.0
million) of which about US$2.0 million in relation to the closure of
overseas offices.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEN WK D

FINANCIAL REVIEW
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Background and Reasons for the Impairment Loss

(i)

(i)

14

Write-off of remaining balance of intellectual properties (US$6.8
million) in relation to MT business

As disclosed in the Company’s Announcements on 1 November
2016, the Company acquired intangible assets of US$17
million, mainly intellectual properties of maXTouch® technology
and set up overseas technology centres for the development
of MT business. The Company amortized intellectual properties
of US$3.1 million during the year which was charged as
research and development cost. The resultant carrying
amount of intellectual properties for its remaining useful life
became US$6.8 million. However, due to the change of market
conditions that led to a continuous decrease in demand of
MT products, MT business was unable to generate sufficient
revenue to support its operating cost, as a result, the Group
had incurred significant loss including large provisions made
for slow moving inventories in the past years. In considering
the overseas technology centres were high cash burn units
that increase the financial burden to the Group, the Group
had made its efforts to dispose of MT related assets during
the second half of the year but no successful offers had been
received. In view of the continued loss-making position of the
MT business and the intensified market competition in the
integrated circuit industry, the Board had decided to cease
operations of overseas technology centres in order to reduce
on-going expenses.

Consequently, the Directors performed impairment review of
the carrying amounts of intellectual properties in accordance
with HKAS 36. HKAS 36 defines impairment loss as the amount
by which the carrying amount of an asset or a cash-generating
unit (“CGU”) exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount of the CGU of maXTouch® intellectual properties has
been determined based on a value in use calculation using
cash flow projections covering the estimated remaining useful
life of 2 years. In view that there will be no significant revenue
generated from MT business after the closure of technology
centres, the Directors have determined impairment of remaining
balance of intellectual properties (US$6.8 million) directly
related to MT business.

Write-off of goodwill (US$2.3 million) and intellectual properties
(US$1.2 million) in relation to MD business

On the other hand, Sentron Inc., (“Sentron”) a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Group which was acquired in 2017,
specialized in TDDI technology, the goodwill (US$2.3 million)
arising from the acquisition and intellectual properties (US$1.2
million) were fully impaired during the year.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

Annual Report 2019
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Group with reference to a valuation report prepared by
an independent professionally qualified valuer, at least on an
annual basis, in assessing the impairment on the goodwill and
related to intellectual properties allocated to the TDDI CGU.
The recoverable amount of this TDDI CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
approved by management coving a five-year period and
beyond that extrapolated with 2% growth rate and a pre-tax
discount rate of 18%. The discount rate is estimated by using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to this CGU. In view of
change of business plan of MD that will focus on other more
profitable products using other technologies and low revenue
generating from products using TDDI technology, the Directors
have determined impairment of goodwill and intellectual
properties in relation to Sentron is necessary.

Nevertheless, the Group will continue to explore more markets
for the MD products.

Other Income and Gains - Net

Other income in 2019 totalled US$4.1 million (2018: US$4.6 million),
comprising mainly government subsidies for the product R&D
projects of the Group.

Finance Income - Net

The Group has invested in financial assets as part of its treasury
management for interest and dividend income. During 2019, the
Group recorded an interest income of US$0.1 million (2018: US$0.4
million) and a dividend income of US$0.03 million (2018: US$0.1
million).

The Group’s financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(“FVTPL Portfolio”) are stated at fair value. The fair value of the
FVTPL Portfolio traded in active markets is based on quoted market
prices as at the reporting date. The FVTPL Portfolio based on the
mark-to-market prices as at 31 December 2019 recorded a net fair
value gain of US$0.5 million (2018: net fair value loss US$0.7 million)
on marketable and listed debt or equity securities. A net fair value
loss of US$0.5 million (2018: net fair value gain of US$2.2 million)
was recorded for a derivative instrument.

As a result, the Group recorded a net finance income of US$1,000
(2018: US$2.0 million) from treasury investment.

The Group has an internal treasury review team (the “Team”) to
execute treasury management policy, review the overall investment
portfolio and monitor the performance on a regular basis to
increase the yield of cash reserves. The Team conducts regular
review teleconferences with individual external portfolio managers
and holds internal review meetings to evaluate and monitor the
investment performance.
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FINANCIAL REVIEW
5t %5 [ &

There is no FVTPL Portfolio maintained as at 31 December 2019
due to redemption of bonds and funds on maturity during the year.
The Group will look for more investment opportunity and expects a
stable stream of income to be sustained.

Net Profit and Loss

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the pretax loss was US$28.2
million (2018: US$13.8 million). The loss attributable to the equity
holders of the Company was US$27.3 million (2018: US$13.7
million), mainly due to impairment of intellectual properties and
goodwill.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2019, total cash and cash equivalents and bank
deposits of the Group amounted to US$18.1 million (2018: US$13.4
million).

Regarding the use of cash reserves, the Group will continue to
allocate funds for product development, securing production
capacity, strengthening its infrastructure in Mainland China and
Taiwan to broaden its customer base and capture market and
sales opportunities, entering into strategic corporate ventures,
and meeting general corporate operational purposes. As at 31
December 2019, the Group had no major borrowing other than the
bank loan of US$0.2 million in a Korean subsidiary. The Group’s
cash balance was mainly invested in various deposits in banks.

Most of the Group’s trade receivables and payables are quoted in
US dollars. The Group closely monitors the movement of foreign
exchange rates and constantly seeks to obtain favorable exchange
rates for conversion of US dollars into other currencies for paying
local operating expenses. During the year under review, the Group
did not use any derivative instruments to hedge against foreign
currency exposure in operation as the Directors considered this
exposure to be insignificant.

Capital Expenditure and Contingent Liabilities
In 2019, capital expenditure of the Group was US$0.3 million (2018:
US$1.9 million).

As at 31 December 2019, capital expenditure contracted for but not
yet incurred was approximately US$0.2 million (2018: US$14,000).

Aside from the aforesaid, the Group had no other material capital
commitment or contingent liability.
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BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

In 2019, the Group recorded an increase in total shipments of
around 4% year-on-year to approximately 308.7 million units and an
increase in total sales of around 10% to approximately US$108.3
million. The increase in shipments and sales was mainly attributable
to the growth of the large display driver IC business. Our business
market was generally stable, with revenue growths in some business
segments.

Following the business direction in expanding the PMOLED series
of products, the Group came to fruition in the reporting period
by making a breakthrough in scientific research and pushing
technological boundaries. The technology used in this cutting-edge
product can be applied to much larger-sized displays, thus widening
the range of applications and optimizing user experience in the
ever-changing market. We believe that such innovative technology
can be used to produce various types of products and system
solutions applicable to different industries, satisfying the needs
of the household and industrial application markets, thus bringing
benefits and satisfactory return to the Group.

The establishment of Solomon Systech (China) Limited, which is
located in Nanjing Jiangbei New Area, is part of the Group’s key
strategic plan to expand the Mainland China market. We have built
strong affinity and maintain open communication with the local
government, Nanjing Economic Development Administration and the
industry, in an effort to understand the local business environment
and the competitive advantages of a Hong Kong company that is
exploring the Mainland China market, thus enabling us to adjust our
business development strategies and seek for opportunities and
partners at the right time. Currently, its product portfolio consists
of mainly large display driver ICs. In the future, we will concentrate
on expanding our business focus to cover areas such as research
and development, design, sales and marketing. While attracting and
cultivating local talents, it will also apply current technologies in
Hong Kong to the business in Mainland China, thereby fostering the
future development of the Group in Mainland China.

The Group’s unit shipments by product types during the reporting
period were as follows:
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Advanced Display

The advanced display (“AD”) products include PMOLED display,
OLED lighting products and bistable products. In addition to
standard ICs, the Group also provides customized IC design
services, including analog, mixed-signal and high-voltage IC
designs to cater for the specific needs of customers. With its
strength in cutting-edge technologies and research capabilities,
a number of internationally renowned brands have become the
Group’s loyal customers, who placed orders with the Group for
wearables and smart home appliances during the reporting period,
representing a growth opportunity in customers’ demand for higher
resolution gray scale displays as opposed to monochrome displays.

In 2019, the total unit shipments of AD products recorded a year-
on-year decrease of more than 20% to approximately 134.9 million
units. Although the Group’s PMOLED display driver IC business
grew steadily in the first half of 2019, the overall sales of standard
PMOLED display driver ICs of the Group was weakened due to the
dwindling demand in some application markets in the second half of
the year.

It is gratifying that our PMOLED display IC SSD7317, the first of its
kind in the world, has won several awards since its launch in 2018.
During the reporting period, it came second in the “Hong Kong
Electronics Project Competition 2019” organized by the Hong Kong
Institution of Engineers.

Benefiting from a surge in the demand for electronic shelf label and
the business model of retail automation in target markets including
Japan and the United States, the strong growth momentum of the
bistable display IC business of the Group continued throughout the
year. The Group’s newly developed products, the N-Color bistable
color display IC which supports seven colors and the bistable color
display panels in sizes ranging from 4 to 7 inches, have been put
into mass production in 2019.
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Large Display

The Group’s Large Display (“LD”) products include large panel
TFT LCD display driver ICs developed for TVs, monitors and other
applications.

Since the establishment of the strategic Mainland China business
and technology center in Nanjing, it has been delivering a strong
growth for the Group’s large-display driver IC business for two
consecutive years. It demonstrated stellar performance by achieving
a year-on-year increase of more than one fold in unit shipments to
122.6 million units in 2019 (2018: 58 million units).

The Group succeeded in significantly increasing its share of the 4K
UHD TV and FHD monitor businesses in its customers in 2018, and
started to ship the products supporting high-end 144Hz displays in
bulk during the reporting period, resulting in a significant increase in
the overall product shipments and sales. The Group also continued
to collaborate with the fab in Chengdu to develop a point-to-point
display driver IC, targeting the high-end 120Hz UHD TV and 8K TV
markets.

The Group is committed to establishing an impeccable production
supply chain in Mainland China, thereby enhancing the overall
competitive advantage of its business and increasing its turnover
and net profit margin. During the year, the business unit obtained
the qualification as a display control driver integrated circuit
engineering research center in Nanjing.

Others
Apart from AD and LD products, the Group also provides other
products, including MD and MT products.

MD products can be used for smartphones and TFT LCD display
driver ICs as well as MIPI bridge ICs which support virtual reality
devices, test jigs and smart watches, etc. The Group’s In-Cell
TDDI IC for FHD+(1080 x 2160) LTPS panels and DDI IC for FHD
(1080 x 1920) IGZO panels were well recognized by smartphone
manufacturers in Mainland China, with mass production
commencing in the second half of the year. The Group also received
orders for MIPI bridge ICs, which have a range of applications such
as baby monitors, automotive rear camera devices, test jigs, GPS
devices and learning devices, etc.

The unit shipments of this category of products saw a slight
increase of approximately 1% year-on-year to around 23.1 million
units (2018: 22.8 million units).

During the reporting period, the MT business experienced
restructuring so as to align with market direction. Nevertheless, the
Group continued to sell MT technology-based products mainly for
the applications in video games.

The unit shipments of MT products were approximately 28.1 million
units (2018: 30.6 million units), more than 70% of which were
related to video games.
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Outlook

Advanced Display

A key innovative product of the Group is the PMOLED display
IC. This new product is planned to be put into trial production in
the first half of 2020, with a view to bringing a promising market
prospect and growth impetus to the Group. The Group will also
continue to capitalize on the growth potentials of smart home
appliances and AloT with grayscale displays to drive business
growth.

The Group’s bistable display driver IC business, bolstered by
the constant development in retail automation, is set to continue
its strong growth momentum in 2020. In addition to current use
in supermarket chains, the Group aims to extend the use of
electronic labels progressively to various forms of commercial
applications including retail stores, logistics and transportation,
asset management, and medical products. The Group has also been
taking initiatives to develop a new generation bistable color display
IC that supports multiple colors, keeping abreast with the market
trend and future development of e-paper displays, and ensuring that
its technology stays at the forefront of the industry and stands out
from its peers.

Large Display

Benefiting from Mainland China’s domestic demand, the Group’s
TV and display businesses have been enjoying unwavering growth,
and are ready to bring a robust surge in its large display driver IC
business in 2020.

Looking ahead, the Group will continue its active search for more
quality potential customers, with an aim of becoming one of the
largest display chip suppliers in Mainland China. With the point-to-
point display driver IC for the high-end 120 Hz UHD TV and 8K TV
markets jointly developed with the new wafer fab in Chengdu, the
Group will be able to take advantage of the market opportunities
and increase its market share.
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Others

The Group’s MD products are expected to continue their
involvement in generating revenue for the Company in 2020. In
addition to strengthening its existing businesses, the Group will
also expand the market and grow its customer base, extending the
applications of its In-Cell TDDI IC, DDI IC and MIPI bridge IC to
areas including smartphones, smart watches and public information
displays. To lay a solid foundation for future development, the
Group will increase its efforts in creating value for its customers,
by participating in more projects that are tailor-made for the
customers, developing key customers and cultivating a win-
win relationship that will help achieve the Group’s long-term
development objectives.

The Group’s MT products have also been incorporated by
internationally renowned brands of video games in their designs and
orders are scheduled to be delivered in 2020.

Product Development

In 2019, the Group spent approximately US$24.7 million on R&D,
representing about 46% of total expenses and 22.8% of total
revenue for the year.

The Group’s product R&D engineering teams possess domain
expertise in various areas, spanning from design of high-speed
serial master bridges, In-Cell and On-Cell touch controller ICs
and OLED lighting driver ICs, to display drivers for various panel
technologies such as amorphous silicon TFT, metal-oxide TFT,
LTPS, POLED, AMOLED, PMOLED and AMEPD. This wide array of
critical knowhow enables us to drive sales growth in response to
fulfilling market needs promptly and maintaining our competitive
edges.

IP Development

The IPs that have been developed or were under development
during 2019 included, among others, high dynamic electric current
source for Micro-LED and Mini-LED backlight technology for 2D
local dimming; capless high voltage regulator for ePaper; multi-line
addressing scheme for PMOLED; hybrid on-cell and in-cell touch
control technology for PMOLED; USI-T high-speed interface and
panel fan-out compensation for large display.

During the year, the Group has been granted 17 patents,
almost doubling the figure for last year, and filed 8 patents
covering various display designs and application areas. With the
competitive advantage of over 600 patents, the Group plans to
enrich and extend its intellectual property portfolio by allocating
more resources in patent application, with an objective to create
synergies and enhance growth efficiency.
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Employees

As of 31 December 2019, the Group had a total workforce of 284
employees'. Of the total workforce, around 41% were based in
Hong Kong head office with the rest located in Mainland China,

Japan, Korea, and Taiwan.
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B Product Development
EmpE

B Others
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EE B &

e 221 technical engineering staff
221 & BT TAZED

* 284 staff worldwide as at 31 December 2019
2019512310 « 2B AH284EET

About 87% of the Group’s employees hold a bachelor’s degree or
above, and around 41% have earned a master’s degree or higher
academic qualifications. The Group’s emphasis on R&D is also
reflected in the composition of our workforce, as 63% are engineers
who specialize in product design and development. The entire team

46%

M Quality and Manufacturing
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has, on average, around 14 years of working experience.

Note': Data excludes the manufacturing subsidiary
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Training & Development

At Solomon Systech, we strive to cultivate a culture of “Continuous
Learning”, and to inspire, encourage and develop our staff. In 2019,
the Group dedicated a total of over 3,712 man-hours? to training
and development, covering industrial and technical training, and
others including corporate governance, internal controls, etc.
Apart from in-house training, the Group has also encouraged and
sponsored employees to take external job-related courses.

Employee’s Well-being

We invest in the health, safety, and wellness of our employees as
we care about their well-being. Apart from providing a safe working
environment and health insurance covering medical, disability,
accidental and life benefits to eligible employees. In 2019, the
Group organized a range of activities for employees to help them
strike a healthy work-life balance and promote team building. The
Group also arranged leisure activities inviting our employees to
participate together with their family members.

Remuneration and Awards

The Group believes in motivating, retaining and rewarding
employees and attracting new talent with the right incentives,
in order to facilitate the alignment of their interests with the
Company. NPI First Order Awards were granted to project teams
in appreciation of the order winning on our new products. The
Group also offers cash reward schemes including KPI Incentive
for recognizing the attainment of annual KPI on both the team
and individual levels, and ES1 MP Award for new products which
garner design wins for mass production with the first sample ready.
Patent Awards are in place to encourage and reward technological
innovation. The Group also offers long service awards to reward
employees of long standing.

Corporate Social Responsibility

The Group has a strong sense of commitment to fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and ensures that it becomes part
of the daily operations of the Group. The Group’s ESG working
committee has monitored the Group’s performance in the areas of
employees, the marketplace, the environment and the community
during 2019 for preparation of an ESG Report. The Group’s ESG
Report for 2019 will be published on the Company’s website at
www.solomon-systech.com.

Note?: Data excludes the manufacturing subsidiary

i BBTEEEELEZHNEBL A

24

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

Annual Report 2019

IR

AEBEY THEES VUL WRE - H
BAMEE THRRE - 2019F » REFIRAH
A3, 712/ EREIIRERE  BETERK
izl AR EMBECEE AR AIMEESE
ZHEE - BRAZEZINN » REBTEE TR
ERNER AR NERRE  WIREER -

EIRU

KM+ o EEITMNEN  BEERAERRE
IWREE  Z2REN RIEHZE2NIFR
BEREREEE BB ENNASREENRE
R FEBDRMANETINSEBENTIFE
ESEFE - REBRE® - R2019F - £8 A
ETIZRHT—RIEE EPHETER LB
Eo-BRRZHETARBED  BBFEITERA
—RE8H-

B & & 32 B

AEBHEEEENEBFETURERD 8K
FBET  WRAFHAST  ESETHAZE
HEATWRIRER — & o NEEEENPIE R
FTER|FEHEEN  URERMFEMRMET
BER - AEEFEHTEKPIEBTE - UL
BRAEEKREAAE@EZFEKP  RRFE
mEERNERN ST EERHEEENIES
EERFE INRESREE  [ER %]
HNEREATHERBESTIRAIHTE - ~&EE
TEBRIBRBRUAEFREZSFENET -

TEHSEMT

KEEB-—BEHNBTLEHESE AR
HABEEEN— P - NEBMESGIE
ZESERAEEN0M9FEET - HiH
BERMESSHERN KRB UEHFBESGRE -
REBE2019F WESGHR & 8 R A 2 5 4 uh

www.solomon-systech.com? i e



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEENmET

BUSINESS REVIEW & OUTLOOK

Events after the Reporting Year

Since the outbreak of the COVID-19 epidemic (the “Epidemic”)
across the Mainland China in January 2020, various emergency
public health measures have been imposed by the government of
the Mainland China across multiple provinces and municipalities in
the Mainland China to curb the spread of the Epidemic, including
imposing restriction on the resumption date of work after the
Chinese New Year holidays. Our employees in Mainland China
also resumed work in an orderly manner according to the local
government authorities’ guidelines.

In view of the Group and its subsidiaries are fabless semiconductor
companies, we rely on our supply chain partners whose production
base in the Mainland China to fulfil our sales order. However, due
to the suspension or limited service of transportation facilities
in various cities in the Mainland China to prevent the spread of
Coronavirus, our business partners were unable to resume work
as planned. As a result, the Group experienced delay in shipment
which would directly affect our overall revenue in the first quarter of
2020. Under such special circumstances, the Group used its best
endeavours to liaise with both customers and suppliers to closely
follow up the delivery schedule to minimize any negative economic
impact on its business.

The Board is of the view that the delay in resumption of operation
in the Mainland China as abovementioned has only had a temporary
impact on the Group’s overall productivity. We implemented
contingency plan to secure normal operation of our supply chain so
as to satisfy customers’ needs.

While keeping health and safety of the Group’s employees as the
top priority, the Board will continue to monitor the development of
the Epidemic, assess the potential risks and impact that it may have
on the Group’s operation.

Up to the date on which these consolidated financial statements are
issued, the Group is still in the process of assessing the impacts of
the Epidemic on the financial performance and position of the Group
and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative impacts to the
Group. The management of the Group will pay close attention to the
development of the Epidemic and perform further assessment of its
financial impact.

The Epidemic is a non-adjusting event after the financial year end
and does not result in any adjustments to the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chairman

Mr. MA Yuchuan, aged 55

Chairman of the Board: since May 2019

Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2018

Member of the Nomination Committee and Investment
Committee

Skills and experience:

e  Graduated from Zhejiang University with a bachelor’s degree in
semiconductor physics and devices

° Extensive experience in semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:

e Director of Shanghai Belling Co., Ltd. and Nanjing Micro One
Electronics Inc.

e Vice general manager of Huada

Former appointments include:

e Held various positions in CEC: division chief of project
division of business management department, division chief
of integrated circuit & components division of corporate
development department, vice general manager of integrated
circuit business group and deputy general manager of planning,
science & technology department

e Director of China Electronics Huada Technology Company
Limited (HKSE: 0085), Hua Hong Semiconductor Limited
(HKSE: 1347), CEC Huahong International Co. Ltd., Shanghai
Huahong (Group) Co., Ltd. and Chengdu Sino Microelectronics
Technology Co., Ltd.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE

Executive Directors

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond, aged 53

e  CEO: since January 2020

Acting CEO: since March 2019

Executive Director: since March 2019

Chairman of the Investment Committee

Authorized Representative of the Company pursuant to Rule
3.05 of the Listing Rules

° Director of a number of subsidiaries of the Group

Saved as disclosed in this Annual Report, Mr. Wang Wah Chi,
Raymond did not hold any directorships in the companies of which
the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange or overseas in the last
three years.

Skills and experience:

e Graduated from the City University of Hong Kong with a
bachelor’s degree in electronic engineering

¢ Received a master of business administration degree from the
Victoria University of Wellington and a master of arts degree
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong

e A chartered engineer with over 30 years’ experience in the
semiconductor industry

Former appointments include:

e  Corporate VP and Head of Advanced Display Business

e Held senior management position in Motorola Inc and worked
in Hong Kong, the United States of Amercia and Canada

e Asia Pacific Head of RFWaves Ltd. in Israel

Mr. LO Wai Ming, aged 57

° Executive Director

e  Appointed to the Board: 2016

° Member of the Investment Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Lo did not hold any directorships in
the companies of which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
or overseas in the last three years.

Skills and experience:

e  Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Engineers

e Holds a master of science degree in electronic engineering from
The Hong Kong Polytechnic University, and a master of science
degree in energy and environmental sustainability from The
Open University of Hong Kong

e  With over 30 years of working experience in the electronics
industry in managing global business operations including
product engineering, product applications, business and
market development

Current appointments include:

e  Corporate VP and Head of Large Display Business

° Director of Kitronix Limited and Director of a number of
subsidiaries of the Group

Former appointments include:

° Executive Director of the Company from 2004 to 2010

° Founding employee and Business Operations Director

e  Operations manager of Motorola Semiconductors Hong Kong
Limited

28

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

Annual Report 2019

HITES
IHH5EL 535

ERTHAR - BE2019F38
HITES : H2019F3A 8
RELZEESZEXE
IELETEBIE3.05 EXRATREEZ
EREAEK

o XREEZRTEMBLATNESR

MRAFHMIZEN  TRERBE=FAEE
REER g EHH AT FIEEENESRE
ﬁ o

THERRE

o EBEENBFTBHWHTAE . FEETIREEL
=i

o EANFEEEAZTTIABERINE
EBEETENREBPXREEBECEEL
B4y

o HHIRER EXERBRETITEEER
BIFELEMNKE

ZEBMNEE:

o ESEERARREEBRREENLEE

e NEREBENEFSREERKE INE
B EZEFBRERERMEKRIE

o  RUBI H{ERFWaves Ltd. B ABEE

EEPLEE 575

o HTEER

o EEREAEE:2016%F
e KREZEEZEE

BRADNEISN  ERERBE=FUBERBER
g LR AT REEEANESHE

TRERAEHR -

e EBERBRIEMESEE
REBEIRENMEEFIRELTEN;
WREBAFASBIENBERNREA
FEBRREITEN

e HEFITXREEBBIFEERRERLE
ENKER BRERIRE ERER ¥
BRMSH#%

BERMBE

e ESEERABRARBEBREBEE

o AREBREQTAFANBRATANES
UERASEZXMBLARANES

BERACERE

e R2004Z2010F MR EARRHITES
RAIBTREREERE
BEH+EREBERQAFDEELE



BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Non-executive Directors

Dr. LI Jun, aged 44

° Non-executive Director

e  Appointed to the Board: 2014

° Member of the Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

e Graduated from Wu Han University with a doctoral degree in
photogrammetry and remote sensing

e  With over 10 years of working experience, spanning government
industrial planning, enterprise strategy, informatization planning
and science & technology management

° Directed the writing of Development and Application of China’s
Strategic Emerging Industries, Development and Management
Practice of China’s Strategic Emerging Industries, Investment
& Financing and M&A Strategies of China’s Strategic Emerging
Industries, and Development and Application of China’s Cloud
Computing Industry

Current appointments include:

° General manager, department of planning, science &
technology of CEC

e Non-executive director of TPV Technology Limited (HKSE:
0903) and China Greatwall Technology Group Co., Ltd. (SSE:
000066)

Former appointments include:

e  President and executive director of CCID Consulting Company
Limited (HKSE: 8235)

° Deputy chief engineer of China Center for Information Industry
Development, the think tank under the Ministry of Industry and
Information Technology

Mr. YU Jian, aged 43

° Non-executive Director

e Appointed to the Board: since June 2019

° Member of the Audit Committee and Remuneration Committee

Skills and experience:

e  Graduated from East China Normal University with a master’s
degree in economy and is a certified public accountant

e Extensive experience in semiconductor industry

Current appointments include:

e  Executive director of China Electronics Huada Technology
Company Limited (HKSE: 0085)

e  Supervisor of Shanghai Belling Co., Limited

e  Chief financial officer of Huada Semiconductors Co. Limited

Former appointments include:

e Financial department manager and chief financial officer
assistant of Shanghai Citic-Jiading Industrial Co., Limited

e Financial department manager and general manager assistant
of Shanghai Datang Mobile Communications Equipment Co.,
Limited

e  Chief financial officer and vice president of Shanghai Pudong
Software Park Co., Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. LEUNG Heung Ying, aged 56

° Independent Non-executive Director

e  Appointed to the Board: 2014

° Chairman of the Audit Committee

° Member of the Remuneration Committee, Nomination
Committee and Investment Committee

Skills and experience:

e Received a bachelor’s degree from the University of Bradford,
United Kingdom, a master’s degree from London School of
Economics and Political Science of University of London,
United Kingdom and a bachelor’s degree in Chinese Laws from
Peking University, the PRC

° Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and Wales and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants, as well as committee member of Hong
Kong Securities Professionals Association

Current appointments include:

e  Managing director and founder of Proton Capital Limited

° Member of the Public Affairs Forum of the HKSAR Government

° Committee member of the Political Consultative Committee of
Wu Hua County of Guangdong Province

Former appointments include:

e Member to the Listing Committee of Stock Exchange (2010-
2016)

° Executive director of Harmonic Strait Financial Holdings
Limited (HKSE: 0033)

e Independent non-executive director of Creative Energy
Solutions Holdings Limited (HKSE: 8109)

e Member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants Corporate Finance Committee, the Expert Panel
on Listing and the Advisory Committee on Listing and Takeover
Regulations

e  Arbitrator of the Panel of Arbitrators of China International
Economic and Trade Arbitration Commission
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. SHEU Wei Fu, age 50

Independent Non-executive Director
Appointed to the Board: 2014

Chairman of the Remuneration Committee
Member of the Nomination Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Sheu did not hold any directorships in
the companies of which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
or overseas in the last three years.

Skills and experience:

e Received a bachelor’'s degree in business/managerial
economics from the University of California, San Diego

e With over 18 years of high technology industry experience
focusing on strategy, business development and supply chain
integration for original development manufacturers and original
equipment manufacturers

Current appointments include:
e  Special Assistant to the Chairman & CEO (Strategy & Planning)
of Quanta Computer Inc.

Former appointments include:

° Alternate director to Dr. Lam Pak Lee, a non-executive director
of the Company who retired from the Board at the conclusion
of the Annual General Meeting held in May 2014

Mr. YIU Tin Chong, Joseph, aged 70

Independent Non-executive Director

Appointed to the Board: 2011

Chairman of the Nomination Committee

Member of the Audit Committee, Investment Committee and
Remuneration Committee

Other than the Company, Mr. Yiu did not hold any directorships in
the companies of which the shares are listed on the Stock Exchange
or overseas in the last three years

Skills and experience:

e Received a master’s degree in electrical engineering, computer
science and business administration, respectively

° With rich work experience covering automotive electronics,
computer systems, wireless communication and semiconductor
products, and for both technical and corporate management
fields

Former appointments include:

e  Chairman emeritus of Freescale Semiconductor (Hong Kong)
Ltd (“FSHKL”) and advisor to FSHKL on regional business
strategy, government affairs and corporate governance

e Corporate vice president of Motorola Group and general
manager of Motorola Semiconductors Hong Kong Limited
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

ESEREREEE

Founder and Chairman Emeritus

Dr. LEUNG Kwong Wai, JP, aged 63, is the Founder and Chairman
Emeritus of the Group.

Company Secretary

Ms. POON Kim Hung, Shirley, aged 51, Finance Director. Ms. Poon
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2019. She is currently acting
as the Company Secretary and the Authorized Representative of
the Company pursuant to Rule 3.05 of the Listing Rules and is
also a director of various wholly-owned subsidiaries of the Group.
Ms. Poon has extensive experiences in auditing, accounting,
financing and company secretarial work. Prior to joining the
Company, Ms. Poon served as chief financial officer of a listed
company in Hong Kong.

Senior Management

Mr. WANG Wah Chi, Raymond
(please refer to Executive Director on p.28)

Mr. LO Wai Ming
(please refer to Executive Director on p.28)

Ms. POON Kim Hung, Shirley
(please refer to Company Secretary on this page)

Dr. WU Wenchi, aged 51, Vice President, Design Engineering.
Dr. Wu joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2017. Prior to joining
the company, Dr Wu was assistant general manager of Socle
Technology Corporation. Dr. Wu holds a doctorate degree in
electrical engineering from the National Central University in Taiwan.

Ms. LO Oi Yee, Mabel, aged 55, Human Resources Director. Ms. Lo
joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2000 as Human Resources
Manager.

Mr. WONG Ka Kei, aged 54, Planning & Customer Services
Director. Mr. Wong joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2005 as
Business Process Solutions Manager.

Mr. PANG Tat Kwong, age 55, Quality & Manufacturing Director.
Mr. Pang joined Solomon Systech Limited in 2019.

Changes in Information of Directors

Pursuant to the disclosure requirement under Rule 13.51B(1) of the
Listing Rules, changes in information of Directors of our Company
subsequent to the date of the Company’s 2019 Interim Report are
as follows:

° Mr. Ma Yuchuan ceased to be a director of CEC Huada
International Co., Ltd. in January 2020.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Corporate governance practices

The Board of Directors and the management of the Group are
committed to achieving and maintaining high standards of corporate
governance and continuously improve these standards, which
the Group considers as critical in safeguarding the integrity of
its business operations and maintaining investors’ trust in the
Company, and good corporate governance is indispensable for
long-term business success and sustainable performance of the
Group. The management also actively and constantly observes
the latest corporate governance developments in Hong Kong and
overseas, particularly those in UK and USA.

The Company has adopted and applied the corporate governance
principles that emphasize a quality board, effective internal controls,
stringent disclosure practices, transparency and accountability. The
Company has complied with all the applicable Code Provisions in
the Corporate Governance Code (the “Code”) as set out in Appendix
14 of the Listing Rules for the year ended 31 December 2019. To
maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in the Code where
appropriate. In addition, the Company is committed to continuously
improving these practices and inculcating an ethical corporate
culture.

Directors’ securities transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules as the code for Directors’
securities transactions. All the Directors have confirmed their
compliance with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year ended 31 December 2019. Regarding the shares
held by the Directors, the details are listed in the “Report of the
Directors” from pages 53 to 65 of this Annual Report. Pursuant to
the Code Provision A.6.4, the Company established its own written
guidelines on no less exacting terms than the Model Code for
Directors and relevant employees who are likely to be in possession
of unpublished inside information in respect of their dealings in the
securities of the Company. All Directors and relevant employees
conformed to the Group’s own guidelines throughout the year 2019.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

Board of Directors

The Board is responsible for overseeing the management of the
Company’s business and affairs with the goal of maximizing long-
term value for shareholders, while balancing broader stakeholder
interests. Schedule of matters reserved for the Board include:

e  Strategy and management

e Group structure and capital

° Financial reporting and control

e Internal controls

° Major contracts

° Corporate communications

° Board membership and other appointments

e  Remuneration

e  Authority and delegation

e  Corporate governance

e  Company policies

Matters not specifically reserved for the Board and relate

primarily to the daily operations of the Group are delegated to the
management under the supervision and leadership of the CEO.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board Composition

As at the date of this Annual Report, the Board comprises two
Executive Directors, three Non-executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The size and composition
of the Board are reviewed from time to time, taking into account
the scope and nature of the Company’s operations, to ensure that
the size of the Board is adequate to provide a diversity of views
and facilitate effective decision-making. The biographical details
of all Directors and the relationships among them, if any, are set
out in the “Board of Directors and Senior Management” on pages
27 to 32 of this Annual Report and the Company’s website. Except
as disclosed in the section of “Board of Directors and Senior
Management”, none of the Directors has any financial, business,
family or other material or relevant relationships among members
of the Board and the Company has received annual confirmation
of independence from each of the Independent Non-executive
Directors.

The Company is committed to selecting the most appropriate
persons as members of the Board for the role. Since 2013, the
Board has adopted a Board Diversity Policy which has been
published on the Company’s website for better transparency and
corporate governance.

The selection of Board members is based on a range of diverse
perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural
background and ethnicity, in addition to educational background,
professional experience, skills, knowledge and length of service.
The ultimate decision will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates can bring to the Board.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
TEERRE

To assist the Board in the execution of its duties, the Board has ZEEe@EUEEEZESERIETRHRS  UE
delegated specific functions to four Board Committees. The EEEHTHBE FEESEZESTAEX
principal Board Committees are the Audit Committee, Remuneration ZE®  -FHFMWZES - ERZEERRKREZE
Committee, Nomination Committee and Investment Committee, &> F¥FHIWOT :

details of which are as follows:

Date of Date of

first appointment last re-election

to the Board as Director Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment

Position HREZRA BiE-AEZEM  Committee  Committee Committee Committee
B ESeHENAY REZNAEH ENZEe §MZEE HKEZEe REZEE

Ma Yuchuan Non-executive Director/Chairman 14 March 2018 6 June 2018
EX) FUTES/IER 2018E3A14F  2018%6A6H | /
Li Jun Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 7 June 2017
£ FHTES 2014%8A108  20176A7H |
Yu Jian Non-executive Director 6 June 2019 N/A
Ef FHTES 201966868  TEM / /
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond  Executive Director/CEO 20 March 2019 5 June 2019
Iz HTES/THER 2019538208 2019F6A5H C
Lo Wai Ming Executive Director 7 June 2016 5 June 2019
ERH HTES 20166870  2019%6A5H {
Leung Heung Ying Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 6 June 2018
22K BUXHTES 20148A108  2018%6A6H C / { |
Sheu Wei Fu Independent Non-executive Director 8 October 2014 5 June 2019
FEx BUKUTES 2014E8A108  2019%6A5H C /
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph  Independent Non-executive Director 6 July 2011 6 June 2018
R BUFHTES 201157868 201856868 / | C |

C - chairman of the committee Z5 & % /&
\ — member of the committee ZE8 €54 5

The Company has taken appropriate insurance cover to indemnify AATEBESSEARE  UREESELE
our Directors against possible claims and liabilities arising out of the BEXERFEBMUKEELENRERST -
Group’s business and activities.

36 Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual Report 2019



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

Board meetings and Board practices

The Board has scheduled to meet for at least four times a year,
and the Board will also meet on other occasions when a board-
level decision on a particular matter is required. The meetings are
structured to allow open discussion. All Directors participate to
discuss the strategy, operational and financial performance and
internal control of the Group.

The company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”)
assists the Chairman to prepare the agenda of the meetings and
each Director may request to include any relevant matters on the
agenda. Generally, at least 14 days’ notice is given for the regular
meetings by the Company. All substantive agenda items have
comprehensive briefing papers, which are, in general, circulated
three days before convening each Board meeting.

The Company Secretary is responsible for distributing detailed
documents to the Directors prior to the Board meetings to ensure
that the Directors are able to make informed decisions regarding
the matters discussed in the meetings so that they may receive
accurate, timely and clear information.

Minutes of the Board, Board Committee and General Meetings
are kept by the Company Secretary and are made available and
circulated to all Directors periodically.

All Directors may access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary who regularly updates the Board on governance and
regulatory matters. The Company Secretary is also responsible
for ensuring the procedures of the Board meetings are observed
and providing the Board with opinions on matters in relation to the
compliance with the procedures of the Board meetings.

Directors are able, upon reasonable request, to seek independent
professional advice in appropriate circumstances, at the Company’s
expenses. The Board shall resolve to provide separate appropriate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist the
relevant Directors to discharge their duties.

If a substantial shareholder or a Director has a conflict of interest
in a matter to be considered by the Board, the Company will deal
with the matter by a physical board meeting rather than written
resolution or a Board Committee (except if that Board Committee
was specifically established for such purpose). Independent Non-
executive Directors with no material interest in the matter will attend
the meeting to deal with the matter if it is considered appropriate.
Other than the exceptional criteria allowed under the Listing Rules,
any Director who or whose associates have any material interest in
any proposed Board resolutions will not be counted as a quorum
in the relevant Board meeting or no vote for the relevant Board
resolutions.

All the Board Committees adopted the same principles and
procedures used in the Board meetings.
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Board meetings, Board Committees EXxegeE EEZEEEEX
meetings and General Meetings BREXE
The attendance of Directors at Board meetings, Board Committees AEEEZEEHENEESSER EEEZEST
meetings and General Meetings during the year are set out below: ERBREASHBIRATER:
Annual Audit Remuneration Nomination Investment
General Board Committee Committee Committee  Committee
Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting Meeting
R Eze ENZES ¥Mz8e REZEE REZEE
BEXE = % g3 % g%
Number of meetings held BTEENY 1 10 2 6 3 3
Number of meetings attended/Eligible to attend in 2019
Members of the Board Ezeng HEEENE 20195 REEREREESE
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan (Chairman) ® EXN(ERE)0 1/1 9/10 11 3/3 11 2/2
Li Rongxin FHEN 4/4 2/2
Li Jun e 0/1 1/10 1/3
Yu Jian (@ B 3/3 11 2/2
Executive Directors HITES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (CEQ) ™ TES(THER)Y i 6/6 33
Yeh Tsuei Chi© BEEZV 2/2
Lo Wai Ming EEH 17 8/8 3/3
Independent Non-executive Directors B #TES
Leung Heung Ying P 11 9/10 212 6/6 3/3 2/3
Sheu Wei Fu SFEX 1/1 10/10 6/6 3/3
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph HRAE 11 10/10 2/2 6/6 3/3 3/3

() Appointed as Chairman on 28 May 2019

(i) Resigned as director on 28 May 2019

(i) Appointed as director on 6 June 2019

(iv)  Appointed as director/CEO on 20 March 2019
(v)  Resigned as director/CEO on 20 March 2019

Pursuant to the Code Provision A.6.7, Independent Non-executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors should attend general
meetings. According to the above table, all the Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive
Directors were present at the 2019 AGM and available to answer
questions from shareholders of the Company except Dr. Li Jun who
was busy at a business ftrip.

Directors’ continuous training and
development

The Group has been responsible for arranging and funding suitable
training, placing an appropriate emphasis on the roles, functions
and duties of a listed company director to all the Directors of
the Company. All the Directors of the Company understand that
they should participate in continuous professional development
to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills to ensure that
they are equipped with all information required for making relevant
contributions to the Board.
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The Company provides various guideline materials to Directors, for
instance, Directors’ duties and responsibilities, the relevant laws
and regulations applicable to Directors and duty of disclosure of
interest and business of the Group. Every newly appointed Director
will receive a comprehensive induction session at his appointment.
All Directors are encouraged to have continuous professional
development to enhance and refresh their knowledge and skills.

In 2019, all of the Directors attended the seminars or read
materials on the corporate governance, updates on laws, rules
and regulations and other professional skills. Directors were also
encouraged to take educational courses on duties of the directors.

The Board has received from each of the Directors (Independent
Non-executive Directors, Non-executive Directors and Executive
Directors) of the Company a record of the training received for the
year ended 2019 indicating their compliance to the Code Provision
A.6.5.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsibilities of the Non-executive Chairman,
Mr. Ma Yuchuan, and the CEO, Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
are segregated as stipulated in the Listing Rules, to ensure an
appropriate balance of power, increased accountability and greater
capacity of the Board for independent decision-making.

The Non-executive Chairman, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, is responsible for
ensuring that all Directors act in the best interest of shareholders.
Acting independently from the Company, he is fully accountable
to the shareholders and contributes to the Board and the Group
on all top-level or strategic decisions. Specifically, he is assigned
with three key roles to perform, namely leading the Board, ensuring
the Group’s effective communication with shareholders and
implementing a high standard of corporate governance.

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond, as CEO, is responsible for managing
the Group and executing the strategies adopted by the Board.
He leads the Group’s management team in accordance with the
directions set by the Board. He is responsible for ensuring that
a proper internal control system is in place and that the Group’s
business conforms to applicable laws and regulations. The CEO
chairs the monthly operations and financial reviews and also
the weekly management staff meetings, as well as the quarterly
employees’ communication meeting.

Directors’ appointment, re-election and
removal

At every annual general meeting of the Company, one-third of the
Directors for the time being, or, if their number is not three or a
multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than one-
third shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every Director
shall retire from office at least once every three years or within such
other period as the rules of the Stock Exchange may from time to
time prescribe. A retiring Director shall be eligible for re-election and
shall continue to act as a Director at the annual general meeting at
which he retires.
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In order to promote the independence of Non-executive Directors
and Independent Non-executive Directors, the Company
implemented the policy regarding the terms of office of Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
(“Service Term Policy”). The terms of appointment of all Non-
executive Directors and Independent Non-executive Directors
should not be more than nine consecutive years. They should not
offer themselves for re-election for any period beyond the annual
general meeting at which they retire.

Non-executive Directors

The Non-executive Directors bring a wide range of skills, industry
and business experience to the Group. The composition of
Executive and Non-executive Directors (including Independent Non-
executive Directors) demonstrates a strong independent element
on the Board, which can effectively exercise independent judgment
pursuant to the Code Provision A.3 so as to further strengthen the
Company’s corporate governance. The Non-executive Directors are
of sufficient caliber and number for their views to carry weight. At
least once a year, Non-executive Directors and also Independent
Non-executive Directors will have a private discussion with the
Chairman on the Group’s matters. In addition, Non-executive
Directors, according to the Group’s policy, may approach the
Group’s employees at anytime they think appropriate. During the
year, the Group’s management also met with certain Non-executive
Directors to seek their views on certain business or operational
matters.

During the year 2019, the Board had a total of three Independent
Non-executive Directors and they represented more than one-third
of the Board, which is a sufficient number to meet the minimum
requirements under Rule 3.10(1) and Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules.

All Independent Non-executive Directors bring their wealth of
experience to the Board and make active contributions to the
Group. They closely monitor the Group’s development and freely
express their opinions at the Board meetings. All Independent Non-
executive Directors, except as disclosed in this Annual Report,
do not have any business with or financial interests in the Group
and confirmed their independence to the Group pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all Independent
Non-executive Directors to be independent in accordance with the
independence guidelines set out in the Listing Rules.

Subject to re-election according to the procedures set out in the
Company’s Articles of Association, the Company has entered
into service contracts for a specific term ended on 30 June
2019 with each of the Non-executive Directors and Independent
Non-executive Directors.
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Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises one Non-executive
Director and three Independent Non-executive Directors. A majority
of the votes in the Remuneration Committee are exercisable by
Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee does not
deal with the remuneration of Non-executive Directors which shall
be a matter for the Executive Directors of the Board. No Director
or senior executive will be involved in any discussion in connection
with his or her own remuneration. The Committee also consults
the Chairman about their proposals relating to the remuneration of
other Executive Directors and has access to professional advice if
considered necessary. The Committee consulted the head of human
resources in respect of human resources policy and market as well
as other company information.

The meetings of the Remuneration Committee shall normally be
held not less than once a year to review and approve principally
the remuneration of Executive Directors of the Company. The
Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Sheu Wei Fu, has delegated
to the CEO the authority to approve the remuneration of all the
employees of the Group below the rank of Executive Director. Policy
related remuneration schemes will be decided by the Remuneration
Committee.

The main duties of the Remuneration Committee are as follows:

e To determine the framework and broad policy for the
remuneration of Directors, senior management and general
staff

e To establish guidelines for the recruitment of the Chief
Executive Officer and senior management

e To approve the policy and structure for the remuneration of
Directors (including Non-executive Directors) whilst ensuring no
Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own
remuneration

e  To determine the remuneration of Executive Directors including
benefits in kind, pension right and compensation payment

e To review and approve the compensation arrangements
in connection with any loss or termination of their office
or appointment, or dismissal or removal for misconduct to
Executive Directors and senior management which shall be fair
and not excessive

e To review the criteria for assessing the performance of the
Executive Directors and/or senior management which should
reflect the Company’s business objectives and targets

e To determine the annual performance bonus for Executive
Directors and review the annual performance bonus for senior
management achievements against the performance criteria
and by reference to market norms

e To engage such external professional advisors to assist and/or
advise the Remuneration Committee on issues as it considers
necessary
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In 2019, the Remuneration Committee confirmed the remuneration
policy for the Executive Directors, assessed their performances as
well as reviewed their employment contracts with the Group. Details
of remuneration of Directors and the senior management can be
obtained in note 9(b) of the Notes to the Consolidated Financial
Statements section.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises one Non-executive Director
and three Independent Non-executive Directors, with a majority
being Independent Non-executive Directors. The Committee
generally meets before the annual general meeting, or at other times
as required by the Chairman of the Committee.

The Nomination Committee, led by the Chairman Mr. Yiu Tin
Chong, Joseph, will identify qualified candidates to fill the Board
membership whenever such vacancy arises. It will hominate such
candidates for the Board to consider, and regularly review the
composition of the Board as well as make suggestions on any
change that may be required.

The main duties of the Nomination Committee are as follows:

° To review the structure, size and composition of the Board at
least annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to implement the Company’s corporate
strategy

e To assess the independence of Independent Non-executive
Directors

e To identify and nominate candidates to the Board for it to
appoint or to recommend to shareholders for election

e To regularly review the time required from a Director to perform
his responsibilities

e To make recommendations to the Board on relevant matters
relating to the succession planning for the Chairman, the Chief
Executive Officer as well as the senior management

e To review the Board Diversity Policy, as appropriate; and the
progress on achieving the objectives set for implementing the

policy

In 2019, the Nomination Committee reviewed the policy for the
nomination of Directors, the nomination procedures, the process
and criteria to select and recommend candidate for directorship and
the Board Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee considers
that the current Board composition has provided the Company with
a good balance and diversity of skills and experiences appropriate
for the business of the Company.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity Policy, as
appropriate, to ensure its continued effectiveness. The Nomination
Committee will discuss any revisions that may be required, and
recommend any such revisions to the Board for consideration and
approval.
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Investment Committee

The Investment Committee comprises two Executive Directors,
two Non-executive Directors and two Independent Non-executive
Directors. It shall meet at the request of any member of the
Committee and its meetings will be facilitated by the Finance
Director, who will also participate in the discussion.

The Investment Committee, currently chaired by Mr. Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond, will evaluate and approve any strategic investment
of US$2 million or less. Any strategic investment exceeding
that amount will be proposed by the Committee for the Board’s
approval. The Committee is authorized, at the expense of the
Group, to seek external professional advice it considers necessary
and to arrange external advisers to attend its meetings. The
Committee will also periodically report the status and performance
of investments to the Board.

The main duties of the Investment Committee are as follows:

e To assist the Board in discharging its duties and responsibilities
in relation to investment activities (excluding treasury or cash
management)

e To assist the Board with all of its policy setting responsibilities
related to investment

e To establish and document the basic investment principles and
beliefs held by the Committee as well as the Code of Conduct
for avoiding possible conflict of interest

e To have all necessary access and authority to seek information
from management to fulfill its objectives, duties and
responsibilities

e To review the appointment of external professional advisers
e To review and monitor investment performance

e To review and advise on additions to and dispositions of
existing investments

e  To review annually the terms of reference of the Committee and
to recommend to the Board any required changes

e To submit an annual work report to the Board summarizing the
Committee’s activities, findings, recommendations and results
for the past year

In 2019, the Investment Committee has reviewed and monitored
the performance of investments and made recommendations to the
Board on investment proposals.
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee comprises two Independent Non-executive
Directors and one Non-executive Director and is chaired by
Mr. Leung Heung Ying (“Mr. Leung”). Mr. Leung is a fellow member
of the Institute of Chartered Accountants in England and Wales, and
the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and has
many years of corporate finance experience at company board level.
Mr. Leung meets the requirement of having appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise under Rule 3.10(2) of the Listing Rules for the purpose of
such appointment.

The Audit Committee meets not less than twice a year to review
and discuss the internal audit findings, internal controls, corporate
governance, interim and annual consolidated financial statements
respectively. It may hold additional meetings from time to time to
discuss special projects or other issues it considers necessary. The
independent auditor and internal auditor of the Group may request a
meeting if they consider it necessary.

The Audit Committee will conduct, on behalf of the Board, annual
review of the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience
of staff for the Group’s accounting and financial reporting function,
and training programs and budget.

The authorities of the Audit Committee include (i) investigating any
activity within its terms of reference; (ii) seeking any information it
requires from any employee; and (iii) obtaining outside legal or other
independent professional advice if required.

The main duties of the Audit Committee are as follows:

e To make recommendations to the Board on the appointment,
re-appointment and removal of the independent auditor, and
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
independent auditor, and deal with any question of resignation
or dismissal of that auditor

e To review with the Group’s management, independent auditor
and internal auditor, the adequacy of the Group’s policies and
procedures regarding risk management and internal control
systems, and any statement by the Directors to be included in
the annual accounts prior to endorsement by the Board

e To review independent auditor’s independence, objectivity,
effectiveness of the audit process and the scope of the
independent audit including the engagement letter, prior to
commencement of audit
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e To review the annual, quarterly (if any) and interim financial
reports prior to approval by the Board and liaise with the Board
and senior management, and the Committee must meet, at
least twice a year, with the independent auditor

e To evaluate the cooperation received by the independent
auditor; obtain the comments of management regarding the
responsiveness of the independent auditor to the Group’s
needs; inquire the independent auditor as to whether there
have been any disagreements with the management which
if not satisfactorily resolved would result in the issue of a
qualified report on the Group’s financial statements

° To seek from the independent auditor, on an annual basis,
information about policies and processes for maintaining
independence and monitoring compliance with relevant
requirements, including provision of non-audit services and
requirements regarding rotation of audit partners and staff

° To review and monitor the scope, effectiveness and results
of internal audit function, ensure co-ordination between the
internal and independent auditors and ensure that the internal
audit function is adequately resourced and has appropriate
standing within the Group

e To discuss with management the scope and quality of systems
of internal control and ensure that management has discharged
its duty to have an effective internal control system including
the adequacy of resources, qualifications and experience of
staff of the accounting and financial reporting function, and
their training programs and budget

e To review the findings of internal investigations and the
management’s response into any suspected frauds or
irregularities or failures of internal controls or infringements of
laws, rules and regulations

e To consider other topics, as defined by the Board

The Audit Committee held two meetings during the year ended
31 December 2019 to review and discuss the financial results and
reports, financial reporting and compliance procedures, internal
control system and risk management review and process, to
evaluate the effectiveness of internal audit function by reviewing the
work performed by Corporate Audit Section and to re-appoint of the
independent auditor of the Group.
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As the Audit Committee is also responsible for corporate
governance duties, the Committee performed the following duties
during the year ended 31 December 2019:

e To note the amendments to Corporate Governance Code under
Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules from time to time in particular
in the area of risk management, and to review the Group’s
policies and practices on corporate governance to ensure
compliance

e To review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management

e To review and monitor the policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements

e To review and monitor the Code of Conduct applicable to
employees and the Directors

e To review the compliance with the Code Provisions and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report

Accountability and audit

Financial reporting

The Directors of the Company acknowledge their responsibilities
to present a balanced, clear and understandable assessment in
the consolidated financial statements of the annual and interim
reports. The Directors have prepared the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis, with supporting assumptions
or qualifications as necessary. When the Directors are aware of
material uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern, such uncertainties will be clearly and prominently set out
and discussed at length in this Corporate Governance Report.

Auditor’s remuneration

The Group’s independent auditor is Ernst & Young. Ernst & Young
is responsible for auditing and forming an independent opinion on
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements. Apart from
the statutory audit of the annual consolidated financial statements,
Ernst & Young was also engaged to perform a review on the
condensed consolidated interim financial information of the Group
for the six months ended 30 June 2019 as well as advise the Group
on taxation and related matters.

The fees payable by the Group to the independent auditor in respect
of audit and non-audit services provided by them for the year
ended 31 December 2019 are US$129,000 (2018: US$138,500) and
US$65,800 (2018: US$65,400) respectively.
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Company Secretary

The Company Secretary is responsible for advising the Board
through the Chairman on governance matters and should also
facilitate induction and continuous training of Directors. In 2019, the
Company Secretary has undertaken more than 15 hours of relevant
professional training which excessed the requirement of Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules.

Shareholders’ rights and investor relations

Shareholders’ rights of the Company are at all times highly
regarded by the Group. The Group will make sure the Company’s
shareholders know how to exercise their rights. The Group provides
effective channels for the Company’s shareholders to communicate
their ideas to the Group and exert their rights.

Pursuant to the Company’s Articles of Association, any two or more
members of the Company shall also be able to convene general
meetings on the written requisition deposited at the principal office
of the Company in Hong Kong.

The Company amended the Memorandum and Articles of
Association of the Company in order to bring the same in line with
the recent amendments to the Listing Rules and Companies Law of
the Cayman Island, and the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong) in 2014.

With regard to general enquiry, a shareholder may contact the
Company’s Share Registrar directly. Information on proceedings
at general meetings, votes of members, proxies, dividends and
reserves, transfer of shares and other information are detailed in
the Company’s Memorandum and Articles of Association, which is
accessible for inspection at the Company’s Share Registrar, through
website of the Group or the website of the Stock Exchange. The
contact details of the Share Registrar is on page 174 of this Annual
Report. In the event that a shareholder wishes to put forward a
proposal to the Board, he may put forth his enquiry in writing to the
Corporate Communications Section of the Group who will act on the
subject matter accordingly.

Shareholders communication

The Company considers that communication with its shareholders
is essential for enhancing investor relations and its shareholders’
understanding of the Group’s business performance and strategies.
The Board adopted a Shareholders’ Communication Policy,
which is published on the Company website, reflecting mostly
the current practices of the Company for communication with
its shareholders. Such policy aims at providing the shareholders
and potential investors with ready and timely access to balanced
and understandable information of the Company. The Board will
regularly reviewed the policy and considered the effectiveness and
compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other requirements.
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For the year under review, the Group has taken a proactive
approach to communicate with the investment community, for
example, institutional investors, analysts and retail investors. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group conducted meetings
and conference calls with investors and analysts. To enhance the
Group’s profile among the general public in Hong Kong, interviews
were conducted with local media, and group visits to its principal
office were arranged with local universities and technology
institutions.

The views of investors are invaluable to the Company. To improve
its communication with investors, the Company has been collecting
ideas from shareholders and feedback from the investment
community since listing. The Company also appreciates the
opportunity to meet shareholders face-to-face. The Company’s
Articles of Association has accommodated the use of websites for
communication with shareholders since 2009.

The Company establishes different communication channels with
shareholders and investors, including (i) annual reports, interim
reports, notices of meetings, circulars and proxy forms which are
required under the Listing Rules. Shareholders can also choose (or
are deemed to have consented) to receive such documents using
electronic means through the Company’s website; (ii) the annual
general meeting which provides a forum for shareholders to raise
comments and exchange views with the Board; (iii) the Company’s
website which provides updated and key information on the Group
and offers a communication channel between the Company and its
shareholders and stakeholders; (iv) media conferences and briefing
meetings with analysts to be held to update interested parties on
the performance of the Group; (v) the Company’s Registrar which
deals with shareholders for share registration and related matters;
and (vi) the Corporate Communications Section of the Group which
handles enquiries from shareholders and investors generally.

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, as at 31 December 2019,
Huada/CEC held about 28.5% of the Company’s shares, the Board
held roughly 2.0%, and the remaining approximately 69.5%, is
believed to be in public hands.

The website of the Group (www.solomon-systech.com) is also
updated constantly to inform investors and the general public of
the latest information of the Group, for example, the important
dates for shareholders in the coming year. Further information for
shareholders can be found on pages 174 to 176 of this Annual
Report.
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Risk management and internal control

The Board has responsibilities for maintaining and reviewing the
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
systems. The risk management and internal control systems within
the Group are designed to help the Group achieve key initiatives,
and represent the Group’s efforts in protecting its physical assets,
information and technology. As maintaining an effective control
system is a shared responsibility of all in the Group, the Group is
dedicated to educating all employees via trainings to ensure they
understand the importance of internal control policies and adhere to
them.

To facilitate effective internal control system, the Group adopted the
Internal Control-Integrated Framework issued by COSO (the “2013
Framework”). The presence of risk management and internal control
systems empowers the Group to implement best business practices
in dynamic and challenging business environments.

The Group implemented the ‘Three Lines of Defence’ model as a
way of explaining the relationship between functions and as a guide
to how responsibilities of risk management should be divided:

o Under the first line of defence, operational management
has ownership, responsibility and accountability for directly
assessing, controlling and mitigating risks;

e The second line of defence consists of activities covered by
components of internal governance (compliance, financial
controller, quality, IT and other control departments). This
line of defence monitors and facilitates the implementation
of effective risk management practices by operational
management and assists the risk owners in reporting adequate
risk related information up and down the organization; and

° Internal audit forms the Group’s third line of defence. The
Corporate Audit Section, through a risk-based approach to its
work, provides reasonable assurance to the Group’s board of
directors and senior management.

The Group takes proactive measures to identify, evaluate and
manage significant risks arising from its recurrent and growth
businesses and from the constantly changing business environment.
The Group uses risk management matrix to determine risk level.
Each risk is evaluated by the likelihood of the identified risk and the
consequence of the risk event. The risk ratings reflect the required
management attention and risk treatment effort. All risks are ranked
and their treatment is determined by a combination of likelihood and
consequence according to a risk matrix, which takes account of risk
appetite. Operation units and management held regular meetings to
review the progress of risk treatment actions and the effectiveness
of the risk management.
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The board oversees the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems on an ongoing basis. Risk management was
established as one of the agenda items in board meeting on
13 March 2019 and board of directors have reviewed the risk
management framework and process, company’s strategic goals,
risk appetite, and the update of risk management matrix, covering
risks in business, operation, finance and compliance, in the meeting
held on 21 August 2019.

The Board reviewed and assessed the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31
December 2019, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, and risk management functions, by considering:

(a) the changes in the nature and extent of significant risks, and
the Group’s ability to respond to changes in its business and
the external environment;

(b) the scope and quality of management’s ongoing monitoring of
risks and of the internal control systems, and the work of its
internal audit function and independent auditor;

(c) the extent and frequency of communication of monitoring
results to the board which enables it to assess control of the
Group and the effectiveness of risk management;

(d) significant control failings or weaknesses that have been
identified during the period (if any). Also, the extent to which
they have resulted in unforeseen outcomes or contingencies
that have had, could have had, or may in the future have,
a material impact on the Group’s financial performance or
condition;

(e) the effectiveness of the Group’s processes for financial
reporting and Listing Rule compliance;

() The adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and experience,
training program and budget of the Groups’ accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions; and

(g) The proper handling and dissemination of inside information.

The Board also reviewed the Group’s operating and financial
performance against the financial budget on a quarterly basis while
senior management closely monitored the financial performance on
a monthly basis.

The management is committed to improve the Group’s overall risk
management approach and strategy. They continuously monitors
the global business environment, industry development, as well
as internal processes, to ensure the existing risk management
and internal control systems can identify and manage risks and
opportunities effectively.
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In 2019, the management reviewed the existing risk management
and internal control systems and further modification of the system
will be implemented in the coming year. The management continues
to review the adequacy of its risk management and control
framework and looks for opportunities to make improvements and
add appropriate resources when necessary.

The Group has an independent Corporate Audit Section, reporting
directly to the Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section
provides an independent assessment of the effectiveness of
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems in
accordance with the Code, and assists the Audit Committee
to conduct regular reviews of the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems, which include the review of the
effectiveness of financial, operational and compliance controls and
risk management functions. The Corporate Audit Section follows
a risk-based approach. Different audit areas are assigned with
different risk ratings and an audit plan is formulated accordingly
so that priority and appropriate audit frequency is given to areas
with higher risks. The annual work plan is reviewed and endorsed
by the Audit Committee. The Corporate Audit Section conducts
regular financial and operational reviews on the Group and reports
directly to the Chairman of the Audit Committee regularly. The
Corporate Audit Section monitors the follow up actions agreed upon
in response to its recommendations.

The Corporate Audit Section updates CEO about the internal audit
working progress on a weekly basis. The Audit Committee reviews
the work performed by Corporate Audit Section and summary of
major findings and control weaknesses, if any, at least twice every
year to ensure the effectiveness of internal audit function, risk
management and internal control system.

The Group has established and published a whistleblowing policy
and a system on anti-fraud for employees and third parties to raise
concerns in confidence, which complied with the recommended
best practice in the Code. In 2019, no incident of fraud or
misconduct was reported from employees or stakeholders that
had material effect on the Group’s financial statements and overall
operations.

The Board confirmed a review of the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems has been conducted and
considered that the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group in 2019 are effective and adequate and the Company
had complied with the Code Provisions.

The Board acknowledged the responsibility to review the effective
of risk management and internal controls systems of the Group.
However, investors and shareholders are reminded that the systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended
31 December 2019.

Principal activities and geographical
analysis of operations

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The activities of the subsidiaries are set out in note 18 to the
consolidated financial statements.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the year by business
segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Results and appropriations

The results of the Group for the year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 75.

The Board of the Company does not recommend the payment of a
final dividend.

Donations

Charitable and other donations made by the Group during the year
amounted to Nil (2018: US$5,000).

Share capital

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial statements.

Distributable reserves

Distributable reserves of the Company as at 31 December 2019,
comprising share premium reserve of US$109,103,000 that is
subject to the regulation of Section 34 of the Cayman lIslands
Companies Law and the Articles of Association of the Company, the
accumulated losses of US$103,444,000, totaling US$5,659,000 net
are available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders.

Equity linked agreements - Share options
granted to directors and employees

Details of the share options granted in prior years and current year
are set out in note 25 of the consolidated financial statements and
“The Share Option Scheme” section contained in this Report of the
Directors. All the share options granted during the year are with
vesting conditions, there was no share issued for the year ended 31
December 2019 in respect of share options granted in 2019.
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Pre-emptive rights

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there is no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

Five-year financial summary

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years ended 31 December is set out
on page 169.

Purchase, sale or redemption of Company’s
listed shares

There was no purchase, sale or redemption of the Company’s listed
shares by the Company or any of its subsidiaries during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Permitted indemnity provisions

At no time during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were there any permitted indemnity provisions in force for the
benefit of any of the Directors of the Company (whether made by
the Company or otherwise).

The Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013 Share
Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting held on 28 May
2013. Details can be referred to note 25 to the consolidated
financial statements on pages 156 to 159 of this Annual Report.

Valuation of share options

The Company uses Binomial Valuation Model to value the share
options granted. Details of the key parameters used in the Model
and the corresponding fair values of the share options granted
during the year should be referred to note 25(a) to the consolidated
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AN EEFRERCERADTNEM
EETWESHAQARAMDTFNL) -

BT E

ANTN2013FE5 28 BITHRRBE RS
EEMm—BRESE (2013 IRESTE) -
HBEAZERERFE156 1598 Wird 15K
K HzE25 o
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financial statements. The details of the share options granted to the EATHBREFHBNOT :
respective parties during 2019 and 2018 are as follows:
2019 2018
Number Number
(in thousand (in thousand
units) Value units) Value
gE BE ?ﬁ% fBfE
(AFfzzh) T£R (AFzzt) Y
Leung Heung Ying RER 800 4 800 7
Sheu Wei Fu FHEX 800 4 800 7
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph BRHE 800 4 800 7
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEX 2,000 15 - -
Subtotal for Directors £\ 4,400 27 2,400 21
Senior management BRERE 100 1 - -
Total st 4,500 28 2,400 21
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Details of the share options outstanding as at 31 December 2019

FA2019F 1231 H B M2013B R EFT B E H

under the 2013 Share Option Scheme are as follows: ZHEBENFEROT
Number of share options (in thousand units) Exercise period
BRESE (AT it
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised Forfeited Held on
Held on during during during 31 December  Exercise price
Name of Directors 1 January 2019 the year the year the year 2019 HK$ Grant date Begins Ends
20195 R R 3 20195 il
£ 1A18%E BEY B CHEME  12R%1AKAE B RitAH B £R
Independent Non-executive Directors
BUFHES
Leung Heung Ying 800 - - (800) = 0.305 30 September 2016 3 October 2017 30 September 2019
PEES 2016598308 2017E10A38  2019F9A30A
800 - - - 800 0.370 9 QOctober 2017 2 October 2018 30 September 2020
201710A9A 2018F10A2A 2020F9A308
800 - - - 800 0.254 9 October 2018 2 October 2019 30 September 2021
2018%10A9A 2019510A2A 202159308
- 800 - - 800 0.159 30 December 2019 2 October 2020 30 September 2022
2019%12A308 2020510A2A 20229308
2,400 800 - (800) 2,400
Sheu Wei Fu 800 - - (800) - 0.305 30 September 2016 3 October 2017 30 September 2019
FHEX 2016F9A308  2017F10838 20199308
800 - - - 800 0.370 9 October 2017 2 October 2018 30 September 2020
17F10898  2018F10A28  2020F9A308
800 - - - 800 0.254 9 QOctober 2018 2 October 2019 30 September 2021
2018F10898 201910828 2021F9A30A
- 800 - - 800 0.159 30 December 2019 2 October 2020 30 September 2022
2019%12A308 2020510A2A 20229308
2,400 800 - (800) 2,400
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph 800 - - (800) - 0.305 30 September 2016 3 October 2017 30 September 2019
K 2016F9A308  2017F10A3R  2019F9A30A
800 - - - 800 0.370 9 QOctober 2017 2 October 2018 30 September 2020
17F10B98  2018F10A28  2020F9A30R
800 - - - 800 0.254 9 QOctober 2018 2 October 2019 30 September 2021
2018F10898 201910828 2021F9A30R
- 800 - - 800 0.159 30 December 2019 2 October 2020 30 September 2022
19128308 2020F10A28 2022498308
2,400 800 - (800) 2,400
Subtotal
gt 7,200 2,400 - (2,400) 7,200
BPAREERAT o 2019FF# 55
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Number of share options (in thousand units) Exercise period
SEIRER B (AT L3 figid ]
Lapsed/
Granted Exercised Forfeited Held on
Held on during during during 31 December  Exercise price
Name of Directors 1 January 2019 the year the year the year 2019 HKS$ Grant date Begins Ends
2019 £ R ER R20195F 4
Ezg 181858 254 B CHEME  12R%1AKAE BT RiAH il gR
Executive Directors
ez
Lo Wai Ming 3,000 - - (3,000) - 0.305 30 September 2016 1 April 2019 31 March 2021
EEH 2016597308 219F4A1R 2021%3A31A
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond 1,260 - - - 1,260 0.305 30 September 2016 2 April 2018 31 March 2020
IE% 201697307 18F4A2A 202037317
3,000 = - - 3,000 0.305 1 April 2019 31 March 2021
201954818 2021537310
- 2,000 - - 2,000 0.248 9 May 2019 2 January 2020 31 December 2021
20195589 20%F1A2R  2021F12A318
4,260 2,000 - - 6,260
Subtotal
Nt 7,260 2,000 - (3,000) 6,260
Ex-directors
HEE 1,000 - - - 1,000 0369 11 January 2016 2 April 2018 31 March 2020
2016F1A118 18F4A28  2000F3531H
1,000 - - - 1,000 0.369 2 January 2019 31 December 2020
191828 2000812831
2,500 - - (2,500) - 0.369 1 April 2019 31 March 2021
19%4A18 2001E3531A
2,500 - - (2,500) - 0.369 2 January 2020 31 December 2021
2020F1A28 2020812531
Subtotal
Nt 7,000 - - (5,000) 2,000
Senior management & others 200 - - (200) - 0315 2 October 2015 2 October 2017 30 September 2019
BRERERML 15F10A2A 2017%10A28 019F9A30H
100 - - (100) - 0.309 30 March 2015 3 April 2017 29 March 2019
01537307 20175453 0193729
- 50 - - 50 0.159 30 December 2019 2 January 2021 31 December 2022
2019127308 21F1A2R 2022F12A318
- 50 - - 50 0.159 2 January 2022 31 December 2023
20F1A2R  2023F12A318
Subtotal
gt 300 100 - (300) 100
Total
@it 21,760 4,500 - (10,700) 15,560
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The Group’s environmental policies and
performance

Other than financial performance, the Group believes that a high
standard of corporate social responsibility is essential for building
up a good corporate and social relationship and motivating staff and
creating a sustainable return to the Group. We are committed to
contributing to the sustainability of the environment and community
in which we conduct business and where our stakeholders live. The
Group’s Environmental, Social and Governance Report for 2019 will
be published on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Relationships with employees

People are the Group’s most valuable asset. The Group believes
in communicating with staff and giving them training and career
development opportunities. It also recognizes good performance. It
provides a variety of activities for staff to help them achieve work-
life balance. Remuneration packages are generally structured with
reference to prevailing market terms and individual’s qualifications.
Salaries and wages are normally reviewed on an annual basis based
on performance appraisals and other relevant factors.

Apart from salary payments, there are other staff benefits including
mandatory provident fund, medical insurance and performance
related bonus. Share options may also be granted to eligible
employees of the Group.

Directors

Directors during the year and up to the date of this Annual Report
were:

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph

Non-executive Directors

Mr. Ma Yuchuan

Dr. Li Jun

Mr. Yu Jian (appointed on 6 June 2019)
Mr. Li Rongxin (resigned on 28 May 2019)

Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (appointed on 20 March 2019)
Mr. Lo Wai Ming

Dr. Yeh Tsuei Chi (resigned on 20 March 2019)

In accordance with Article 112 of the Company’s Articles of
Association, Mr. Ma Yuchuan, Dr. Li Jun and Mr. Leung Heung Ying
will retire by rotation at the forthcoming annual general meeting and
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election.

Messrs. Leung Heung Ying, Sheu Wei Fu and Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph
are Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company and their
service contracts were renewed in 2019 for a term expiring on 30
June 2020.

EESHE
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Directors’ service contracts

None of the Directors who are proposed for re-election at the
forthcoming annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not determinable within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

Directors’ interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

No transactions, arrangements or contracts of significance in
relation to the Group’s business to which the Company, or its
subsidiaries, was a party and in which a Director of the Company
had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at
the end of the year or at any time during the year.

Biographical details of Directors and senior
management

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out on pages 27 to 32 of this Annual Report.

Directors’ interests

As at 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of each
Director and chief executive in the shares and underlying shares of
the Company or its associated corporations (within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance), as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under Section 352 of Part XV
of the SFO or as notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Companies were as follows:
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EESHE

Ordinary shares in the Company as at
31 December 2019
2019512 AL AEER
% of the
issued share
capital of the

Share Company
Position Shares Options® Total ERDFE
L 509 k& EREo @i BTRREAL
Independent Non-executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
LEUNG Heung Ying RER Long s - 2,400,000 2,400,000 0.10%
SHEU Wei Fu FEX Long #& - 2,400,000 2,400,000 0.10%
YIU Tin Chong, Joseph PN Long #& 2,000,000 2,400,000 4,400,000 0.18%
Non-executive Directors FHTES
LI Jun %k Long & - - - -
Ma Yuchuan 53 Long ## - - - -
Yu Jian B Long &% - - - -
Executive Directors BITES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond IEL Long ## 600,000 6,260,000 6,860,000 0.28%
LO Wai Ming Ef&H Long #& 33,572,179 - 33,572,179 1.35%
Notes: KiaE -
() Share options granted under the 2013 Share Option Scheme with more (i) ZZBERIESREL013HKEZ (FIEEE
details on pages 54 to 56. 54ZI56 H) 1R Z B IR FE -

(i)  The 4,260,000 share options of the Company granted to Wang Wah
Chi, Raymond on 30 September 2016 have been vested and exercisable
as at 31 December 2019 and also the date of this annual report. The
2,000,000 share options granted on 9 May 2019 have been vested as at
31 December 2019 and exercisable from 2 January 2020.

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year, Directors
and Chief Executive Officer (including their spouse and children
under 18 years of age) had any interests in, or had been granted, or
exercised, any rights to subscribe for shares of the Company and
its associated corporation required to be disclosed pursuant to the
SFO.

Mr. Lo Wai Ming (“Mr. Lo”), Executive Director of the Company
and a member of senior management of the Group, through
investment vehicles under their control disposed its shares in BJ-
LED, an associated company of the Group. Mr. Lo declared that his
percentage ownership in BJ-LED as at 31 December 2019 was 0%
(2018: 11.5%).

Saved as disclosed above, at no time during the year was the
Company, its subsidiaries or its associated corporation a party to
any arrangement to enable Directors and Chief Executive Officer
of the Company (including their spouse and children under 18
years of age) to hold any interests or short positions in the shares
or underlying shares in, or debentures of, the Company or its
associated corporation.

(i) R2016F9IHI0AEFEEXLEZ KL A
R 14,260,000/ - R20194E12H31H R F F
HACEFBREBEITE - R2019F5H9A K F
# 2 7K 22 §]2,000,000 R IE R ER2019E 125
31HEFBRIR20205F 1526 B EE7T1E »
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fARER] o
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Substantial shareholders’ interests

The register of substantial shareholders required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of Part XV of the SFO shows that as at
31 December 2019, the Company had been notified of the following
substantial shareholders’ interests and short positions in the shares
or underlying shares of the Company, being interests of 5% or
more of the Company’s issued share capital. These interests are in
addition to those disclosed above in respect of the Directors and
Chief Executive Officer of the Company.

FTERRER

RIESFOSEXVARSEIBBMRAFENEEZRRE
A MAT R > R20195F128318  AAAE
BHETIHETERRNWER LR (IRALR
AEBRITRAEBASNH U LER) - 25 ER
BEXRBENAQRRAESRITRARERS N
(o

Ordinary shares in the Company as at 31

December 2018
R20185F12A31 AR L AEER
Number of % of the issued

Number of share options share capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity Position  shares held held Total the Company
RRE® af BEmRE  FEROBE FEBREHE @it ERARERST

RAEAH

Huada Semiconductor Co., Ltd Beneficial owner Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.47%
ERYEEBRAT BREEA &R
China Electronics Corporation Interest of controlled corporation Long 706,066,000 - 706,066,000 28.47%
FEETEEEEREERAR FrEslnEEnER i
Note: KiaE -

(i)  CEC is a state-owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the People’s Republic of
China. Huada is a wholly-owned subsidiary of CEC.

(i) Subject to an acting-in-concert agreement between Huada and Dr. Yeh
Tsuei Chi (“Dr. Yeh”, the former Chief Executive Officer and Director)
as announced on 2 February 2016, Dr. Yeh is taken to be interested in
2,000,000 share options of the Company (within the meaning of Part XV
of the SFO), being interests under the share options granted to him, and
they represent approximately 0.08% of the issued share capital in the
Company as at 31 December 2019 and the date of this annual report.
The share options granted are exercisable as at 31 December 2019 and
the date of this annual report. Upon the exercise of these share options,
Dr. Yeh and Huada will together hold an aggregate of 708,066,000
shares of the Company representing approximately 28.54% of the then
issued share capital of the Company (on the assumption that no further
shares will be issued or repurchased by the Company).

Saved as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no other
persons (other than the Directors) were recorded in the register of
the Company required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO
as having interests or short positions in the shares and underlying
shares of the Company.
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Management contracts

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

Major suppliers and customers

The percentages of purchases and sales for the year attributable to
the Group’s major suppliers and customers are as follows:

Purchases 2

- the largest supplier —ERARHER

— five largest suppliers combined - hRHEEES
Sales HE

- the largest customer —BARF

- five largest customers combined -AREFEE

EESHE

EEEH

FRBESTRAFABEL LT 2HHIEFE
EMIEBNEERITHNEN -

TEHREBREFR

FEEIEHEBRLREFREAFENRBR
HEFMDLOT :

24%
67%

34%
62%

Saved as disclosed above, none of the Directors of the Company,
their associates or any shareholder (who to the knowledge of the
Directors own more than 5% of the Company’s share capital) had
any interest in the major suppliers or customers noted above.

Discloseable transactions

Except as disclosed under the following heading “Related parties
and connected transactions”, the Company did not conduct any
transaction which constituted a discloseable transaction under the
Listing Rules during the year.

Please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 22
October 2019.

BREXFIEESN  BIEADR 2ES - H
BASAEARR (RESAAEE A2 A RAE
5% EE)REMFTEREEANEFTERRE

= o

ATHERS
BTXIBE S REERS I FREN  AQT
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RS-

HE2EAATIBEE2019F10822B 2 0% -
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Related parties and connected transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group entered
into certain transactions with related parties as defined under
the applicable accounting standards, which include transactions
that constitute connected/continuing connected transactions for
which the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules have
been complied with. Details of the related party transactions are
disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated financial statements.
The following transactions between certain connected parties (as
defined in the Listing Rules) and the Group have been entered into
and/or are ongoing for which relevant announcements, if necessary,
had been made by the Company in accordance with Chapter 14A of
the Listing Rules.

Connected transactions

Beijing Huada Empyrean Software Co., Ltd.("HES”), an indirect
subsidiary of CEC - in connection with the renewal of the grant
of the License to the Group pursuant to the license renewal
agreements signed on 22 October 2019 for a two years’ term from
30 October 2019 to 29 October 2021.

Continuing connected transactions

(@) Panda-LCD, an associate of CEC - the sales of products by
the Group to Panda-LCD, a renewed continuing connected
transactions for years 2018 to 2020 as approved by the
shareholders at the Extraordinary General Meeting held on 29
December 2017.

(b) Panda-FPD, an associate of CEC - the sales of products by
the Group to Panda-FPD, a continuing connected transactions
for years 2018 to 2020 as approved by the shareholders at the
Annual General Meeting held on 29 December 2017.

(¢) On 17 July 2018, the Group entered into an agreement with
CEACI under which CEACI would purchase IC and driver
products from the Group for the years 2018 to 2020 as
approved by the shareholders at the Extraordinary General
Meeting held on 29 August 2018.
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The aforesaid connected transactions and continuing connected
transaction have been reviewed by independent non-executive
directors of the Company. The independent non-executive directors
confirmed that the aforesaid connected transactions were entered
into are (a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group; (b) either on normal commercial terms or on terms no less
favourable to the Group than terms available to or from independent
third parties; (c) in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing them on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Company and its shareholders as a whole; and (d)
within the annual cap.

The Independent Non-executive Directors of the Company, together
with the Group’s Corporate Audit Section and Audit Committee,
have conducted annual reviews of the continuing connected
transactions of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2019,
were satisfied that the Group’s continuing connected transactions
during 2019 have complied with the Listing Rules requirement in all
respects.

The Company’s independent auditor was engaged to report on
the Group’s continuing connected transactions in accordance
with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised)“Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice
Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions
under the Hong Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants. The auditor has issued an
unqualified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of
the continuing connected transactions disclosed for the year ended
31 December 2019 in accordance with paragraph 14A.38 of the
Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided by
the Company to the Stock Exchange.
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Sufficiency of public float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, it is confirmed that there
is sufficient public float of more than 25% of the Company’s issued
shares as at 27 March 2020.

Compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the Company has complied
with all the applicable Code Provisions in the Corporate Governance
Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules (“Appendix 14”).
To maintain high standards of corporate governance, the Company
has adopted the recommended best practices in Appendix 14 where
appropriate.

Compliance with the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers

The Company has its own written guidelines on securities
transactions by Directors and relevant employees on no less
exacting terms than the required standard set out in the Model Code
contained in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all Directors have confirmed that
they have been in compliance with such guidelines during the year
ended 31 December 2019.

Compliance with laws and regulations

To the best knowledge of the Directors, for the year ended 31
December 2019, the Group has complied, in all material respects,
with the relevant laws and regulations that have significant impact
on the operations of the Group.
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

Business review

The business review disclosure of the Group for the year as required
by Schedule 5 to the new Companies Ordinance are set out on
pages 13 to 25 of this Annual Report. The business review forms
part of this Report of the Directors.

Independent auditor

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2019 have been audited by Ernst & Young who retire at
the forthcoming annual general meeting and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-appointment.
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On behalf of the Board
REREES

Ma Yuchuan 5 E)I|
ChairmanZ &

Hong Kong, 27 March 2020
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EY::

To the shareholders of Solomon Systech (International) Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Solomon Systech (International) Limited (the “Company”)
and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 74 to 168, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss, the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position
of the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared in compliance
with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of
the consolidated financial statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with
the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our
audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.

We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit included
the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed
to address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying consolidated financial
statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (continued)

Impairments of goodwill and other intangible assets

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had goodwill before
impairment of US$2.3 million and other intangible assets
before impairment of US$9.4 million. During the vyear,
impairments of US$2.3 million and US$8.0 million were
made against goodwill and certain other intangible assets,
respectively.

Impairment assessment is performed by assessing the
recoverable amounts of the cash-generating units or group
of cash-generating units to which the goodwill and other
intangible assets relate. The recoverable amounts of the
cash-generating units have been determined based on a
value in use calculation using cash flow projections based on
financial budgets.

The impairment assessment is significant to our audit due to
(i) the magnitude of the carrying amounts involved; and (ii)
significant estimates involved in the estimation of the value
in use of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
and other intangible assets are allocated, including, among
others, expected future cash flows and discount rates.

The Group’s accounting policies, disclosures of estimation
uncertainty and impairment assessment of goodwill and other
intangible assets are included in notes 2.4, 4 and 14 to the
consolidated financial statements, respectively.

We assessed the key assumptions used in
management’s cash flow projections for impairment
assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets,
including, among others, budgeted revenue growth
rates, budgeted gross profit margin and discount
rates, taking into consideration the historical
results, market conditions and trends and reliability
of previous projections. We have also evaluated
the sensitivity of management estimates and
assumptions used in the cash flow projections.

In addition, we involved our valuation experts
to assist us in evaluating the methodology and
the discount rates adopted in the value in use
calculation using cash flow projections. We
also assessed the adequacy of disclosures in
connection with the impairment assessment of
goodwill and other intangible assets.

Write-down of inventories to net realisable value

The Group had inventories with carrying amount of US$26.8
million as at 31 December 2019, which represented 52.2% of
the Group’s net assets. The Group performs regular review
of the carrying amounts of inventories to determine if any
write-down of inventories to net realisable value is required
after considering the aged analyses of inventories, relevant
historical sales, usage reports and obsolescence.

The determination of net realisable value requires
management to make significant judgements and estimates
based on expectation about future market conditions.

The related disclosure of estimation uncertainty is included in
note 4 to the consolidated financial statements.

We evaluated management’s assessment of
whether the estimated net realisable values of
inventories declined below their carrying amounts.
Our procedures included understanding and
assessing the Group’s processes over identifying
and valuing obsolete, damaged, slow-moving,
excessive and other potentially impaired inventory
items for which their net realisable values might
decline below their carrying amounts; evaluating
the methodologies, inputs and assumptions used
by the Group in determining the net realisable
values of inventories; and assessing the write-
down of inventories required by testing the ageing
analyses of inventories, sales made and materials
used subsequent to the end of the reporting period
and historical sales and usage reports.
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OTHER INFORMATION INCLUDED IN THE ANNUAL REPORT

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual Report, other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If,
based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS FOR THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company are responsible for assessing the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to
cease operations or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging their responsibilities for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

° Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by the directors.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit
opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Wong Yat Kin.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2020
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS

maE

3 3}

For the year ended 31 December-2019

B Z2019%F 12H31H L F &
2019 2018
Notes US$°000 US$’000
MIaE TET EH
Revenue HES 5 108,323 98,148
Cost of sales $HE R (86,995) (69,980)
Gross profit ER 21,328 28,168
Research and development costs T 55 % BE 2% R AR (24,728) (31,482)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEBAX (3,133) (4,043)
Administrative expenses THEX (12,409) (13,154)
Other expenses Hipgx (13,532) -
Other income and gains - net Hibg A R Uz - F58 7 4,138 4,551
(28,336) (15,960)
Finance income - net REWRA - F5 8 1 1,970
(28,335) (13,990)
Share of profits of associates B E A RER 17 155 222
Loss before tax MRBRIEE 6 (28,180) (13,768)
Income tax credit Bk % 11 375 -
Loss for the year rEEFE (27,805) (13,768)
Attributable to: FEAL:
- Owners of the parent . WNCIEZ= N (27,272) (13,677)
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (533) (91)
(27,805) (13,768)
Loss per share attributable to ordinary ARXTEBEERZTAEA
equity holders of the parent: BB ERERE !
(expressed in US cent(s) per share) (UAEMN - BRZ5) 12
- Basic -HK (1.1) (0.55)
- Diluted = ! (1.1) (0.55)

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
e HEBARK

For-the year ended 31 December 2019

B 22019 12H31H IE F &
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FER E
Loss for the year REEEIE (27,805) (13,768)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) Htt2mEWB A (E18)
Other comprehensive income/(loss) that RERSE Hit2mE
may be reclassified to profit or loss in WA (EER) B EH
subsequent periods: PHEEEZR:
- Exchange differences arising on -RESNEREELE
translation of foreign operations ZEREE (53) 393
Other comprehensive income that will not be  REZHRE  Hab2EUA
reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent BresfosBEZERk:
periods:
- Equity investment designated at fair value - ZAFEEFAHEMEE
through other comprehensive income: WEHRERENT
Changes in fair value BEZE 90 -
Other comprehensive income for the year HtZmEUA 37 393
Total comprehensive loss for the year AEELHEBEARE (27,768) (13,375)
Attributable to: FEAL:
- Owners of the parent - KRATEBA (27,234) (13,283)
- Non-controlling interests - FERER (534) (92)
(27,768) (13,375)

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
E82E168E MM AZEREMBRERMARBH -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A B AR 3R

As at 31 December-2019

R2019F12H31H
2019 2018
Notes US$°000 US$’000
MIaE FEx EH
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREEE
Intangible assets mEEE 14 1,453 15,609
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERSEE 15 3,650 5,036
Right-of-use assets EREEE 16 1,697 -
Investments in associates REE QTR E 17 892 737
Equity investment designated at fair BRAFEEA
value through other comprehensive Hitt 2 E U=/
income BRERE 19 929 839
Prepayments and deposits EAREE® 22 333 525
Financial assets at fair value through midER UK AF
profit or loss BENVKERE 23 - 467
Total non-current assets FRBEELT 8,954 23,213
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 21 26,791 32,654
Trade and other receivables, B R BB
prepayments and deposits EARKRET£ 22 22,968 28,838
Financial assets at fair value through BRERURBRAFERE
profit or loss HETEEE 23 - 8,780
Pledged bank deposit DI R ITIER 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents HeRBRESEEY 20 18,078 13,395
Total current assets REBEEA 67,967 83,797
CURRENT LIABILITIES nREEE
Trade and other payables FE AR e E At FE A3 X 28 23,196 26,912
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITETEER 29 - 198
Lease liabilities HESE 16 1,292 -
Deferred income IEAEUT A 258 405
Tax payables iR EN 91 152
Total current liabilities pEII=KEtC 24,837 27,667
NET CURRENT ASSETS REBEEFE 43,130 56,130
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT REERRE
LIABILITIES af\ 52,084 79,343
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FRBAEE
Interest-bearing bank borrowings RITETEER 29 169 -
Lease liabilities HEEE 16 606 -
Deferred tax liability ELEFREHEaE 27 - 313
Total non-current liabilities FRBEBES 775 313
Net assets EEFHE 51,309 79,030
BFBBAERAT o« 201955 77



CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
a2 B B AR R

As.at-31T December 2019

R2019%F12/31A
2019 2018
Notes US$°000 US$’000
Myt TE E3
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of the &R T#EE AEML
parent s
Issued capital 2ETRA 24 31,967 31,967
Reserves B 26 19,306 46,493
51,273 78,460
Non-controlling interests IR AR 36 570
Total equity R 51,309 79,030

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.

E82E168EMMERZESHF A M BMERMAKI

On behalf of the Board

REREE®

WANG Wah Chi, Raymond LO Wai Ming
FEX EEH

Chief Executive Officer Director
T EE
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the year ended 31 December-2019

B E2019%F 12531 H IF E /&
Attributable to owners of the parent
KRAREARE
Equity
compensation Non-
Issued Share Merger  Exchange resevve  Fair value Other - Accumulated controlling Total
capital  premium reserve reserve Bxis reserve reserve losses Total interests equity
Be  RBRE  AKEE  ENEE  ANER  LTEHE  RMBE  EMEE  SHEY  FERER £RE
Notes USS000  USS000  USSOO0  USS000  US§000  USS0O0  USS000  US$000  USE000  USSOOD  USS'000
[iFA in in in in in in i i in in i
At 1 January 2018 H2018E1A1A 31,958 83470 2,082 (303) 17,692 697 230 (44123 91,703 662 92,365
Loss for the year EhEE - - - - - - -8 (186m) o) (13,768)
Other comprehensive income ERghRENA:
for the year:
- Exchange differences arisingon - BEE)EEBELL
Hranslation of foreign operations ENER - - - 3 - - - - 3 1) 33
Total comprehensive income/(loss) 2T AJ(E &)t - - - 34 - - - 18T (1328 ) (133m)
Equity-settled share option RAEREH
arangements 2 - - - - 12 - - - 12 - 12
Exercise of share options fikRRE U 9 19 - - - - - - % - %
At 31 December 2018 and H2018%12831RR
at 1 January 2019 019%1R1A 31,967 83,489 2,082 9 17,704 697 20 (57,800 78,460 570 79,030
Loss for the year EnEE - - - - - - -y ) (B33 (1.809)
Other comprehensive income ERsh2EMA:
for the year:
- Changes in fair value of equity -ROFEERALM
nvestment at fai value through LENENRE
other comprehensive income RELTEEY - - - - - 0 - - 0 - )
- Exchange diferences arisngon -~ - RSP EREEE
translation of foreign operations LERER - - - (52) - - - - (52) ] (53)
Total comprehensive incomef(loss) ~ 2EU /()& - - - () - 9% - 2 (2128 (534 (27,768)
Equity-settled share option RrEREH
arrangements 2 - - - - a - - - a7 - Iy
At 31 December 2019 H2019E12A31 R 31,967 83,489 2,082 3 17,751 187 20 (85,012 51,218 3% 51,309
The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
EB2E168EMM T AZE RS M KRR MWAR I -
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of US$19,306,000 (2018: US$46,493,000) in the

consolidated statement of financial position.

* ZERBEBRIESREE19,306,000% 5T (2018 : 46,493,000E T) HAFR S M BEMR K o
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GeRTRER

For-the year ended 31 December 2019

B 22019 12H31H IE F &
2019 2018
Notes US$°000 Us$’000
Myt TE E3
Cash flows from operating activities RETH2HERE
Loss before tax MRFLRTE B (28,180) (13,768)
Adjustments for: FE:
Finance costs 8 B R AR 8 149 4
Share of profits of associates EiEE AT EF 17 (155) (222)
Interest income F B WA 8 (146) (861)
Dividend income BREWA 8 (25) (122)
Fair value loss/(gain) on AERERARMRAFEBN
FVTPL, net NHERE (k&) - T 8 21 (1,491)
Loss/(gain) on disposal of items of HEVE -BER
property, plant and equipment RENEER (KE) 7 20 (117)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving I8 BF 2R 6
inventories FERE 6 6,696 5,920
Depreciation of property, plant and M BBRBEITE
equipment 6 1,662 1,750
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREESERE 6 1,430 -
Amortization of intangible assets EBREEBH 6 3,851 4,201
Equity-settled share option expense % < 7 %5 3R B 6 47 12
Impairment of goodwill BERE 6 2,317 -
Impairment of intangible assets BEEERE 6 7,988 -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FrEREERE 6 67 -
Impairment of trade receivables W ORE 6 80 -
Impairment of property, plant and M - MBREBERE
equipment 6 12 -
Gain on lease modifications HEEF (4) -
(4,170) (4,194)
Increase in inventories FEELZm (833) (18,047)
Decrease/(increase) in trade and FEUS R HAth FE URLFR
other receivables, prepayments and BARKETS
deposits WA (g m) 5,979 (8,234)
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other FER R R At FE S X
payables 2, CRA) (3,863) 3,719
Cash used in operations KEFANES (2,887) (26,756)
Overseas income tax paid BASEBINTER - (44)
Interest paid SRR (149) 4)
Net cash used in operating activities RETHEANREFH (3,036) (26,804)
Cash flows from investing activities RETBHEHERE
Purchases of items of property, plant and BEY% - BE
equipment REE 15 (323) (1,933)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant H &3 - #38
and equipment REE 9 154
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&EEBEZ UKW A FE
at fair value through profit or loss BN EEENTRE 9,226 17,603
Interest received 2 U F & 146 361
Dividend received 2 W 2 25 122
Net cash from investing activities RETHEENESEE 9,083 16,307
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
GERTRER

For the year ended 31 December-2019

B Z2019%F 12H31H L F &
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
TE EH
Cash flows from financing activities RMETBH RERE
Repayment of interest-bearing bank BERTFTEER
borrowing (29) (101)
Proceeds from exercise of share options  BREEITHEFTER - 28
Principal portion of lease payments HEMFRHEREEH (1,289) -
Net cash used in financing activities BMETEHFERARESFE (1,318) (73)
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RERBEHEYF
equivalents #m, Gd) 4,729 (10,570)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning SRS RELSEEY
of year 13,395 23,347
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, EXEE T2 5 F5H
net (46) 618
Cash and cash equivalents FRRERREEEY
at end of year 18,078 13,395
Analysis of balance of cash and cash HEeERBELEEYNEE
equivalents DR
- Bank balances and cash -RITEBRERS 18,078 13,395

The notes on pages 82 to 168 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

82

General information

Solomon Systech (International) Limited and its subsidiaries are
fabless semiconductor companies specializing in the design,
development and sales of integrated circuits (“IC”) products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including wearables,
healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well as industrial
appliances, etc.

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 21
November 2003 as an exempted company with limited liability
under Cap.22, the Cayman lIslands Companies Law (Law 3
of 1961, as consolidated and revised). The address of its
registered office is 2/F., Century Yard, Cricket Square, P.O.
Box 902, Grand Cayman, KY1-1103, Cayman Islands (with
effect from 1 April 2020) and the address of its principal office
in Hong Kong is 6/F., No. 3 Science Park East Avenue, Hong
Kong Science Park, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The Company has been listed on the main board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 8 April 2004.

Information about subsidiaries

Please refer to note 18 to the financial statements for the
particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries.

Summary of significant accounting
policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”),
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong
and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under
the historical cost convention, except for certain financial
assets which have been measured at fair value.

These financial statements are presented in US dollars
(“US$”) and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand
except when otherwise indicated.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued) 21 mEEE(EH)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the
financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the “Group”) for the year ended
31 December 2019. A subsidiary is an entity (including a
structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled by the
Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee (i.e., existing rights
that give the Group the current ability to direct the relevant
activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than
a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee,
the Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances
in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

(a) the contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements;
and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company, using
consistent accounting policies. The results of subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date that
such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income are attributed to the owners of the parent of the
Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this
results in the non-controlling interests having a deficit
balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

RABKARLIT o

REEXE

RAEMBHRREEREENEZE2019
F12AALEFENMB®RE - HE
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HEezEoR (R TFAEERA
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EAXARFEESEEERTLOREIRE
FHB¥BRZERACERE - A
SERFEERETHRRELERE
HE - ZERAEHEBSERERL &
&

(a) EWREFEMREFEANG
Wz

(o) HMESNZHELENERN S R

) AEENREENEERERE -

B 8 2 5] 9 B S R ak T R BN 1Y B) 4
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o MBLRNERE AEEDMEE
FIEN A BEEE AR BRZIRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

84

2.1

2.2

Basis of preparation (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control
described above. A change in the ownership interest of a
subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an
equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
(i) the assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the
subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of any non-controlling
interest and (iii) the cumulative translation differences
recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair value of the
consideration received, (ii) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit
or loss. The Group’s share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is reclassified
to profit or loss or retained profits, as appropriate, on the
same basis as would be required if the Group had directly
disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
The Group has adopted the following new and revised
HKFRSs for the first time for the current year’s financial

statements:

Amendments to HKFRS 9

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2.1

2.2

BB REERFEN 2 185T A EF BB F#
HKFRS 16 Leases
BB KRS ERFE165E HE

Amendments to HKAS 19

BB G ERE195E 2185 FTEIEIE - R EE
Amendments to HKAS 28
BB BT ERIE285E 2185 REBEELGREEL

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23
&8 (BB RE
—REE23

2RZEET)

Annual Improvements
2015-2017 Cycle

2015F Z2017F FHRIH) F B K& BRI EERE
EBETERE

Other than as explained below regarding the impact of
HKFRS 16 Leases, the adoption of the above new and
revised HKFRSs has had no significant financial effect on
these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures 22 EfBERFEEZZE ()
(continued)
HKFRS 16 BB BHEERF165

HKFRS 16 replaces HKAS 17 Leases, HK(IFRIC)- Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease,
HK(SIC)-Int 15 Operating Leases — Incentives and HK(SIC)-
Int 27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Involving
the Legal Form of a Lease. The standard sets out the
principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation
and disclosure of leases and requires lessees to account
for all leases under a single on-balance sheet model to
recognise and measure right-of-use assets and leases
liabilities, except for certain recognition exemptions.
Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17.

The Group has adopted HKFRS 16 using the modified
retrospective method with the date of initial application of
1 January 2019. Under this method, the standard has been
applied retrospectively with the cumulative effect of initially
applying the standard recognised as an adjustment to the
opening balance of accumulated losses at 1 January 2019,
and the comparative information for 2018 was not restated
and continues to be reported under HKAS 17 and related
interpretations.

BERMBHREEUFIHIMAE R
SR EAEA7THREE - &8 (BB
BRERBEES) -REREINEE
ZHECEEEE BB (BBRE
ZEE)-RBEISRLLEHE—E
ERER (ERRBEES) —RESE
27ERRHE S R EERE AR Z R
B ZEAHFIER FHE - 2K
REEENRA > BRREBAUE
—EEERBEXREANERAHEESRE
RIBEAREEREEEE KT
REmREge BBYBRELNSE
1658 R En BE Bt ERIE175
RHBAWEFERESN o HEA®
HESREEBETERE17HREM
Mo BRASHEEIEREERER
MEHE -

AEBEREXRERB #2019%1 81
HERME B ISR EZERE 1655 M1E
TR - RIEZFE > AKER
HRRMP BT EBER WY
2019F1 B1A M EFTEBIEETEHD
FAE > M2018FERLLERE I EET|
WHBERIBEE S EDFE1795 R
BEEE®R-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

86

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 16 (continued)

(i)

(i)

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

New definition of a lease

Under HKFRS 16, a contract is, or contains a
lease if the contract conveys a right to control the
use of an identified asset for a period of time in
exchange for consideration. Control is conveyed
where the customer has both the right to obtain
substantially all of the economic benefits from use
of the identified asset and the right to direct the use
of the identified asset. The Group elected to use the
transition practical expedient allowing the standard
to be applied only to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC)-
Int 4 at the date of initial application. Contracts that
were not identified as leases under HKAS 17 and
HK(IFRIC)-Int 4 were not reassessed. Therefore,
the definition of a lease under HKFRS 16 has been
applied only to contracts entered into or changed on
or after 1 January 2019.

As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating
leases

Nature of the effect of adoption of HKFRS 16

The Group has lease contracts for various items
of property and vehicles. As a lessee, the Group
previously classified leases as either finance leases or
operating leases based on the assessment of whether
the lease transferred substantially all the rewards
and risks of ownership of assets to the Group. Under
HKFRS 16, the Group applies a single approach
to recognise and measure right-of-use assets and
lease liabilities for all leases, except for two elective
exemptions for leases of low value assets (elected on
a lease by lease basis) and leases with a lease term
of 12 months or less (“short-term leases”) (elected
by class of underlying asset). Instead of recognising
rental expenses under operating leases on a straight-
line basis over the lease term commencing from 1
January 2019, the Group recognises depreciation and
impairment of the right-of-use assets and interest
accrued on the outstanding lease liabilities as finance
costs.

Annual Report 2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
(continued)

HKFRS 16 (continued)

(i) As a lessee — Leases previously classified as operating

leases (continued)
Impacts on transition

Lease liabilities at 1 January 2019 were recognised
based on the present value of the remaining lease
payments, discounted using the incremental borrowing
rate as at 1 January 2019.

The right-of-use assets were measured at the amount
of the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to the
lease recognised in the statement of financial position
immediately before 1 January 2019.

All these assets were assessed for any impairment
based on HKAS 36 on that date. The Group elected
to present the right-of-use assets separately in the
statement of financial position.

The Group has used the following elective practical
expedients when applying HKFRS 16 at 1 January
2019:

e Applied the short-term lease exemptions to
leases with a lease term that ends within 12
months from the date of initial application

e Used hindsight in determining the lease term
where the contract contains options to extend the
lease

e Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with reasonably similar characteristics

2. TEETHERUE (R)

22 S BRERBEZ2S (F)

BB BHERERE16% (&)

(i)

1ERRBA — I 7 EBEEH
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

22 EFBERERBEZ2E (H)

2.2 Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures

88

(continued)
HKFRS 16 (continued)

(iii) Financial impact as at 1 January 2019

The impact arising from the adoption of HKFRS 16 as

BEEMBEHEERF16% (&)

(i) BEZER2019F181H

AR2019F1 A1 B IRME B B 1%

at 1 January 2019 are as follows: HEERF16EWENMT
Increase/
(decrease)
#m/ CRD)
US$’000
FTEx
Assets BE
Increase in right-of-use assets EREEEEM 3,241
Decrease in trade and other receivables, FEWGR R E A FE UK
prepayments and deposits BARERT2RD 3)
Increase in total assets MEEEN 3,238
Liabilities =L
Increase in lease liabilities HESBEM 3,238

The lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 reconciled to
the operating lease commitments as at 31 December

A2019FE1B1EWHEERBHE
2018F12H31 B WY& & HH & &

2018 are as follows: EHIRMOT :
US$’000
TEx
Operating lease commitments as at R2018FE12A31 HNEEHERIE
31 December 2018 3,817
Less: Commitments relating to o HEHEERESEENN2019F
short-term leases and those leases 12831 B Z Al B R E SRR
with a remaining lease term ended
on or before 31 December 2019 (274)
3,543
Weighted average incremental 20191 A1 A MELELEERER
borrowing rate as at 1 January 2019 5.5%
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R2019F1A1ANHEEER 3,238

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2.3 B MEMR1E R A Y B B B S R
2l

Reporting Standards

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in

these financial statements.

PSR o

Effective for
annual periods
beginning on

AEBWEEVBEHRRPEATIE
FEAE R AE MBI H R RAEBRTE R

or after

BN 2B

FEMBEEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business 1 January 2020
BRI R EEREIR 2B HKEHEZE 202051 A1H

Amendments to HKFRS 9,
HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7
BEEMBMESEAE -
BBETERZEK
BBV BEHREERETH 2B

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011)
EARAMBEREENEI10HRR
EBEITERE28%E(2011) 2 185T

HKFRS 17
BBMBRELRE17R

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8

BB ERE 1R RESHR 28T

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

FFEEENE

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

REZHRABELEETFE
ZEHEELEXTE

Insurance Contracts

REEE[E

Definition of Material

HHIBE %=

1 January 2020

2020%F181H

No mandatory effective
date yet determined but
available for adoption

e REEE BRI A
HERT R AN

1 January 2021
20215181H

1 January 2020
2020F1A1H

RABKARLIT o

2019F F 3R
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2. TEETHERUE (R)
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2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial

Reporting Standards (continued)

Further information about those HKFRSs that are expected
to be applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to HKFRS 3 clarify and provide additional
guidance on the definition of a business. The amendments
clarify that for an integrated set of activities and assets
to be considered a business, it must include, at a
minimum, an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute to the ability to create output. A
business can exist without including all of the inputs and
processes needed to create outputs. The amendments
remove the assessment of whether market participants
are capable of acquiring the business and continue to
produce outputs. Instead, the focus is on whether acquired
inputs and acquired substantive processes together
significantly contribute to the ability to create outputs. The
amendments have also narrowed the definition of outputs
to focus on goods or services provided to customers,
investment income or other income from ordinary
activities. Furthermore, the amendments provide guidance
to assess whether an acquired process is substantive
and introduce an optional fair value concentration test to
permit a simplified assessment of whether an acquired
set of activities and assets is not a business. The Group
expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2020. Since the amendments apply prospectively
to transactions or other events that occur on or after the
date of first application, the Group will not be affected by
these amendments on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. Summary of significant accounting 2. FESTHBEHE (&)
policies (continued)

2.3 Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial 2.3 O FEMR1E 1 R XA BB B 3 R A5
Reporting Standards (continued) B (4&)

Amendments to HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and HKFRS 7 address
the effects of interbank offered rate reform on financial
reporting. The amendments provide temporary reliefs
which enable hedge accounting to continue during the
period of uncertainty before the replacement of an existing
interest rate benchmark. In addition, the amendments
require companies to provide additional information to
investors about their hedging relationships which are
directly affected by these uncertainties. The Group expects
to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1 January
2020. The amendments are not expected to have any
significant impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 (2011) address
an inconsistency between the requirements in HKFRS
10 and in HKAS 28 (2011) in dealing with the sale or
contribution of assets between an investor and its
associate or joint venture. The amendments require a full
recognition of a gain or loss when the sale or contribution
of assets between an investor and its associate or
joint venture constitutes a business. For a transaction
involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the
investor’s profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated
investor’s interest in that associate or joint venture. The
amendments are to be applied prospectively. The previous
mandatory effective date of amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 (2011) was removed by the HKICPA in
January 2016 and a new mandatory effective date will be
determined after the completion of a broader review of
accounting for associates and joint ventures. However, the
amendments are available for adoption now.
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policies (continued)

2.3

2.4

Issued but not yet effective Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (continued)

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 provide a new
definition of material. The new definition states that
information is material if omitting, misstating or obscuring
it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that
the primary users of general purpose financial statements
make on the basis of those financial statements. The
amendments clarify that materiality will depend on the
nature or magnitude of information. A misstatement of
information is material if it could reasonably be expected
to influence decisions made by the primary users. The
Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively
from 1 January 2020. The amendments are not expected
to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Investments in associates

An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long
term interest of generally not less than 20% of the equity
voting rights and over which it is in a position to exercise
significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over
those policies.

The Group’s investments in associates are stated in the
consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s
share of net assets under the equity method of accounting,
less any impairment losses. Adjustments are made to bring
into line any dissimilar accounting policies that may exist.
The Group’s share of the post-acquisition results and other
comprehensive income of associates is included in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and consolidated
other comprehensive income, respectively. In addition,
when there has been a change recognised directly in the
equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share
of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and
losses resulting from transactions between the Group and
its associates are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s
investments in the associates, except where unrealised
losses provide evidence of an impairment of the assets
transferred. Goodwill arising from the acquisition of
associates is included as part of the Group’s investments
in associates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Investments in associates (continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment
in a joint venture or vice versa, the retained interest is
not remeasured. Instead, the investment continues to be
accounted for under the equity method. In all other cases,
upon loss of significant influence over the associate, the
Group measures and recognises any retained investment
at its fair value. Any difference between the carrying
amount of the associate upon loss of significant influence
and the fair value of the retained investment and proceeds
from disposal is recognised in profit or loss.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is the
sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets transferred
by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests
issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. For each business combination, the Group elects
whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the
acquiree that are present ownership interests and entitle
their holders to a proportionate share of net assets in the
event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate
share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other
components of non-controlling interests are measured
at fair value. Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the
contractual terms, economic circumstances and pertinent
conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of
the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

94

(continued)
Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer is recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability is measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognised in profit or loss. Contingent consideration that
is classified as equity is not remeasured and subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and any
fair value of the Group’s previously held equity interests in
the acquiree over the identifiable net assets acquired and
liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets
acquired, the difference is, after reassessment, recognised
in profit or loss as a gain on bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs its
annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December.
For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units,
or groups of cash-generating units, that are expected to
benefit from the synergies of the combination, irrespective
of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (group of
cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss
recognised for goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent
period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating
unit (or group of cash-generating units) and part of the
operation within that unit is disposed of, the goodwill
associated with the operation disposed of is included in
the carrying amount of the operation when determining the
gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in these
circumstances is measured based on the relative value
of the operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-
generating unit retained.

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its equity investment and certain
financial assets at fair value at the end of each reporting
period. Fair value is the price that would be received
to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based
on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset
or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a
principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset and liability. The principal or the most advantageous
market must be accessible by the Group. The fair value of
an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions
that market participants would use when pricing the asset
or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
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2. TEETHERUE (R)

96

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Fair value measurement (continued)

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate
in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole:

Level 1 - based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the
fair value measurement is observable, either
directly or indirectly

Level 3 - based on valuation techniques for which the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the
hierarchy by reassessing categorisation (based on the
lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable
amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those from
other assets or groups of assets, in which case the
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount
rate that reflects current market assessments of the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An
impairment loss is charged to the statement of profit or
loss in the period in which it arises.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses may no longer exist or
may have decreased. If such an indication exists, the
recoverable amount is estimated. A previously recognised
impairment loss of an asset other than goodwill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used
to determine the recoverable amount of that asset, but
not to an amount higher than the carrying amount that
would have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment
loss is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the
period in which it arises.

FERMEERE

MERRBEREFERE  AAREE
GEEREEERN) ETFERE
A ISR EENTRESHE -
BENTHRESHEREESRETESL
BB 9 B EEE L PR R B R
(UBSERE)HE  AHERNEE
MEE  RIFBREELTELER
ARELBYRAMEEREEHRR
MIRERA - ERBERT > AERZ
EEMBREELENEETRES
B o

HEBEENREERAEBBE Y
Bl £ 2R T AR - RETfhEREE
B fhEFRRIR SR B 1R A R IR B
mEHERKEENFEREERE
P BB AT B IR RBEIR E HIRME © Rl
EREE N EE L 2 E A8 a5 A 72 520
BEEINEE —HHF X IERI P HIRR -

RERESHR  STEREBEEMY
SERNENBEINBEBRETRES
BEERAEE LD o HFEZH
& SR AIRESE - TAHE
ERINRERSE  ERAREEZ
EENTWRESENEFTTEZRET U
&m - ERESEAESNBRRBE
FELERZEERIBEBEM
FEREE WV BRTEE (MNBRIEAIITEE 8
) - BMEBAEBEREELENE
st AR -

SERBEERAT o 2019FFH 97



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

2.

98

Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:
(a) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person:

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiiy is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

or

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the
same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the
key management personnel of the entity (or of a
parent of the entity); and

(viii) the entity, or any member of a group of which it
is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.
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2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the asset to its working condition and
location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs
and maintenance, is normally charged to the statement
of profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the
expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised in the
carrying amount of the asset as a replacement. Where
significant parts of property, plant and equipment are
required to be replaced at intervals, the Group recognises
such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives
and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to
write off the cost of each item of property, plant and
equipment to its residual value over its estimated useful
life. The principal annual rates used for this purpose are as
follows:
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Machinery and laboratory
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Motor vehicles E

Not depreciated
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20% or over the lease period,

whichever is shorter
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33.33%

12.50% to 33.33%

33.33%

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated
on a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately. Residual values, useful lives and
the depreciation method are reviewed, and adjusted if
appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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(continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on
disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of
profit or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is
the difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value as at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible assets
are assessed to be either finite or indefinite. Intangible
assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset
may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite
useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year end.

Patents and intellectual property

Purchased patents and intellectual property are stated at
cost less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of no
more than eight years.

Research and development costs

All research costs are charged to the statement of profit or
loss as incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products
is capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or
sale, its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell
the asset, how the asset will generate future economic
benefits, the availability of resources to complete the
project and the ability to measure reliably the expenditure
during the development. Product development expenditure
which does not meet these criteria is expensed when
incurred.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
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(continued)
Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019)

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement
approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets. The Group recognises lease
liabilities to make lease payments and right-of-use assets
representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(a) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the
commencement date of the lease (that is the date the
underlying asset is available for use). Right-of-use
assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted
for any remeasurement of lease liabilities. The cost of
right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease
payments made at or before the commencement date
less any lease incentives received. Right-of-use assets
are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the shorter
of the lease terms and the estimated useful lives of the
assets as follows:

Leased properties 2 to 4 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the
Group by the end of the lease term or the cost reflects
the exercise of a purchase option, depreciation is
calculated using the estimated useful life of the asset.
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Leases (applicable from 1 January 2019) (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

Lease liabilities

Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement
date of the lease at the present value of lease
payments to be made over the lease term. The lease
payments include fixed payments (including in-
substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives
receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rate, and amounts expected to be paid
under residual value guarantees. The lease payments
also include the exercise price of a purchase option
reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option to
terminate. The variable lease payments that do not
depend on an index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the event or condition
that triggers the payment occurs.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the
Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the
commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities
is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the
carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if
there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a
change in lease payments or a change in assessment
of an option to purchase the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to its short-term leases of machinery and
equipment (that is those leases that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also
applies the recognition exemption for leases of low-
value assets to leases of office equipment and laptop
computers that are considered to be of low value.
Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

Annual Report 2019
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Leases (applicable before 1 January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted
for as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under operating leases are charged to the
statement of profit or loss on the straight-line basis over
the lease terms.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as
subsequently measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprehensive income, and fair value
through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition
depends on the financial asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group’s business model for
managing them. With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant financing component or
for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
of not adjusting the effect of a significant financing
component, the Group initially measures a financial
asset at its fair value, plus in the case of a financial
asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or for which the Group has applied
the practical expedient are measured at the transaction
price determined under HKFRS 15 in accordance with the
policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.

In order for a financial asset to be classified and
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other
comprehensive income, it needs to give rise to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest (“SPPI”)
on the principal amount outstanding. Financial assets with
cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the
business model.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets
refers to how it manages its financial assets in order to
generate cash flows. The business model determines
whether cash flows will result from collecting contractual
cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both. Financial
assets classified and measured at amortised cost are
held within a business model with the objective to hold
financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows,
while financial assets classified and measured at fair value
through other comprehensive income are held within
a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets
which are not held within the aforementioned business
models are classified and measured at fair value through
profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade date, that is, the date that
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the
marketplace.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends
on their classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently
measured using the effective interest method and are
subject to impairment. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised, modified or impaired.
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2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)

Financial assets designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify
irrevocably its equity investments as equity investments
designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income when they meet the definition of equity under
HKAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never
recycled to the statement of profit or loss. Dividends are
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated
with the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount
of the dividend can be measured reliably, except when
the Group benefits from such proceeds as a recovery
of part of the cost of the financial asset, in which case,
such gains are recorded in other comprehensive income.
Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment
assessment.
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Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are
carried in the statement of financial position at fair value
with net changes in fair value recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity
investments which the Group had not irrevocably elected
to classify at fair value through other comprehensive
income and debt instruments which are held for trading.
Dividends on equity investments classified as financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as finance income in the statement of profit
or loss when the right of payment has been established,
it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.

A derivative embedded in a hybrid contract, with a
financial liability or non-financial host, is separated from
the host and accounted for as a separate derivative if
the economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to the host; a separate instrument with the same
terms as the embedded derivative would meet the
definition of a derivative; and the hybrid contract is not
measured at fair value through profit or loss. Embedded
derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in
fair value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the
terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash
flows that would otherwise be required or a reclassification
of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or
loss category.

A derivative embedded within a hybrid contract containing
a financial asset host is not accounted for separately. The
financial asset host together with the embedded derivative
is required to be classified in its entirety as a financial
asset at fair value through profit or loss.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
primarily derecognised (i.e., removed from the Group’s
consolidated statement of financial position) when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to
pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset,
or (b) the Group has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, it evaluates if, and to what extent, it has
retained the risk and rewards of ownership of the asset.
When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred
control of the asset, the Group continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Group’s continuing
involvement. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required
to repay.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair
value through profit or loss. ECLs are based on the
difference between the contractual cash flows due in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective interest rate. The
expected cash flows will include cash flows from the sale
of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are
integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures
for which there has not been a significant increase in credit
risk since initial recognition, ECLs are provided for credit
losses that result from default events that are possible
within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL). For those
credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss
allowance is required for credit losses expected over the
remaining life of the exposure, irrespective of the timing of
the default (a lifetime ECL).

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether
the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased
significantly since initial recognition. When making the
assessment, the Group compares the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the date of initial recognition and
considers reasonable and supportable information that is
available without undue cost or effort, including historical
and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when
contractual payments are 90 days past due. However, in
certain cases, the Group may also consider a financial
asset to be in default when internal or external information
indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into
account any credit enhancements held by the Group. A
financial asset is written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovering the contractual cash flows.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

Debt investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income and financial assets at amortised cost are subject
to impairment under the general approach and they are
classified within the following stages for measurement
of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk
has not increased significantly since initial
recognition and for which the loss allowance
is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition
but that are not credit-impaired financial
assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the
reporting date (but that are not purchased or
originated credit-impaired) and for which the
loss allowance is measured at an amount equal
to lifetime ECLs

Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant
financing component or when the Group applies the
practical expedient of not adjusting the effect of a
significant financing component, the Group applies
the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under the
simplified approach, the Group does not track changes
in credit risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date. The Group
has established a provision matrix that is based on its
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
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Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans
and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value
and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net
of directly attributable transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other
payables and interest-bearing bank borrowings.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and
borrowings)

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and
borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised
cost, using the effective interest rate method unless the
effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognised as well as through the effective interest rate
amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate. The
effective interest rate amortisation is included in finance
costs in the statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are
those contracts that require a payment to be made to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the
specified debtor fails to make a payment when due in
accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its
fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent
to initial recognition, the Group measures the financial
guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the ECL allowance
determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially
recognised less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount
of income recognised.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as
a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition of
a new liability, and the difference between the respective
carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and
the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if there is a currently enforceable legal right to
offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle the
liabilities simultaneously.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
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112

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials and
subcontracting charges. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling prices less any estimated costs to be
incurred to completion and disposal.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand
and demand deposits, that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk
of changes in value, and have a short maturity of generally
within three months when acquired, less bank overdrafts
which are repayable on demand and form an integral part
of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, including term deposits, and assets
similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and
it is probable that a future outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, provided that a reliable
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the end
of the reporting period of the future expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation. The increase in the
discounted present value amount arising from the passage
of time is included in the statement of profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income
tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss
is recognised outside profit or loss, either in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the
taxation authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries/
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the end of the reporting period
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

e when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and,
at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

e in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences
can be controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

e when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that
is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, deferred tax assets are only recognised
to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEETHERUE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable
profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred
tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets
are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the
tax rates that are expected to apply to the period when
the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based
on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset
if and only if the Group has a legally enforceable right to
set off current tax assets and current tax liabilities and
the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate
to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority on
either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities
which intend either to settle current tax liabilities and
assets on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously, in each future periods in
which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and all attaching conditions will be complied with.
When the grant relates to an expense item, it is recognised
as income on a systematic basis over the periods that the
costs, which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised
when control of goods or services is transferred to the
customers at an amount that reflects the consideration to
which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services.

When the consideration in a contract includes a variable
amount, the amount of consideration is estimated to which
the Group will be entitled in exchange for transferring
the goods or services to the customer. The variable
consideration is estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly probable that a significant
revenue reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the associated uncertainty
with the variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

When the contract contains a financing component
which provides the customer with a significant benefit
of financing the transfer of goods or services to the
customer for more than one year, revenue is measured at
the present value of the amount receivable, discounted
using the discount rate that would be reflected in a
separate financing transaction between the Group and
the customer at contract inception. When the contract
contains a financing component which provides the
Group a significant financial benefit for more than one
year, revenue recognised under the contract includes the
interest expense accreted on the contract liability under
the effective interest method. For a contract where the
period between the payment by the customer and the
transfer of the promised goods or services is one year or
less, the transaction price is not adjusted for the effects
of a significant financing component, using the practical
expedient in HKFRS 15.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

116

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(a) Sale of proprietary integrated circuits products

Revenue from the sale of proprietary integrated
circuits products is recognised at the point in time
when control of the asset is transferred to the
customer, generally on delivery of the proprietary
integrated circuits products. Some contracts for the
sale of proprietary integrated circuits products provide
customers volume rebates. The volume rebates give
rise to variable consideration.

(i) Volume rebates

Retrospective volume rebates may be provided
to certain customers once the quantity of
products purchased during the period exceeds a
threshold specified in the contract. Rebates are
offset against amounts payable by the customer.
To estimate the variable consideration for the
expected future rebates, the most likely amount
method is used for contracts with a single-volume
threshold and the expected value method for
contracts with more than one volume threshold.
The selected method that best predicts the
amount of variable consideration is primarily
driven by the number of volume thresholds
contained in the contract. The requirements on
constraining estimates of variable consideration
are applied and a refund liability for the expected
future rebates is recognised.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using
the effective interest method by applying the rate that
exactly discounts the estimated future cash receipts over
the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, when appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the
financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’
right to receive payment has been established, it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with the
dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the
dividend can be measured reliably.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Refund liabilities

A refund liability is recognised for the obligation to refund
some or all of the consideration received (or receivable)
from the customer and is measured at the amount the
Group ultimately expects it will have to return to the
customer. The Group updates its estimates of refund
liabilities (and the corresponding change in the transaction
price) at the end of each reporting period.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is
received or a payment is due (whichever is earlier) from
a customer before the Group transfers the related goods
or services. Contract liabilities are recognised as revenue
when the Group performs under the contract (i.e., transfers
control of the related goods or services to the customer).

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group’s
operations. Employees (including directors) of the Group
receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments,
whereby employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees
with grant after 7 November 2002 is measured by
reference to the fair value at the date at which they are
granted. The fair value is determined by an external valuer
using a binomial model, further details of which are given
in note 25 to the financial statements.
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2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2. TEETHERUE (&)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEBE (&)

Share-based payments (continued)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised in
employee benefit expense, together with a corresponding
increase in equity, over the period in which the
performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled.
The cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at the end of each reporting period until
the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of the
number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The
charge or credit to the statement of profit or loss for a
period represents the movement in the cumulative expense
recognised as at the beginning and end of that period.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not
taken into account when determining the grant date fair
value of awards, but the likelihood of the conditions being
met is assessed as part of the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest.
Market performance conditions are reflected within the
grant date fair value. Any other conditions attached to an
award, but without an associated service requirement,
are considered to be non-vesting conditions. Non-vesting
conditions are reflected in the fair value of an award and
lead to an immediate expensing of an award unless there
are also service and/or performance conditions.

For awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market
performance and/or service conditions have not been met,
no expense is recognised. Where awards include a market
or non-vesting condition, the transactions are treated as
vesting irrespective of whether the market or non-vesting
condition is satisfied, provided that all other performance
and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified,
as a minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms
had not been modified, if the original terms of the award
are met. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, that increases the total fair value of the
share-based payments, or is otherwise beneficial to the
employee as measured at the date of modification.
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2. TEETHERUE (&)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated
as if it had vested on the date of cancellation, and any
expense not yet recognised for the award is recognised
immediately. This includes any award where non-vesting
conditions within the control of either the Group or
the employee are not met. However, if a new award is
substituted for the cancelled award, and is designated as
a replacement award on the date that it is granted, the
cancelled and new awards are treated as if they were a
modification of the original award, as described in the
previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is measured initially
at fair value at the grant date taking into account the terms
and conditions upon which the instruments were granted
(note 25). The fair value is expensed over the period until
the vesting date with recognition of a corresponding
liability. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-
settled transactions at the end of each reporting period
until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the
vesting period has expired and the Group’s best estimate
of the number of awards that will ultimately vest. The
liability is measured at the end of each reporting period up
to and including the settlement date, with changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
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policies (continued)
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Other employee benefits
Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Hong Kong Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees who are
eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme. Contributions
are made based on a percentage of the employees’ basic
salaries and are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions
vest fully with the employees when contributed into the
MPF Scheme, except for the Group’s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions
vesting fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate
in Mainland China and overseas are required to participate
in a central retirement benefit scheme operated by the
local municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of their payroll
costs to the central retirement benefit scheme. The
contributions are charged to the statement of profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the central retirement benefit scheme.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of when
the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of those
benefits and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs involving the payment of termination benefits.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

2. TEETHERUE (R)

2. Summary of significant accounting
policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) 24 ERETHEME (&)

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in US$, which
is the Company’s functional currency. Each entity in the
Group determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity are
measured using that functional currency. Foreign currency
transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are
initially recorded using their respective functional currency
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies
are translated at the functional currency rates of exchange
ruling at the end of the reporting period. Differences
arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary
items are recognised in the statement of profit or loss
with the exception of monetary items that are designated
as part of the hedge of the Group’s net investment
of a foreign operation. These are recognised in other
comprehensive income until the net investment is disposed
of, at which time the cumulative amount is reclassified to
the statement of profit or loss. Tax charges and credits
attributable to exchange differences on those monetary
items are also recorded in other comprehensive income.

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss
arising on translation of a non-monetary item measured at
fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain
or loss on change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation
difference on the item whose fair value gain or loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit
or loss, respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of
the related asset, expense or income on the derecognition
of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability relating
to an advance consideration, the date of initial transaction
is the date on which the Group initially recognises the non-
monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising from the
advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction
date for each payment or receipt of the advance
consideration.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

2. Summary of significant accounting

2. TEETHERUE (R)

policies (continued)

2.4 Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

122

Foreign currencies (continued)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries
are currencies other than US$. As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into US$ at the exchange rates
prevailing at the end of the reporting period and their
statements of profit or loss are translated into US$ at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the exchange
fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign operation, the
component of other comprehensive income relating to that
particular foreign operation is recognised in the statement
of profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on acquisition are
treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are
translated into US$ at the exchange rates ruling at the
dates of the cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows
of overseas subsidiaries which arise throughout the year
are translated into US$ at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments

3.1 Financial risk factors

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors reviews
and agrees policies for managing each of these risks and
they are summarised below.

Interest rate risk

As at 31 December 2019, the Group is exposed to fair
value or cash flow interest rate risk in relation to the
interest-bearing bank borrowings of the Group with either
fixed or floating interest rates. The Group currently does
not have any interest rate hedging policy. However,
management will consider hedging significant interest rate
exposure should the need arise.

Foreign currency risk

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposures primarily arise from revenue and other income
generated, and cost and expenses incurred by operating
units in currencies other than the Group’s operating units’
functional currencies. For the Group’s operating units’
that have the Hong Kong dollar (“HK$”) as their functional
currency, their foreign currency transactions during the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, and the units’
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies as at the end of the reporting period were
mainly denominated in US$. As the Hong Kong dollar
(“HK$”) is pegged to the US$ within a narrow band, the
Group does not expect any significant movements in
the US$/HK$ exchange rate. Accordingly, management
considers that the Group’s foreign currency risk exposure
for HK$ is not significant.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.

and fair value hierarchy of financial

instruments (continued)

124 Solomon Systech (International) Limited e

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Credit risk

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers
who wish to trade on credit terms are subject to credit
verification procedures. In addition, receivable balances
are monitored on an ongoing basis and the Group’s
exposure to bad debts is not significant.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The tables below shows the credit quality and the
maximum exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s
credit policy, which is mainly based on past due
information unless other information is available without
undue cost or effort, and year-end staging classification
as at 31 December. The amounts presented are gross
carrying amounts for financial assets.

As at 31 December 2019

MBEBREER AFERD

FEERH (F)

3.1 BIRAMEZE (&)

FERR

FEEERERIREFEIENE=
TETRS - BBASEBOBEK i
BHRREERTETRZNEFLA
BBEERERFR  HAFE It
O AEEE S EE R EW AR
MER - EAEYRRERL N E
j( o

REBBRRFADH

TRERNTERAEEEEBREN
EREENRXEARKERO » 25
ERFFEERBENIHEE (B
FHEHMEEEETVENRARNE
H) o UREBZE12A31BNFL D H
DY EEASCHEENREA
EH o

M2019512831H

Lifetime
ECLs
12-month ECLs ERAFEH
12BEAEHEEEE FEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1RE HoRE HIWR  ELHEE @t
US$’000 US$’000 US$°000 US$’000 US$°000
TERT TER TEn TER TEn
Trade receivables* FE Wz - - - 19,860 19,860
Financial assets included in 3] &R EMEKFRA
deposits and other receivables MEFEE
- Normal** -EE" 1,119 - - - 1,119
Pledged bank deposit SHEFNRITER
- Not yet past due - KRB 130 - - - 130
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEY
- Not yet past due - RiBH 18,078 - - - 18,078
19,327 - - 19,860 39,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

3. MHEARERE  AFERRD
FEERH (F)

3.1 MBERREER(E)

FERRE (&)

REEERFADH (&)

2018 12H31H

Lifetime
ECLs
12-month ECLs FRATES
128 RHEERFR FEEE
Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
F1REE FoRER $IRE  HWLHER @t
US$’000 US$’000 Us$’000 US$’000 Us$’000
E E E E eV
Trade receivables* FEW > - - - 24,054 24,054
Financial assets included in ~ FJ& R EMEKZRA
deposits and other receivables HIEFEE
- Normal** —E&E 1,562 - - - 1,562
Pledged bank deposit SEANRITER
- Not yet past due - RiBH 130 - - - 130
Cash and cash equivalents ReRREEEN
- Not yet past due - RBH 13,395 - - - 13,395
15,087 - - 24,054 39,141

*  For trade receivables to which the Group applies the Y ABEAEEBWFRERABILE
simplified approach for impairment, information based on EATREEBNER  RUER
the provision matrix is disclosed in note 22 to the financial KM 22K 57 ©
statements.

**  The credit quality of the financial assets included in deposits v AENEMERRTEENERE
and other receivables is considered to be “normal” when ENEREEERIMBEREAIE
they are not past due and there is no information indicating Bl WEARBEEERPFADHRER
that the financial assets had a significant increase in credit BERMEENEARBEZEIEM-
risk since initial recognition. Otherwise, the credit quality of SH 2REENERAEEHRRAR
the financial assets is considered to be “doubtful”. 2[5 -

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, rEEBEMtMeRMEE (BERERE

which comprise cash and cash equivalents and other SEEYREMERR) NEERK

receivables arises from default of the counterparty, with a ARGEHLEAMESL  BRaEKEE
maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these ERZETANKREME-

instruments.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and
creditworthy third parties, there is no requirement for
collateral. Concentrations of credit risk are managed by
customer/counterparty. At the end of the reporting period,
the Group had certain concentrations of credit risk as
41.6% (2018: 43%) and 78.7% (2018: 74%) of the Group’s
trade receivables were due from the Group’s largest
debtor and the five largest debtors, respectively. Further
quantitative data in respect of the Group’s exposure to
credit risk arising from trade receivables are disclosed in
note 22 to the financial statements.

RABKARLIT o

HRAAREEEHEHERTREETEN
E-ZFEARS  REBEBEKR -
ARERR  AEBREETEES
FER ERAEENESERKE
B2 BIE41.6% (20185 : 43% )
%78.7% (20184 : 74% ) B EW AR
EERAREEARARBEHEANR
Ho AEEELEBEZERFENE
ERMEHONE-SELCEBEEER
B FE SRR I RE22 ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

3. Financial risk management and fair value

126

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Liquidity risk

The Group monitors and maintains a sufficient level
of cash and cash equivalents deemed adequate by
the management to finance the Group’s operations
and mitigate the effects of fluctuation in cash flows.
Management reviews and monitors the Group’s working
capital requirements regularly.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the contractual

FEERH (F)

3.1 BIRAMEZE (&)
7 B L B

MBEBREER AFERD

FEEEEREFEEBIBEAN
BERBEEEEY  UERFTEEN
EERMESTYEBRRESRERIH
FE EEEEHEAREELAEKE

MEEELER -

RBMEPR » AEBRSORBRM

REETNERAEEINHEREAI W

undiscounted payments, is as follows: T
2019
No fixed term 3 to less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months 1 to 5 years Total
REEEN
ERER/ MEAZES
REREE HR3EA M2fEA 1355 EH
US$000 US$'000 US$000 US$'000 US$'000
ey e ES ey Es
Financial liabilities included in EAFREMERHKA
trade and other payables Hemas 4,014 15,757 88 - 19,859
Interest-bearing bank borrowings /T3t E &R - - 1 170 17
Lease liabilities HEaE - 317 702 965 1,984
4,014 16,074 791 1,135 22,014
2018
No fixed term 310 less
of repayment/ Less than than
on demand 3 months 12 months  1to 5 years Total
REEEMN
BRER/ 3ERESD
REREE DA M12f8 A 1256 @t
Us$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$000
TER E)r S e Er
Financial liabilities included in RS R AR HA
trade and other payables HemaE 4,306 18,693 4 - 23,003
Interest-bearing bank borrowings ~ R{T:EER - 111 89 - 200
4,306 18,804 93 - 23,203

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

MEERERE A FERA
FEERH (F)

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 MBEBRREE(FE)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern and to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. To maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and 31
December 2018.

The capital of the Group represents equity attributable to
owners of the Group.

Fair value

The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s
financial instruments, other than those with carrying
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as
follows:

EXxEE

FEBMEAEENERZERER/RESR
SESFECENREILESRRENE
REEZ - UXIHFHEBRBRRANE
RAEE-

REERBLEERESCREBEEE
HERSHEERAREERERE -
BESSARERERE  AEERE
BREERTFRRIBETHRG - &
B A Z MNP EARERR
R o A& £2019%F12831H k2018
F12A31HILEE > EXAEEREZ
BERREFIREEES -

AEENEANBARBER AL

s -
AT
REEEAREEATENSBT

25 AEESRIENHETENL
FENT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
REE AYE
Financial assets SREE 2019 2018 2019 2018
US$000 US$’000 US$’000 Us$'000
TERT E TER in
Financial assets at fair value BRERURBAY
through profit or loss EBENMKEE - 9,247 - 9,247
Equity investment designated ROV EES AHM
at fair value through other ZHBANEE
comprehensive income 929 839 929 839
929 10,086 929 10,086
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Fair value (continued)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and
cash equivalents, pledged bank deposit, trade receivables,
trade payables, financial assets included in deposits and
other receivables, financial liabilities included in other
payables and accruals, the current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short term maturities of these
instruments.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are
included at the amount at which the instrument could be
exchanged in a current transaction between willing parties,
other than in a forced or liquidation sale.

The following methods and assumptions were used to
estimate the fair values:

The fair values of the non-current portion of interest-
bearing bank borrowings have been calculated by
discounting the expected future cash flows using rates
currently available for instruments with similar terms,
credit risk and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-
performance risk for interest-bearing bank borrowings
as at 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018 was
assessed to be insignificant. The carrying amounts of the
non-current portion of interest-bearing bank borrowings
approximate to their fair values.

The fair values of listed equity investments and funds,

marketable bonds and marketable funds are based on
quoted market prices.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value
and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
Fair value (continued)

The fair value of an unlisted equity investment designated
at fair value through other comprehensive income have
been estimated by observable prices or rates of sale of
similar assets. The directors believe that the estimated fair
value which are recorded in the consolidated statement of
financial position, and the related changes in fair values,
which are recorded in other comprehensive income, are
reasonable, and that it was the most appropriate values at
the end of the reporting period.

The Group has a call option over non-controlling interest
of a subsidiary which is recorded as a financial asset at
fair value through profit or loss. The fair value of this call
option is based on a valuation technique that are not
based on observable market data.

Below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs
to the valuation of financial instruments together with a
quantitative sensitivity analysis:

e BRI

MERERERE AFERA

FEERR (F)

3.1 MBEARREER(E)

»¥E (&)

A nBEFAREMEEBARE
FHRERENAAEE  BRUBE
ERNEUEENHERMGE - ES
AR REPBMRR R P IEAMLE
NRBEUARIABENEEZD
(RARMGEWE) REEN XA
ERBEESHABRSENEER-

AEEHTLRANFERERIDE
WU RAABETEEHEHTA
EfER ZRBENDAEERER
THBETS BB G ERM -

TYX#lmem T BEETEHEAERBZ
EATUHERASBEREE2HE
E o

Relationship of

Significant unobservable

unobservable As at As at inputs to

Valuation input 31 December 31 December fair value

Description technique EAFTHE  MM2A31H RW12A31H TUBEEGAYEHE

Bk RER* BAZE 2019 2018 ATLEENBE

Financial asset at fair value Monte Carlo Volatility 50% 50% The higher the

through profit or loss simulation KiE volatility, the higher

- Call option over method the fair value

non-controlling interests 45 F &KL KRB ATEERS
BREZURMATEEN

NHBERE Risk-free  0.67%-2.39% 1.18%-3.01% The higher the risk-free

- FERERDERE interest rate interest rate, the higher

EmERFE the fair value

Price-to-sales
ratio
HE

0.98

BERFEEE
AVEEDE

0.72 The higher the
price-to-sales ratio,

the higher the fair value
GECES N

NFEERS

REARKEERAT o 20198F8HK 129



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3. i EREE 2 FERD
and fair value hierarchy of financial TLEERR (&)
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 3.1 BIRAMEZE (&)
Fair value hierarchy AT EEHRE
The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement TRHEPATEAEEERIANAAE
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments: BEEF 245!
Assets measured at fair value: EERERAFETE
As at 31 December 2019 7R2019512A31H

Fair value measurement using

DNFEFENA

Quoted
prices  Significant  Significant
in active  observable unobservable

markets inputs inputs
RIER IEE FABE
hERE BARE BARE
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E1EH) (B2E4) (3B @t
US$000 US$’000 US$’000 US$'000
TERT TERT TER TER
Equity investment designated at fair &2 FEEF AL
value through other comprehensive ~ ZHEWBANKRE
income - 929 - 929
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

3. Financial risk management and fair value 3.

and fair value hierarchy of financial
instruments (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

As at 31 December 2018

)

Bl (%)

3.1 MEBEERREE(F)
DR EERE (K

M2018%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

Bt 85 AR Y A

HMEERERE AFERA
FEER

AVEEFA
Quoted prices Significant Significant
in active observable unobservable
markets inputs inputs
AR TEE  TABE
& RE BAE BAE
Level 1) Level 2) g’LeveI 3 Total
(E1BHR) (E2ER) (E3ER st
US$’000 US$’000 US$ 00_0 US$’00C
EY EY EY in
Equity investment designated at fair &2 FEE A Hfb
value through other comprehensive ~ ZEWAMRE
income - 839 - 839
Call option over FERER
non-controlling interests RIEE - - 467 467
Listed equity securities and fund ITRERES 59 - - 59
Marketable bonds EEES 567 - - 567
Marketable funds NEEES 8,154 - - 8,154
8,780 839 467 10,086
The movements in fair value measurements within Level 3 FR BF=ZEBHANATFEEZEBAOT :
during the year are as follows:
2019 2018
UsS$’000 US$’000
FEr FTErx
Financial assets at fair value EiBER U R
through profit or loss: AP BENMBEE
— Call option over non-controlling 3H’IH’L$E_
interests RIBRE
At 1 January »m1A1 467 788
Fair value loss recognised in n¥E EEHTEE"%'LF?
profit or loss VR (467) (321)
At 31 December M12831H - 467
During the year, there were no transfers of fair value FR F1BARFI2ER2ERE RN
measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no T EFEER REFIEHELRME
transfers into or out of Level 3 for financial assets (2018: EEANESL (2018: &) o
Nil).
The Group did not have any financial liabilities measured at A2019%F 128318  XEBRE S
fair value as at 31 December 2019 (2018: Nil). FmEadEUATEEE (2018 &) ©
REANEERAT e« 2019FFH% 131



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

4. BRETEER A E

4. Significant accounting estimates and

132

judgements

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets
and liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that could
require a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of the
assets or liabilities affected in the future.

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Income taxes

The Group has exposure to income taxes in different
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is involved in determining
the provision for income taxes. Determining income tax
provisions involves judgement on the future tax treatment of
certain transactions and interpretation of tax rules. The Group
carefully evaluates tax implications of transactions and tax
provisions are set up accordingly. The tax treatment of such
transactions is reconsidered periodically to take into account
all changes in tax legislation, interpretations and practices in
respect thereof.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are described below.

Revenue from contracts with customers

Determining the method to estimate variable consideration and
assessing the constraint for the sale of products.

Certain contracts for the sale of products include volume
rebates that give rise to variable consideration. In estimating
the variable consideration, the Group is required to use
either the expected value method or the most likely amount
method based on which method better predicts the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. Significant accounting estimates and

judgements (continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

In estimating the variable consideration for the sale of products
with volume rebates, the Group determined that using the most
likely amount method is appropriate. The selected method that
better predicts the amount of variable consideration related
to volume rebates is primarily driven by the number of volume
thresholds contained in the contract. The most likely amount
method is used for those contracts with a single volume
threshold.

Before including any amount of variable consideration in the
transaction price, the Group considers whether the amount of
variable consideration is constrained. The Group determined
that the estimates of variable consideration are not constrained
based on its historical experience, business forecast and the
current economic conditions. In addition, the uncertainty on
the variable consideration will be resolved within a short time
frame.

Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least on
an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill is allocated.
Estimating the value in use requires the Group to make an
estimate of the expected future cash flows from the cash-
generating units and also to choose a suitable discount rate in
order to calculate the present value of those cash flows. The
goodwill had been fully impaired at 31 December 2019 (2018:
carrying amount of US$2,317,000). Further details are given in
note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of
impairment for all non-financial assets at the end of each
reporting period. Non-financial assets are tested for impairment
when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may not
be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value
of an asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable
amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. The calculation of the fair value
less costs of disposal is based on available data from binding
sales transactions in an arm’s length transaction of similar
assets or observable market prices less incremental costs
for disposing of the asset. When value in use calculations
are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit
using key assumptions such as budgeted revenue growth rate
and choose a suitable discount rate in order to calculate the
present value of those cash flows. The carrying amounts of
property, plant and equipment and other intangible assets at 31
December 2019 were US$3,650,000 (2018: US$5,036,000) and
US$1,453,000 (2018: US$13,292,000), respectively.
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Significant accounting estimates and
judgements (continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables. The provision rates are based on days past due for
groupings of various customer segments that have similar loss
patterns (i.e., by geographical region).

The provision matrix is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to
adjust the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking
information. For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e.,
gross domestic products) are expected to deteriorate over the
next year which can lead to an increased number of defaults in
the manufacturing sector, the historical default rates are adjusted.
At each reporting date, the historical observed default rates
are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are
analysed. The information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade
receivables is disclosed in note 22 to the financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

The Group performs regular review of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged analyses of the Group’s
inventories, projections of expected future saleability of goods
and management experience and judgement. Based on this
review, write-down of inventories will be made when the
estimated net realisable value of inventories declines below
their carrying amount. Due to changes in technological, market
and economic environment and customers’ preference, actual
saleability of goods may be different from estimation and profit
or loss could be affected by differences in this estimation. As
at 31 December 2019, the carrying amount of inventories was
US$26,791,000 (2018: US$32,654,000).

Leases - Estimating the incremental borrowing rate

The Group cannot readily determine the interest rate implicit
in a lease, and therefore, it uses an incremental borrowing
rate (“IBR”) to measure lease liabilities. The IBR is the rate of
interest that the Group would have to pay to borrow over a
similar term, and with a similar security, the funds necessary
to obtain an asset of a similar value to the right-of-use asset
in a similar economic environment. The IBR therefore reflects
what the Group “would have to pay”, which requires estimation
when no observable rates are available or when it needs to
be adjusted to reflect the terms and conditions of the lease.
The Group estimates the IBR using observable inputs such as
market interest rates when available.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

5. Segment information and disaggregation

of revenue

During the year, the Group has principally engaged in the
design, development and sales of proprietary IC products
and system solutions that enable a wide range of display
applications for smartphones, tablets, smart TVs/monitors,
notebooks and other smart devices, including wearables,
healthcare devices, smart home devices, as well as industrial
appliances, etc.

The Group has been operating in one single operating segment,
i.e. the design, development and sales of IC products and
system solutions.

The chief operating decision-makers have been identified
as the Executive Directors and senior management led by
the Chief Executive Officer. The Executive Directors and
senior management reviewed the Group’s internal reporting
as a whole to assess performance and allocate resources.
A management approach has been used for the operating
segment reporting.

Sales amounted to US$108,323,000 and US$98,148,000 for the
years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018, respectively.

The Company is domiciled in Hong Kong. The Group mainly
operates in Hong Kong. During 2019, the Group’s products
were mainly sold to customers located in Hong Kong, Taiwan,
Mainland China and Europe.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

5. Segment information and disaggregation

of revenue (continued)

(a) Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated

(b)

136

by geographical markets

5.

THERNREEE S E (R

(a) BBFTSEIBHEFEHKRE

2019 2018

US$’°000 us$’000

FEx ETT

Hong Kong 58 72,510 46,313
Mainland China R K BE 7,276 9,717
Taiwan =p- 13,976 20,849
Europe BUM 5,880 8,230
Japan A7 5,489 7,513
Korea 45 2,433 4,125
South East Asia R 286 367
USA xE 329 440
Others Hitb 144 594
108,323 98,148

Sales are classified based on the places/countries in which

customers are located.

Revenue from contracts with customers disaggregated

by product types

HERREFME®RE BXRIHE -

(b) ZERBEEIENEFENRE

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

FEx EH

Advanced Display ICs 5 HRICs 39,224 49,229
Large Display ICs K EFRICS 39,054 17,965
Other ICs HthiCs 30,045 30,954
108,323 98,148

Other ICs mainly comprise Mobile Touch and Mobile

Display products.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

5. Segment information and disaggregation 5. 2 ERREEE D E (&)
of revenue (continued)

Non-current assets (c) kRBEE

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

FEx ETT

Hong Kong BE 2,095 12,741

Mainland China R R BE 3,956 5,128

Taiwan =0 1,877 2,172

Korea B2 87 1,536

United Kingdom EE] - 310

Others Hib 10 20

8,025 21,907

(d)

(e)

(f)

Non-current assets are listed based on where the assets
are located which exclude financial instruments. Others

ERBEE(TEEEHIE) IR
BEEMNEGTUSNE - HthFE

mainly comprise Japan. BEAR-
Capital expenditures (d) EABEX
2019 2018
US$’000 US$'000
FER FER
Property, plant and equipment ME - BERRZE
Mainland China R K B 177 1,591
Hong Kong 0 109 73
Taiwan = 8 233
United Kingdom B 15 29
Others Hith 14 7
323 1,933

Capital expenditures are listed based on where the assets
are located.

Major customers

For the year ended 31 December 2019, the largest and
the second largest customers were located in Hong Kong.
Sales to them were US$36,371,000 and US$14,568,000,
respectively, which were all over 10% of the Group’s
total revenue. For the year ended 31 December 2018,
the largest and the second largest customers were
located in Hong Kong and the third largest customer was
located in Taiwan. Sales to them were US$14,698,000,
US$13,601,000 and US$11,234,000, respectively, which
were all over 10% of the Group’s total revenue.

Performance obligation
Sale of integrated circuits products

The performance obligation is satisfied upon delivery
of the products and payment is generally due within
30 to 90 days from delivery. Some contracts provide
customers with volume rebates which give rise to variable
consideration subject to constraint.

gﬁﬁ%i%*&%ﬁ%ﬂ’ﬂﬁﬁﬁi&%ﬂﬂ
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BZE2019F12A31ALEE &K
RE_REFURESR HEEHES
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10% o B £2018%F12HA31H Lt &
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e ISR MR

6. R AIEIE
AEEWKRRATEEDENRTHIEER

6. Loss before tax

The Group’s loss before tax is arrived at after charging:

Bl
2019 2018
Notes US$’000 US$’000
FiEE FEx ETT
Cost of goods sold HE AR 79,815 63,661
Product engineering costs EmIERAR 3,813 4,405
Provision for obsolete or slow moving B #EHEEE
inventories B s 21 6,696 5,920
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#E 14 3,851 4,201
Depreciation of property, plant and Yz - WEERRE
equipment e 15 1,662 1,750
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEERE 16 1,430 -
Minimum lease payments under KEHEZ2HE
operating leases HERK - 1,912
Lease payments not included in the HEXHTEER
measurement of lease liabilities HEAEBZTE 16 400 -
Foreign exchange differences, net SNEEEE - FEE 225 133
Auditor’s remuneration BN & 213 272
Impairment of goodwill EERE 14 2,317* -
Impairment of other intangible assets EFEERE 14 7,988* -
Impairment of right-of-use assets FrEREERE 16 67* -
Impairment of property, plant and Y% - HEERERE
equipment RE 15 12* -
Impairment of trade receivables FEWFRE 22 80* -
Employee benefit expenses (including EEEABAX (BEES
directors’ emoluments (Note 10)): B < (FFEE10)) :
— Salaries, allowances, bonuses - R RAR
and other benefits HAunEF 23,962 29,703
- Equity-settled share option - UEREEN
expense BREMX 47 12
- Cash-settled share option -UBREEENERE
expense (5 - 28
- Pension scheme contributions - RIREFHEIMHR
(defined contribution schemes) (REMREED 390 520
— Termination benefits - &IEER 3,068* 704
27,467 30,967

*

statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Other income and gains - net

e BRI

7. HttlR AR m — FHE

2019 2018

US$°000 US$’000

FER E0

Government grant* BT 4 B~ 3,920 4,162
Gain/(loss) on disposal of items of HEME - MERKRE

property, plant and equipment BEMWE, (EBE) (20) 117

Others Hith 238 272

4,138 4,551

* Various government grants have been received for the Group’s
research and development projects during the year. There are no

* ER AEENMEIAECESRERN
e WRAHELBABBENARETR

unfulfilled conditions relating to these grants. o

Finance income - net 8. REWA— FH
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FEx Ey
Interest income FE WA 146 361
Dividend income % B A 25 122

Fair value gain/(loss) from financial BBERURRAFEEN

assets at FVTPL, net NFEWE () FE (21) 1,491
Interest on bank loans RITEFPRNEZH (2) 4)
Interest on lease liabilities HEEBNAEZH (147) -
1 1,970

Five highest paid employees

Two (2018: one) of the five top-paid employees of the Group
are directors of the Company whose emoluments are disclosed
in note 10 to the financial statements.

Details of the emoluments of the other three (2018: four) top-
paid employees who are neither a director nor chief executive
officer of the Company are as follows:

9. It BEFMES

AEEBREESHFATEEMSE (2018
—B)ARANTESE EMESCRBBHRR
MizE10/R AR o

BT Z2=BFESRFTHAR (2018 :
MB)EEHFALTHMESWOT :

2019 2018
US$’000 us$’000
FEx EH

Salaries, allowances, bonuses and FreKER
other benefits TBALA E A EF 707 743
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 36 211
Contribution to pension scheme m R RET B 70 29
813 983
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e ISR MR

9. Five highest paid employees (continued) 9. EFEESHFMES (&)

10.

140

Number of individuals

Emolument bands (HK$) AB
MessEeEE BT 2019 2018
1,000,000 - 1,500,000 - 1
1,500,001 - 2,000,000 2 1
2,000,001 - 2,500,000 - 2
2,500,001 - 3,000,000 1 -
Directors’ and chief executive’s 10, EERTHARM S
remuneration
Directors’ and chief executive officer’s remuneration for the RIEETRREB QT EH 5E383(1)
year, disclosed pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1) (@~ () c)RMERAT HEZEEF =
(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and ER) ROIE2H iR EAFECEERT
Part 2 of the Hong Kong Companies (Disclosure of Information BARMEWOT :
about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as follows:
Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2019
HZ2019F12A31BLFEES S
Salaries Pension
and benefit scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions payment Total
FER Bfhe
ik AR HE 3 RERX 5t
US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$'000 US$°000
T£n F£n T£n T£n Tin
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Leung Heung Ying REH 33 - - 4 37
Sheu Wei Fu TR 32 - - 4 36
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph NS 35 - - 4 39
100 - - 12 112
Non-executive Directors FYTESE
Ma Yuchuan EE - - - - -
Li Jun Fig - - - - -
Yu Jian (appointed on Efr (R2019%646
6 June 2019) REZM) - - - - -
Li Ronggxin (resigned on ZEE (R2019558
28 May 2019) 28BBT) - - - - -
Executive Directors BTES
Wang Wah Chi, Raymond TEE (2019538
(appointed on 20 March 2019) 20HEZR) - 206 9 15 230
Yeh Tsuei Chi EEF (R2019F38
(resigned on 20 March 2019) 208 FE) - 234 6 - 240
Lo Wai Ming EfE6 - 162 7 - 169
- 602 22 15 639
100 602 22 27 751
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

10. Directors’ and chief executive’s
remuneration (continued)

e BRI

10 EERTHARME (&)

Directors’ emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2018

BZ2018E12A31ALFEES V¢

Salaries Pension
and benefit scheme  Share-based
Fees in kind®  contributions payment Total
‘ #ER Bihe
ik Hitr @A HE S %O h
US$'000 US$°000 Us$°000 US$°000 Us$’000
Tin Tin Fin Tin Tin
Independent Non-Executive Directors ~ BUFHTES
Leung Heung Ying RIH 37 - - 7 44
Sheu Wei Fu HESS 37 - - 7 44
Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph phx e 40 - - 7 47
114 - - 21 135
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Ma Yuchuan EX/I - - - - -
Li Jun Zig - - - - -
Li Rongxin RE - - - - -
Zhao Guiwu HER - - - - -
Executive Directors BTES
Yeh Tsuei Chi EE% - 305 13 43 361
Lo Wai Ming EEH - 148 7 19 174
- 453 20 62 535
114 453 20 83 670

During the year, no remuneration was paid or payable by the
Group to the directors as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group (2018: Nil). During the year, compensation for loss
of office of US$43,000 was paid by the Group to the director
(2018: Nil).

There was no arrangement under which a director waived or
agreed to waive any remuneration during the year (2018: Nil).

(i

(i)

Benefits in kind include leave pay, insurance premium, termination
benefits and other allowances.

This represents the amount charged to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss under the requirements of HKFRS 2 Share-based
payments. During the current and prior years, certain directors
were granted share options, in respect of their services to the
Group, under the share option scheme of the Company, further
details of which are set out in note 25 to the financial statements.
The fair value of such options, which has been recognised in the
statement of profit or loss over the vesting period, was determined
as at the date of grant and the amount included in the financial
statements for the current year is included in the above directors’
and chief executive’s remuneration disclosures.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

11. Income tax

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5%
(2018: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profit arising
in Hong Kong during the year, while overseas income tax
has been provided at the rates of taxation prevailing in the

countries in which the Group operates.

11.

Frig®t

EREHREBFEREEBEENMGEE
R A EI%EE16.5% (2018 : 16.5% ) FIFL
it E > MBHNTEBHRAREMERRY
WITHEGTE

2019 2018
Note US$’000 US$’000
g FErx EY

Current — Hong Kong: BIER— &%
Overprovision in prior years DEFEZRERE — (89)

Current — Elsewhere: BIER — g oh

Charge for the year FAXZH 5 142
Overprovision in prior years U FEZIRBE (67) -
Deferred income tax IEFE RSB 27 (313) (53)
Total income tax credit RSBk R 4258 (375) -

A reconciliation of the tax credit applicable to loss before tax
using the Hong Kong statutory tax rate (the statutory tax rate
for the jurisdictions in which the Company and the majority of

its subsidiaries are domiciled) to the tax
Group’s effective tax rate is as follows:

charge/(credit) at the

ERAREAERBEERR (RRAFARAKX
BOMBRARMEREZEEBHNIEER
R)FAENRB A BRI EERERAR
EEERBEGFENBIEMST (KR Y
R -

2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FEx =
Loss before tax HAIEE (28,180) (13,768)
Income tax calculated at a tax rate Fr8%i1%&16.5%
of 16.5% (2018: 16.5%) (2018 : 16.5%) 51 & (4,650) (2,272)
Difference in tax rates for other HhBZEBEN
jurisdictions BEEZR (362) (380)
Profits attributable to associates BENTNEF (25) (37)
Adjustments in respect of current FBBTHERERS
tax of previous periods BRIEH AR (67) (89)
Income not subject to tax BARB U & (171) (4,805)
Expenses not deductible for tax IR E 3,545 4,742
Tax losses utilized from previous FERAN T EHIE
periods ki - (21)
Tax losses not recognised AERNFEES 2,453 2,913
Others H b (1,098) (51)
Tax credit at the Group’s effective BRAKEEBRREFEZ
rate BIEEK R (375) -

142

Solomon Systech (International) Limited

e Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

12. Loss per share
(a) Basic loss per share

The basic loss per share for the year is calculated based
on the Group’s loss in 2019 attributable to owners of
the parent of US$27,272,000 (2018: US$13,677,000) and
the weighted average number of 2,480,252,351 (2018:
2,480,028,242) ordinary shares in issue during the year.

(b) Diluted loss per share

The diluted loss per share is calculated based on the
Group’s loss attributable to owners of the parent and
the weighted average number of ordinary shares after
adjusting for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary
shares.

The information related to the weighted average number of
ordinary shares is as follows:

e BRI

12. R EE
(a) BRELRESE

BREFTXBEBEERBELXAQRANE
BEAREAEER2019F 2 E 8
27,272,0003 7t (2018 : 13,677,000
) RAFRERITEBRINEFIIH
2,480,252,351}% (2018 : 2,480,028,242
B stE -

(b) BREHEHR
ERBEFHEBRDREAXTNES A
BiEAREEBERERFANMBERE

EHERENEBRELFARRZM
EFIEBRRYFE -

=BT BNAREERSIE

~ I§

Number of shares

R BB

2019 2018

Weighted average number of ERTEBERMEFIIH
ordinary shares in issue

2,480,252,351 2,480,028,242

Conversion of all dilutive share ~ BB FRITABEETE
options outstanding® B S I B R AR O _ B
Adjusted weighted average RAESTESRBEEHENRARE
number of ordinary shares BE B MEFIIRE
for diluted loss per share
calculation 2,480,252,351 2,480,028,242
() As at 31 December 2019, there were 15,560,000 () H2019F12H31H » A F#THE
(2018: 21,760,000) share options outstanding which BES 2R 515,560,000
could potentially have a dilutive impact but were anti- (2018 : 21,760,000) f% - 25 K
dilutive for the year then ended. Hence, no adjustment MHEAEEEHERE  BERGE
has been made on the calculation of the diluted loss ERESFBEAEEREESY
per share for the year ended 31 December 2019 and & o Fitk > §FE2019F K 201845
2018. 12A31B L FENESREEEE
WM o
13. Dividend 13. R &

No dividend for the years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018
was declared or paid by the Company. In addition, the Board
resolved not to propose any final dividend for the year ended
31 December 2019.

A AR B EIRSE KT EH E2019%2018
F12A31BLEEZRE -BE B8
REFEZSEREE2019F128318 Lt
FEZREPRE -
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14. Intangible assets

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

14. BIEEE

Patents and

intellectual
Goodwill property Total
B R
(5 HEERE st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
E EH Ey
31 December 2018 2018%F12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2018, net of 2018%F1 A1 H AR R
accumulated amortisation E s E] 2,317 17,524 19,841
Amortisation provided during the year F s - (4,201) (4,201)
Exchange realignment fE SRR - (31) (31)
At 31 December 2018 20185 12831H 2,317 13,292 15,609
At 31 December 2018 20185 12H31H
Cost DN 2,317 21,362 23,679
Accumulated amortization g Fc - (8,070) (8,070)
Net carrying amount REEE 2,317 13,292 15,609
31 December 2019 2019%12H31H
Cost at 1 January 2019, net of 201951818 AR K
accumulated amortisation ESe £ 2,317 13,292 15,609
Amortisation provided during the year F R - (3,851) (3,851)
Impairment during the year FRRE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
At 31 December 2019 M2019F12831H - 1,453 1,453
At 31 December 2019 M2019%12H31H
Cost DS 2,317 21,362 23,679
Accumulated amortisation Rty - (11,921) (11,921)
Accumulated impairment ZitRE (2,317) (7,988) (10,305)
Net carrying amount BREFE - 1,453 1,453

Amortization expense of US$3,851,000 (2018: US$4,201,000)
has been charged in research and development costs.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14. Intangible assets (continued)

Impairment tests for goodwill and other intangible assets

Goodwill of US$2.3 million and certain other intangible assets
of US$1.2 million are allocated to the cash-generating unit
of Touch and Display Driver Integration (“TDDI CGU”) for
impairment testing.

The recoverable amount of TDDI CGU has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow projections
based on financial budgets approved by management covering
a five-year period. Cash flows beyond the five-year period are
extrapolated using the estimated growth rates stated below.

The key assumptions used for the calculations in 2019 and
2018 are as follows:

e BRI

4. BILEE ()

BERAEMEFLEERERNR

BE23EEEARMBEEMELEE.2
BEEASEGRTDODIREEAENETHE
2y E AR -

MEEECREELEU T RE SRR
EAEEER  CHAEKEEEEMMS
FUBAELERFRRSRAR - BB
SFEMME ML AT ARG R RAEH -

2019 2018MIFT EIRUT T ERREE -

2019 2018
Average growth rate FIgERE 13% 42%
Average gross margin TG EFER 26% 34%
Discount rate BRI =R 18% 16%
Long-term growth rate REBRE 2% 3%

Management determined budgeted gross margin based on past
performance and its expectations of the market and technology
development. The long-term growth rate used is consistent
with the forecast, with reference to certain external data. The
discount rate used reflects specific risks relating to the CGU.

31 December 2019

The challenging external environment in the second half of
the financial year, the overall effect of which became more
apparent after the strategic planning and forecasting process
that underpinned the year end impairment review. The
recoverable amount of the TDDI CGU as at 31 December 2019
determined using the above basis is approximately US$0.1
million, which is lower than its carrying value, resulting in an
impairment of goodwill of approximately US$2.3 million, and an
impairment of other intangible asset of approximately US$1.2
million.

Another intangible asset in relation to the Mobile Touch
business amounting to approximately US$6.8 million was also
impaired during the year due to continued loss-making position
and intensified market competitions in the Mobile Touch
business.

31 December 2018

In the opinion of the Company’s directors, a decrease in the
average growth rate by 24% would cause the carrying amount
of the TDDI CGU to equal to its recoverable amount, and any
reasonably possible change in other key assumptions on which
the recoverable amount was based would not cause the TDDI
CGU’s carrying amount to exceed its recoverable amount. As
at 31 December 2018, the TDDI CGU’s recoverable amount
exceeded its carrying amount by US$9,200,000.

EEEREUERER ALY m S M7 s
ReAHMEBETHEEENR - FHANRHE
REHESEZRHLEHNBHBE TR -2 - Fr
RERERDRREEEREELENM 2
ER e

2019%12H31H

MERERVBFEETHEFRRRE  H
ERYANETERELRRERT 2R
FEIRFERABREELEABAE  KTDDIRSE
BEE BN HN2019F12A31A 2 a k@&
BANOIHEEGE BERFRALEER
ERHEMNIEEEAEMETLEER
BE12EBER - BEEBEBFARSER
Fz[HMBEX] -

S-ERBHBIZXEERNERLEE
FAMENCSEERXT  HRBEFE
EBRFBEBBERTEERT -

2018%12H31H

AABESBRE  FHEBRERD24%5
EYHSELENVNNREESENRETWE
S MAKBESEMRBENEMEER
BRHNEAEENEEHSEITEEHRS
EAXENHREERBHETWE £%E - R
2018F12H31E " REELXENMM AWK
[B] & 2888 18 H BRI {89,200,0003% 7t ©
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15. Property, plant and equipment 15. W13 - B R R

146 Solomon Systech (International) Limited

Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
FER
i HENE BEE#E. RER
RETF £ FURRRE ERERHE RE a5t
Us$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$'000 Us$’000 US$'000
T£n Txn T£n Fxn T£n TEn
31 December 2019 2019%12A31H
At 1 January 2019: #2019%1A1H
Cost A 1,722 2,851 6,404 16,538 70 21,585
Accumulated depreciation ~ EiHiE (202) (2,539) (5,280) (14,458) (70) (22,549)
Net carrying amount RRFE 1,520 312 1,124 2,080 - 5,036
At 1 January 2019, netof  R2019F1A 1R
accumulated depreciation ZiHE 1,520 312 1,124 2,080 - 5,036
Additions hE - 19 " 161 72 323
Disposals B - - (24) (5) - (29)
Impairment during the year ~ FRH{E - - (1) (1) - (12)
Depreciation provided during  ER{TE
the year (20) (168) (670) (79) ) (1,662)
Exchange realignment ERAZ - - ) 2 - (6)
At 31 December 2019, net of 72019512 A31 B
accumulated depreciation BREHTERAE
and impairment 1,500 163 482 1,441 64 3,650
At 31 December 2019 12019%12531H
Cost A 1,722 2,746 5741 16,399 72 26,680
Accumulated depreciation ZEHE (222) (2,583) (5,248) (14,957) 8) (23,018)
Accumulated impairment 2 HE - - (11) (1) = (12)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,500 163 482 1,441 64 3,650

Depreciation expense of US$484,000 (2018: US$399,000) has
been included in cost of sales, US$335,000 (2018: US$368,000)
in research and development costs and US$843,000 (2018:
US$983,000) in administrative expenses.

As at 31 December 2018, one of the Group’s bank loans was
secured by the Group’s freehold land in Taiwan of US$711,000,
which was released upon repayment of the corresponding loan
during the year.

The impairment of property, plant and equipment of US$12,000
is included in “Other expenses” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and attributable to the TDDI CGU as mentioned
in note 14.

e Annual Report 2019

T & & F484,0003 jt (2018 : 399,000
ER) BT AEERS  FFAFERE
2% & F A335,0003 5t (2018 : 368,000
Et) 0 T AITHEB X £848,000% Tt
(2018 : 983,000% 7T) °

A2018%F 128310  AEBE —BRTE
RUUKREB KX EREM L #711,000% T
BRI HIBFERERNEERNEERE
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15. Property, plant and equipment

16.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

15. M% ~ EERRE (&)

(continued)
Furniture, Machinery
fixtures, and
Land Leasehold licenses and laboratory Motor
and building improvements  equipment  equipment vehicles Total
PR
i HENE EEHE- BER
REP R FURRRE ERERE HE @t
Us$’000 US$°000 Us$000 US$°000 US$'000 Us$’000
ey E ey E ey E
31 December 2018 2018%12A31H
At 1 January 2018; 120185 141H
Cost B 1,792 2,921 6,298 17,181 70 28,262
Accumulated depreciation  Z3HHTE (189) (2,452) (4,862) (15,605) (70) (23,178)
Net carrying amount REFE 1,603 469 1,436 1,576 - 5,084
At 1 January 2018, net of R2018F1 A 1Rk
accumulated depreciation ZHE 1,603 469 1,436 1,576 - 5,084
Exchange realignment EHAR (62) (M (44) (81) - (194)
Additions nE - 58 517 1,358 - 1,933
Disposals RE: - - - (37) - (37)
Depreciation provided during  FRITE
the year (21) (208) (785) (736) - (1,750)
At 31 December 2018, net of  R2018%F 123318
accumulated depreciation BREGHTE 1,520 312 1,124 2,080 - 5,036
At 31 December 2018 R2018F12531H
Cost AR 1,722 2,851 6,404 16,538 70 27,585
Accumulated depreciation  ZiHTE (202) (2,539) (5,280) (14,458) (70) (22,549)
Net carrying amount EEEE 1,520 312 1,124 2,080 - 5,036
Leases 16. HE
The Group as a lessee REBBEREEEA
The Group has leases for its office properties and motor AEBHERAERTEANREERE

vehicles used in its operations. Leases of leased properties
generally have lease terms between 2 and 4 years, while
motor vehicles generally have leases between 2 and 3
years. Generally, the Group is restricted from assigning and
subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

B HEMXERBER2E4F > MAE
MEMBER2E3F - —RME - A5
THEAEBUNMNTEZRSBHRESE

Eo

RFANEARAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

16. HE (&)

16. Leases (continued)

The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements

(a) Right-of-use assets (a) EHEESE
The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets AEBWEAREERABEREAFE
and the movements during the year are as follows: SEOT
Leased Motor
properties vehicles Total
HEYE AE By
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
ET EL EP
At 1 January 2019 R2019%1 810 3,180 61 3,241
Additions nE 139 - 139
Depreciation charge e (1,408) (22) (1,430)
Remeasurement on lease HEKT =
modifications iTE (186) - (186)
Impairment AR (67) - (67)
At 31 December 2019 2019 12H31H 1,658 39 1,697
(b) Lease liabilities (b) HEEE

HERENREERAFEZH W

during the year are as follows: T
US$’000
ET
Carrying amount at 1 January 2019 R2019%F1 A1 HEREE 3,238
New leases HEE 139
Accretion of interest recognised during REEF 2 IE M
the year H®E 147
Remeasurement on lease modifications HEEFT 252 (190)
Payments INEN (1,436)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2019 R2019F12A31 HEREE 1,898
Analysed into: DRI
Current portion TRED 1,292
Non-current portion FERH 606

are as follows:

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases

(c) MEZERBERANBEEIHMNT :

2019

US$’000

FEx

Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEERE 1,430
Expenses relating to short-term leases and THIHE R &R T R

leases with remaining lease terms ended 720195 12HA31H:

on or before 31 December 2019 ZAIAIENEE 400

Interest on lease liabilities HESBEMNFEXH 147

Total amount recognised in profit or loss RBREREZNETH 1,977
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e BRI

17. Investments in associates

17. RBZERATNKRE

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

TEx FEx

Share of net assets EFEEE 892 737

Particulars of the associates are as follows:

Place of

BEQNTAWFABROT ¢

Percentage of equity

registration/ Particulars of attributable to the Company
incorporation registered capital/ RAREEEREAL
Associated companies and operation Principal activities issued shares
ALK SMER, SR
BENR EENH IEXRK RBHFE 2019 2018
% %
Beijing LED Energy PRC LED system design CNY20,000,000 23.5% 23.5%
Management Technology ~#El and contract AK#20,000,000
Co. Ltd. installation
T EERREHERNE LEDZR &R TR
BRERAH IRRE
Kitronix Limited Hong Kong Design, development,  HK$38,000,000 25.0% 25.0%
FRNBRATF ) manufacturing & #371.38,000,000
distribution of LCD
modules
Rat o BB RER
PHERBRETFESR
The following table illustrates the aggregate financial gﬁaﬂﬁﬂﬂfﬁéﬂ'ﬂﬁ?ﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ'ﬂ%@ﬁgﬂjﬁ%%
information of the Group’s associates that are not individually B ERIEFER
material:
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FErx E
Share of the associates’ profits and FE{LEE= N\ T
total comprehensive income AERBERZEBE
for the year 155 222
Aggregate carrying amount of AEBREEE QT
the Group’s investments in the REWIREAEE
associates 892 737

SPARNKEAERAT o 2019F 5K
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

18. Subsidiaries 18. Mfi B A &)

ARABETEWMBRARAFABRAOT :

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as

follows:

Place of registration/

incorporation Principal activities and
Name and kind of legal entity place of operation Particulars of capital Interest held
£8 ERRUER AR FEEEREELY Rt KEkR
Solomon Systech Limited HK, LLC Design, development, sales of IC 188,585,271 ordinary shares of 100%
BAREERLT and system solutions, HK HK$188,585,271

&8 BRLT HR BERHERERE 188,585,271 3£188,585,271 & 10

?L%RE B VEER

PRC, LLC
PE - R

US$7,500,000 registered and paid up capital 100%
7500000% L EE MR ARER

Jing Guang Semiconductors
(Dongguan) Limited
REREYERARLT

Manufacturing of IC, Mainland China

RERAZRER - T8

Solomon Systech Japan Company
Limited

Japan, LLC
BE BRAT

Korea, LLC
28 BRAF

Market research, Japan
e 85

10,000 ordinary shares of JPY1,000 each ~ 100%
10,000 EREE1TATNERR

Solomon Systech Korea Limited Application R&D, Korea

ERAY - &E

2,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each 100%
2,000 8 REE5, 0008 T WEER

Solomon Systech Pte. Ltd. Singapore, LLC

HNRANE - ARAT
PRG, LLC

Design and distribution of IC, Singapore
R RABERERRS  HK

480,000 ordinary shares of SGD1 each 100%
480,000 B RABIFMR TN ERR
HK$8,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%

Solomon Systech (Shenzhen) Limited Design and distribution of IC,

Mainland China

150

SRR (RY) BRA tE BRAR RARIEERERRS 7B 8,000,000 EE AR AR ER
Solomon Systech Taiwan Limited Ta|wan LLC Market research Taiwan 5,000,000 ordinary shares of NTD10 each ~ 100%
BRNERHERAE 22 ERAF mEN%E A 5,000 0008 REE 105 AL RR
Solomon Systech (UK) Limited United Kingdom, LLC ~ Design and distribution of IC, United 1 ordinary share of GBP1 each 100%

Solomon Systech (China) Limited
BRNE (hE) BRAT

Sentron, Inc.

#E BRLE
PRC, LLC
RE - ARAF

Korea, LLC
&8 BRAR

Kingdom

Rt RAERHERRS  RE

Design and distribution of IC,
Mainland China
FHRIBERERES TH

Application R&D, Korea
ERR% &6

1REREEIRENERR

US$20,000,000 registered and paid up capital 100%

20,000,000% EHMR AR ER

80,000 ordinary shares of KRW5,000 each

80,000 &R EfE5,0008 TH & B

52%

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
for the year or formed a substantial portion of the net assets
of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries would, in
the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited

e Annual Report 2019

E% A5 ERFASIAATZHEART

BEREASEFNEENANEEFE

ZEE% P& BEERREINHMMEL
AZHBEEEENBRAR -



19.

20.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Equity investment designated at fair
value through other comprehensive
income

19.

e BRI

BAFEEFAHEMEEZERK
mHORERE

2019 2018
US$°000 US$’000
FER ETT
Equity investment designated BAFEEFAEMEEKEN
at fair value through other RERE
comprehensive income
Club debenture SHES 929 839

The above equity investment was irrevocably designated at
fair value through other comprehensive income as the Group
considers this investment to be strategic in nature.

Cash and cash equivalents

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances of the Group denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
amounted to US$7,549,000 (2018: US$4,532,000). RMB is
not freely convertible into other currencies, however, under
Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on
daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits are made
for varying periods of between one day and three months
depending on the immediate cash requirements of the Group,
and earn interest at the respective short-term time deposit
rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

20.

RABKARLIT o

FEERARRERHKMMEME  RERE
AAEEREE A FEETARMEE
W

ReRkBTEEY

RFERR  REBUARE (AR D
STENBESRIRITERAT,549,0005% T
(2018% : 4,532,000% T) - ARMERT
BEHEZBRAHEMEY  BREFBEIREN
HNESEIRGMLEE  EERITHNEE
EBRG > REBEEBBEREETHE
EBENBTABRARELBEMER -

ROFRBEEARTERANRZZE
A REREA L - B EHFROHR B
AEMERATE  RIAXEENNERE
ERME  ARBEEANEHEHRERA=R
BEFI S - RITEBEFERREERFHR
17 MHEENCHE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

21.

22.

Inventories 1. 78
2019 2018
US$’°000 US$’000
FEx FET
Finished goods K 4,409 3,569
Raw materials and work in progress EMRRERER 38,114 39,147
42,523 42,716
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BIFSFIHEFE
inventories OB (15,732) (10,062)
26,791 32,654
The cost of inventories recognized as an expense and BRABBIETFTAHERTNEFEERK
included in cost of sales amounted to US$79,815,000 (2018: #79,815,000% jt (2018 : 63,661,0003%
US$63,661,000). JT) °
Movements on the provision for obsolete or slow moving BRFEFENRENESIMAOT :
inventories are as follows:
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FEx FEx
At 1 January M1B1H 10,062 7,935
Scrap of inventories against provision GFERENREE (1,026) (3,793)
Provision for obsolete or slow moving BREFHEFE
inventories RS 6,696 5,920
At 31 December »12H831H 15,732 10,062
Trade and other receivables, 2. BURRREMER  FAMS
prepayments and deposits ARET&
2019 2018
Note US$’000 US$’000
MIEE FEx FEx
Trade receivables FEWFR 18,158 22,527
Trade receivables from related parties BB T FE UL R 34 1,702 1,527
Impairment WERE (220) (140)
Trade receivables — net W —F58 19,640 23,914
Deposits, prepayments and e ENRK
other receivables H b fE YR 3,153 4,692
Prepayments to related parties B A TR 34 175 232
Trade and other receivables FE W R R LAt FE UL TR
- current portion —RE 22,968 28,838
Prepayments and deposits FENRKEE £
- non-current portion —3ERE 333 525
23,301 29,363

152 Solomon Systech (International) Limited

e Annual Report 2019



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22. Trade and other receivables,

prepayments and deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s trade receivables from
corporate customers were mainly on credit terms of 30 to 90
days. As at 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of trade
receivables based on invoice dates and net of loss allowance,
is as follows:

e BRI

2 BRI REMEWRRR - AN

MR & (&)

A2019F12A31  AEFBH L EE
FrEWREEHEEAI0E0H - B
2019F12HA31H ' EWRUBREZERHK
NKRBERENRESNMNOT :

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

Fxr E

1-30 days 1-30H 13,841 9,622
31-60 days 31-60H 4,007 6,547
61-90 days 61-90H 1,641 4,522
91-180 days 91-180H 9 3,223
181-365 days 181-365H 142 -
19,640 23,914

The movements in the loss allowance for impairment of trade
receivables are as follows:

FEWRERBEBHNT

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

FErx S

At beginning of year REL) 140 140
Impairment losses (note 6) WAE (MfEE6) 80 -
At end of year RER 220 140

An impairment analysis is performed at each reporting date
using a provision matrix to measure expected credit losses.
The provision rates are based on days past due for groupings
of various customer segments with similar loss patterns (i.e.,
by geographical region. The calculation reflects the probability-
weighted outcome, the time value of money and reasonable
and supportable information that is available at the reporting
date about past events, current conditions and forecasts of
future economic conditions. Generally, trade receivables are
written off if past due for more than one year and are not
subject to enforcement activity.

BEBRSANERBRBERETRED
o UEtEBEMEREE - BERERA
BEUBAEANZEZTFHNDARNS
HRE (B RIBEH) - ZEtERKRT
BMEMELER  ERBEEEARKREA
HAESNERNBESMH  BERIRRMK
REBERRFEANESEMAIXZFER - —
KM= BURNEHEE-—FEXAEFS
HREBER TGS -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e ISR MR

22. Trade and other receivables, 2. BURRRHEMER AN
prepayments and deposits (continued) MRET & (&)
Set out below is the information about the credit risk exposure LU 80 51 7 52 (B 457 A 438 48 SE Pl A FE KUK S
on the Group’s trade receivables using a provision matrix: BRIk :
As at 31 December 2019 #2019%12H31H
Expected credit Gross carrying Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
FHEEBRSR R E{E FHEEER
% US$°000 US$’000
Aok FEx FEx
Past due B
Current RiBHA 0.75% 13,946 105
1 to 30 days 1-30H 1.26% 4,058 51
31 to 60 days 31-60H 2.90% 1,690 49
61 to 90 days 61-90H 3.84% 9 -
Over 90 days HiE90H 9.55% 157 15
19,860 220
As at 31 December 2018 A2018%F12831H
Expected credit Gross carrying  Expected credit
loss rate amount losses
FEHEEEHER IR E1E FHEEEE
% Us$’000 US$’000
Epalse FEx FET
Past due B
Current RiBHA 0.37% 13,614 51
1 to 30 days 1-30H 0.60% 7,724 46
31 to 60 days 31-60H 1.40% 1,567 22
61 to 90 days 61-90H 1.80% 1,139 20
Over 90 days HiEB90H 2.76% 10 1
24,054 140
The financial assets included in other receivables and deposits HEREMERFANSHEELREY
for which there was no recent history of default and past RN ARBEHE - R20194F K20185F 128
due amounts. As at 31 December 2019 and 2018, the loss BMTHZEHEEREBLTEMTFEN -

allowance was assessed to be minimal.
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23. Financial assets at fair value through

24,

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

2. BRERURRAEEERN

profit or loss MBEEE
2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FErx EP
Non-current asset FREBEE
Call option over non-controlling interests ~ JE% IR iER F2 B - 467
Current assets REBEE
Marketable bonds AEEES - 567
Marketable funds EEES - 8,154
Listed equity securities and fund FTRERES - 59
- 9,247

Changes in fair values of FVTPL are recorded in finance income
- net in the consolidated statement of profit or loss (note 8).

The Group’s call option over non-controlling interests was
valued at 31 December 2018 and 2019 by an independent,
professionally qualified valuer. The listed and unlisted financial
instruments were disposed during the year. As at 31 December
2018, the fair values of listed financial instruments were based
on quoted market prices at the balance sheet date while the
fair values of unlisted financial instruments were determined by
reference to the dealer’s quote or input from reputable financial
institutions.

BiREmARRAFEEZZETHERST
BEBRTHRERA —FHE (M58 o

AEERFEIERERZ DRI EN2018FE R
2019F12A31HE U BIEEXEERK
REMETHEE  EmRFLTHERT
BEERFEARNHE - R2018F12H8318 -
TSR T ECAFTEREREEAN
TIBWE MIFELTERITANLIFEZ
EERIUARGENSZERITENRES
RUBEENSRKEBEER -

Issued capital 24, B RITRA
2019 2018
Number of Number of
shares  US$’000 shares  US$’000
R EE FEx RO EE Ey
Authorized: EE
- Ordinary shares of -BREE0.10BTH
HK$0.10 each ZER 5,000,000,000 64,433 5,000,000,000 64,433
Issued and fully paid: BRTRAR
At 1 January M1A1H 2,480,252,351 31,967 2,479,552,351 31,958
Exercise of share options TRERE - - 700,000 9
At 31 December ®W12A831H 2,480,252,351 31,967 2,480,252,351 31,967
SFNEERAT e« 2019F5% 155
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25. Equity compensation scheme

(a) The Share Option Scheme

156

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “2013
Share Option Scheme”) at the annual general meeting
held on 28 May 2013. The terms of the 2013 Share Option
Scheme are in accordance with the provisions of the
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules on the Stock Exchange.
The 2013 Share Option Scheme is valid and effective for
a period of 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013, being
the date of adoption of such scheme by the shareholders
of the Company. The Board shall be entitled at any time
within 10 years commencing on 28 May 2013 to make
an offer for the grant of an option to any qualifying
participants.

The purpose of the 2013 Share Option Scheme is to
provide the participants (directors, employees, advisers,
consultants, agents, distributors, contractors, contract
manufacturers, suppliers, service providers, customers,
business partners, joint venture business partners, etc., of
any member of the Group) with the opportunity to acquire
proprietary interests in the Company and to encourage
them to work towards enhancing the value of the Company
for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders as a
whole.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme must not in aggregate exceed 10% of
the issued share capital of the Company as at the date of
approval of the 2013 Share Option Scheme or 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

The total number of shares of the Company issued and to
be issued upon exercise of the options granted to each
participant (including exercised, cancelled and outstanding
options) in any 12-month period shall not exceed 1% of
the shares of the Company in issue.

An offer shall remain open for acceptance by the qualifying
participant concerned for a period of 21 days from the
date of the offer (or such longer period as the Board may
specify in writing). HK$1.00 is payable by the grantee to
the Company on acceptance of the offer of the option.

Solomon Systech (International) Limited e
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(a)

BREE

KA T MR2013F5H288 BITH R
RBERSCHEM—BRETE
(FT20138E R #EsT 21 ]) - 20138 B IR #&
RN EER ETEAE1I7TEN
&3 o 2013HE IR REFT BIH20135F5 8
280 (BN D B R R ER A 5% B8 IR A 5t
EzH)RBEM AHPIOE-EEE
A LLA2013E5 28 B B10E RN H
BRETFTEERSHEHSE -

2013 REFEEERTRENRS
HEKEEREZES BT B
B E s RE - 28E - AEE -
ABRER - HED  RBREEE
BEF -BEBH SELEMERHF
Z)REREEAQAEERDNHE
HEESE  BEADARERREER
mmEAAQFEE -

RIB2013BIRAES BT R HFTERE
IRAEEAT M A T BT ABE
THEEBRUEBRESEERAD
AEBRITRANIONHAQTFEFE
BITIRABIB0% °

BESHEEETMI2EARNERY
BRE(BECITHE  SFHEBEKRT
F)ETHEREERNEBTHERD
ARPEY G TFEBEBAATE
BITRMO1% °

BRENEZZAHET21 888 (R
ExgnEETANRREB) AT
HEBERSHEERP - NERNBRE
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

25. Equity compensation scheme (continued) 25. B 4~ %5 SR BN 51 2 (&)

(@) The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The subscription price of share option shall be determined
by the Board at its absolute discretion in accordance
with the terms of the 2013 Share Option Scheme. The
subscription price in respect of any particular option shall
be no less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheet issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; and (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the daily
quotations sheets issued by the Stock Exchange for the
five business days immediately preceding the date of
grant.

The total number of share options available for issue upon
exercise of all share options to be granted under the 2013
Share Option Scheme as at the date of this annual report
is 232,465,235, representing 9.4% of the issued shares of
the Company. The number of share options outstanding as
at 31 December 2019 was 15,560,000.

The following share options under the 2013 Share Option

(a) BREE (&)

F013BMETERXAET - &
ESERARHENTUBRENIE
B - EAERNBRENIBEREAN
THERSE  (RONEE A HER
R HWERMIIWHE Rb)K
E EER H B B AI5ME & % B £
RFrEABERAYFEHRHE -

RAERKE A - RIB2013IREST
B MATEREERETHEE
] FEITHIR 0B B £232,465,235
B AR AR DT BITRMDEI0.4% o A
2019% 128318 » & 15,560,000
BEMBRERLITE -

£ 2013 RET I RITREBR

Scheme were outstanding during the year: EHEWT :
2019 2018

Weighted Weighted
average Number of average Number of
exercise price Options exercise price Options
MEFATEE BRESE METHTRE BREHA

HK$ HK$

BT BT
At beginning of year REH 0.327 21,760,000 0.334 31,600,000
Grant during the year FRERH 0.199 4,500,000 0.254 2,400,000
Exercised during the year EREITE - - 0.314 (700,000)
Lapsed/forfeited during the year FRT 8/ ME 0.335  (10,700,000) 0.331  (11,540,000)
At end of year RER 0.285 15,560,000 0.327 21,760,000

The weighted average share price at the date of exercise
for share options exercised during the year ended 31
December 2018 was HK$0.34 per ordinary share.

During the year, movements in the number of share
options outstanding under the share option scheme and
the related exercise prices are as follows:

B Z2018F 128318 L F KX £1T
FEHNMEFLETEEAER BT
0.34 °

Fr o BERBRESEIEARTEBR

EHENEHRABETEESHN
T :
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25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

25. R 7~ FE o ¥R B 5T &) (4&)

(a) The Share Option Scheme (continued) (a) BBEESE (E)
Number of share options (in thousand units)
BIREH A (AT
Held on
31 December
2018 and
1 January 2019 Held on
R2018%E Granted Exercised Lapsed/ 31 December
Exercise price 12A31BR during during  Forfeited during 2019
Grant date per share HK$ ~ 2019%181H the year the year the year R2019% Exercise period
RiHAH BRTEERR —E FRERE EFREAE FACHE/HE 12A318KA yid
30 March 2015 0.309 100 - - (100) - 3 April 2017 to 29 March 2019
2015%3A30A 2017F4A3RZ2019F3529R
2 October 2015 0.315 200 - - (200) - 2 October 2017 to 30 September 2019
2015F10A2H 2017F10 5262201995308
11 January 2016 0.369 1,000 - - - 1,000 2 April 2018 to 31 March 2020
2016F1A11A 2018F4 2R Z2020F3531R
0.369 1,000 - - - 1,000 2 January 2019 to 31 December 2020
2019F1 A2AE2020% 128318
0.369 2,500 - - (2,500) - 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
201954 1R Z202153531R
0.369 2,500 - - (2,500) - 2 January 2020 to 31 December 2021
202051 A2AE2021%12831A
30 September 2016 0.305 2,400 - - (2,400) - 2 October 2017 to 30 September 2019
2016F9A30R 2017F10 5262201995308
0.305 1,260 - - - 1,260 2 April 2018 to 31 March 2020
2018F4A2R22020F3531A
0.305 6,000 - - (3,000) 3,000 1 April 2019 to 31 March 2021
2019F4A18 22021535318
9 October 2017 0.370 2,400 - - - 2,400 2 October 2018 to 30 September 2020
2017%10A9A 2018%F10A2A 22020595307
9 October 2018 0.254 2,400 - - - 2,400 2 October 2019 to 30 September 2021
2018510A9A 2019510A2A 22021594308
9 May 2019 0.248 - 2,000 - - 2,000 2 January 2020 to 31 December 2021
201955A9A 2020E152022021%E12831A
30 December 2019 0.159 - 2,400 - - 2,400 2 October 2020 to 30 September 2022
2019%12A30R 2020510A2A £2022%9A30A
- 50 - - 50 2 January 2021 to 31 December 2022
2021F152AZ2022%12831A
- 50 - - 50 2 January 2022 to 31 December 2023
202251520 Z2023%12831A
Total
@t 21,760 4,500 - (10,700) 15,560

At the end of the reporting period, the total number of
share options which are exercisable under the 2013 Share
Option Scheme is 11,060,000 (2018: 7,360,000).

At the end of the reporting period, the Company had
15,560,000 share options outstanding under the 2013
Share Option Scheme during the year. The exercise in full
of the outstanding share options would, under the present
capital structure of the Company, result in the issue of
15,560,000 additional ordinary shares of the Company
and additional share capital of approximately US$200,000

(before issue expenses).
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RIREER - BIB2013B R EST 2
‘MEE’J B8 IR #E 42 21 511,060,000
(2018 : 7,360,000) °

RIRER - A2 AR B Z%201308
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

25. Equity compensation scheme (continued)

(a)

(b)

The Share Option Scheme (continued)

The Company uses the Binomial Valuation Model to value
the share options granted. The key parameters used in
the Model and the corresponding fair values of the share
options granted during 2019 and 2018 are listed below:

e BRI

25. R 7~ HE o ¥R B 5T &) (4R

(a)

BRESE ()

RABFERAZBEIEEAFES RS
B BE BT FE o A2019R2018FE W E 2
HIERENAFTERERLEERNNE
BELEHBENT :

2019 2019 2018

30 December 9 May 9 October

Date of grant RHBEH 12H30H 5H9H 10H9H

Number of share options ERHBREHE 2,500 2,000 2,400
granted (in thousand units) (A F1L5T)

Total share option value BRERE

- HK$’000 —-FExT 100 118 176

- US$’000 equivalent -FEREHE 13 15 21

Share price at date of grant (HK$) #ZH BHEIMREGET) 0.159 0.226 0.250

Exercise price (HK$) TEEET) 0.159 0.248 0.254

Expected life of options (years) IE IR TR B PR HA(FF) 2.75-4 2.644 3

Annualized volatility FEKIE 45.7%-47.2% 44.0% 43.8%

Risk free interest rate 328 8 P R 2 1.98%-2.01% 1.75% 2.368%

Dividend payout rate RE = - - -

The Binomial Valuation Model is used to estimate the
fair values of European share options. The fair values
calculated are inherently subjective and uncertain due to
the assumptions made and the limitations of the Model
used. The value of a share option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions. Any change in
variables so adopted may materially affect the estimation
of the fair value of a share option.

The volatility measured at the standard deviation of
continuously compounded share returns is based on
statistical analysis of daily closing share prices over the
last few years.

The Share Grant

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company
awarded 1,902,000 ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each in the
capital of the Company (“Awarded Shares”) conditionally
to the chief executive officer (the “Beneficiary”). The
Awarded Shares were subject to the Group’s financial
results for the year ended 31 December 2018, of which
(i) 951,000 shares would be vested after the close of
business on 30 March 2019 and (ii) 951,000 shares would
be vested after the close of business on 31 December
2019. In the absence of an award share scheme and
trustee upon successful vesting of the Awarded Shares,
and subject to the Listing Rules, the Beneficiary shall
instruct an agent or a broker to purchase the Awarded
Shares directly from the market, with the cash reserve
made available by the Company.

There was no share award granted during the year ended
31 December 2019.

(b)

RABKARLIT o

“IHFIEEXEARGERA B RE
HWATE - FEHNAFESHER
HRMEXBFREMABERNEE
MRAEE - BRENEESEER
LEEXEBRNTEEHMAE o frx

DFENGEEREAZE -

RIEERBEREIERBEHF
AR ENSE 2 2R E
EOMBEEFEHR -

IR 17 58 %

2018F ;9 » KD T M4t F
1,902,000k KA & & R EE0.10
BrTHEER (HARRAD FITHK
HRITZHEAD - ERREROBURR
REBE018F 1283 1B B EE
S22, Hdh()/A2019F3H30H & =
#E R 1% 1% 53 B 951,0008% AR 19 R (ii)
A2019F 12831 HE£EREEAE
951,0008% B 19 57 | o 1B IR AR 19 A AKX
IWERBEMAERORBIFIRS
AANBERT TR ETRBFH
T ZHABESKREADRLL A
RATRENBRESHEATSEERE
BERERERMD -

FRERHROER -
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26.

27.

160

Reserves

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 79 of the
financial statements.

Deferred tax liability

Deferred tax liability is recognized using liability method on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets
and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the consolidated
financial statements.

The following are the deferred tax liability recognized and
movements thereon:

26. f& 15

REERFERUNFEZREREDFE
BN BERRETIRGEREZERA -

TEEREHRAR

EEREENHEIARKABEEE  PER
AEREBENHERGSYBEHRRZHE
HEZENERERFEF2HEE -

EEBEAEBAREHUT :

Recognition

of intangible

assets

BREREEE

US$’000

ET

At 1 January 2018 H2018F1A1H 366
Credited to profit or loss FFABRE (53)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 72018512831 H %20195F1 818 313
Credited to profit or loss FFABREK (313)

At 31 December 2019

M2019612A31H -

At 31 December 2019, the Group had unrecognised tax
losses arising in Hong Kong of US$102,067,000 (2018:
US$90,627,000), subject to the agreement by the Hong Kong
Inland Revenue Department, that are available indefinitely for
offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in
which the losses arose. The Group also had unrecognised
tax losses arising in Mainland China of US$5,846,000 (2018:
US$7,387,000), subject to the agreement by the relevant
taxation authority, that will expire in five years for offsetting
against future taxable profits of the companies in which the
losses arose. Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in
respect of these losses due to unpredictability of future taxable
profit streams.
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A2019F12A31H AEBEEBELE
B R #E R B IE B 18 5102,067,0003% T
(2018 : 90,627,000 7T) (BE#EBHIE
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EENEETBEAEEENAEIRIERES
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28.

29.

30.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e BRI

Trade and other payables 28. FEft R R H A FE K
2019 2018
Notes US$°000 US$’000
FiEE FEx ES
Trade payables TR (a) 15,845 18,697
Accrued expenses and other payables FESTRA SR R H AR FK 5,585 6,462
Contract liabilities EHNEE (b) 934 -
Refund liabilities RMEE 832 1,753
23,196 26,912

Notes: i EE

(a) At 31 December 2019, the ageing analysis of the trade payables
based on invoice dates is as follows:

(@) M2019F12H31H  EA U ZHH
WERER DT :

2019 2018

US$’000 US$’000

FEx FEx

1 - 30 days 1-30H 6,850 6,293
31 - 60 days 31-60H 5,907 5,072
61 - 90 days 61-90H 3,000 5,538
Over 90 days ##3iE90H 88 1,794
15,845 18,697

The trade and other payables are non-interest-bearing and have
an average term of three months.

(o) Contract liabilities include short-term advances received from
customers for the sale of ICs.

Interest-bearing bank borrowings

At 31 December 2019, the Group had a bank loan of
US$169,000 (2018: bank loan of US$176,000) in connection
with a Korean subsidiary. The bank borrowing was originally
matured on 5 July 2019 and was subsequently extended to
2 July 2021 and bears interest at a rate of 1% (2018: 1.25%)
per annum. The carrying amount of the loan at the end of the
reporting period approximated to its fair value and the loan is
denominated in KRW.

At 31 December 2018, the Group also had a mortgage bank
loan of US$22,000 in connection with the Group’s office
property in Hsinchu, Taiwan. The mortgage loan was repaid
during the year.

Banking facilities

At 31 December 2019 and 31 December 2018, the Group had
no unused banking facilities.

29.

30.

RABKARLIT o

BAREEMEASRSRE R —RR3E
RRKH-

(b) EHEEEFEAZAHEMENEFZE
HFEW A -

RITEFRERK

M2019F12A31H  A&EBEH —EHIR
1TE 169,000% 7t (2018 : $R1TE X
176,000 7t) BN BB 7 A7 - 28
RITEREH AR B2019F7AB R E
FEHE2021F7H28  EFRENZBE1%
(2018:1.25%) - FRIREMEEAEAFE
HE - BB THIE -

A20185F12A318  AE@BH —EHA B
T A E AR B EF22,000% T © %I
BRERCRFREE -

RITEE

R2019512A31H K2018512H31H -
AEELLIBERANRITEERE -
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31. Notes to consolidated statement of cash
flows

(a)

(b)

162

Major non-cash transactions

During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities of US$139,000
and US$139,000, respectively, in respect of lease
arrangements for leased properties (2018: Nil).

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

. mERETMERME

(@) EEBFREXRSH

FR AEEMRZHBEEVENFE
AREENEHEEENIRERE
2 Bl 2139,0003% Jt $1139,0003 T
(20184 : ) o

(b) RETDHEFZEBEEL

2019 2019
Lease
Borrowings liabilities
X HEAE
US$’000 US$’000
E ET
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12H31H 198 -
Effect of adoption of RwE By KR E%EA
HKFRS 16 ERIA: 0 - 3,238
At 1 January 2019 MR2019%F181H 198 3,238
Changes from financing cash flows E&ERE&RENEL (29) (1,289)
New leases HEE - 139
Interest expense FEXH - 147
Interest paid classified as operating BFESEAKEE
cash flows RERE - (147)
Remeasurement on lease HEBITZ
modifications e - (190)
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H 169 1,898
2018 2018
Borrowings
BX
US$’000
FEx
At 1 January 2018 M20185F181H 299
Changes from financing cash flows ZE&ERE&RENEL (101)
At 31 December 2018 M2018F12H31H 198

Solomon Systech (International) Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31. Notes to consolidated statement of cash 31. R E&HRERH T (&)
flows (continued)

(c) Total cash outflows for leases (c) HERESRBAR
The total cash outflows for leases included in the ?ﬁiﬁ%i‘%*@%ﬂ’ﬂﬁ%iﬁﬁiﬁﬂj%
statement of cash flows is as follows: BT
Us$’000
FET
Within operating activities ERETEH 147
Within financing activities EREEEHH 1,289
1,436
32. Commitments 32. &I
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREIE
Capital expenditure contracted for but not yet incurred at RBEHR  EFESNEEARBA
end of the reporting period is as follows: NEARBEZIIEHNT :
2019 2018
Us$’000 us$’000
FER ETT
Property, plant and equipment M BERREB 169 14
(b) Operating lease commitments as at 31 December 2018 (b) &HEHAEEEMN2018F12831H
The Group leased certain of its office properties, AEFBRBEEHELTHHBE T
machinery and motor vehicles under operating lease DY WM EE - WERESEL
arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for EIERG N F1 B44E o B FEE M
terms ranging from 1 to 4 years. Leases for machinery and B F H R R ) E3EAE o 2018
motor vehicles are negotiated for terms ranging from 3 to 4 10 831 B 7% £ B AR 5 OF AT 4 4 A 2

years. As at 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable operating
leases falling due as follows:

HERREEESLBEINROT :

2018
US$°000
FER

Within one year . _ —FR 1,815
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E-THE (AESEWE) 2.002

3,817
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33. Financial instruments by category 3. e T EZER
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial EEINEMIANRKEAREENT ¢
instruments as at the end of the reporting period are as follows:
2019 2019
Financial assets SREE

Financial asset at
fair value through
other comprehensive

income
BRAFEERA
Hitt2H K=
SREE
Equity Financial assets at
investment amortised cost Total
RBER A
RERE BENEREE #st
US$’000 US$’000 US$°000
TEn TEn TEn
Equity investment at fair BOFEEA
value through other Hi2E kN
comprehensive income fRERE 929 - 929
Financial assets included in  FERF K At WA
trade and other receivables &REE - 20,759 20,759
Pledged bank deposit SERBNRITER - 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents H&REEZ 15% - 18,078 18,078
929 38,967 39,896
Financial liabilities
at amortised cost
RESH AT E
HNemas
us$’000
Financial liabilities =K ETT
Financial liabilities included in trade Fiﬁ R E A EATR
and other payables A== R 19,859
Interest-bearing bank borrowing AHBEER 169
20,028
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33. Financial instruments by category B.eMITEZRER (F)
(continued)
2018 2018
Financial assets EREE
Financial asset at
fair value through
Financial assets at fair value other comprehensive
through profit or loss income
ROFERYA
Hip2EUEN
BARENRRATEENCREE EHEE
Designated as
such upon Mandatorily
initial designated Equity  Financial assets at
recognition as such investment amortised cost Total
NSEIR REHRARG
BHAE KHEE RiERs GHEREE Eh
US§'000 Us$000 US$000 Us$000 Us$000
Tin Tin Tin Tin Tin

Equity investment designated A FER:TA
atfair value through other 2 EREN

comprehensive income RERE - - 839 - 839
Financial assets included in ~ ENERE M
trade and other receivables  WHANEREE - - - 24,951 24,951
Financial assets at fair value ~ ERBZENRBAT
through profit or loss BENSRER 467 8,780 - - 9,247
Pledged bank deposit EERNBTER - - - 130 130
Cash and cash equivalents ~ BERHEESEN - - - 13,395 13,395
467 8,780 839 38,476 48,562

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

REBERAE

Hemaes

US$’000

Financial liabilities = =N ETT
Financial liabilities included in trade and other FEAS TR H AL B A TR Y

payables TRIBE 23,003

Interest-bearing bank borrowings IRITETEER 198

23,201
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e ISR MR

34. Related parties transactions

(@) China Electronics Corporation (“CEC”), a state-
owned information technology conglomerate under the
administration of the central government of the PRC,
through one of its wholly-owned subsidiaries, Huada
Semciconductor Co. Ltd., owns approximately 28.5% of
the issued shares of the Company and is thus a substantial
shareholder of the Company. Transactions between the
Group and the subsidiaries or associates of CEC are
regarded as transactions with related parties.

The following transactions were carried out with related

(@)

4. BEBAIXS

TEEFENEXEEEBRAAR
ERBERTETARFEENEEE
%éﬂﬁﬁ}m%’él BRAEZE
BRAAEAXERARLAERA

LfHHﬂIH

28.5% A NAZBITRM » HALT

ZEBRR - AEBECECKH B AT

o]

FEBBANIZBEEABRTRXS °

UTRERBBH 25 -

parties:

2019 2018
US$’000 US$'000
FEx FEx

Sales: HER .
Subsidiaries of CEC CECHYHt B A & 16,026 14,464

Purchases: BE
Subsidiaries of CEC CECHYMt B A & 281 372

The sales and purchases made with certain subsidiaries
of CEC were made according to prices and conditions
offered to the Group’s customers or offered by the

HCECHIB AR 2HE RiEKsE
AEEGEFRENERREEME
i BB R 5 — RNSME A WA

Group’s suppliers; and the transactions with related parties o
normally have an average term of three months.
The following were balances arising from such sales/ HisE HEBEKWIERR
purchases:
2019 2018
Note US$’00_0 US$’00_0
MIaE FEx ET
Trade receivables: FEWEK 22
Subsidiaries of CEC CECHIMt B 2 & 1,702 1,527
Prepayments: AR 22
Subsidiaries of CEC CECHIMIEB 2 8] 175 232
(b) Compensation of key management personnel of the (b) XEEXTEEEASNRM -
Group:
2019 2018
US$°000 US$’000
FER E3
Salaries, allowance, bonuses and other e BN TEA
benefits HibEF 602 453
Pension scheme contributions BIREETEIMR 22 20
Share-based payment expense RS 15 62
Total compensation paid to key ENFEEE EEAEZ
management personnel e ECEG 639 535

Details of compensation of the Company’s directors are
disclosed in note 10 to the financial statements.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Events after the reporting period

Up to the date on which these consolidated financial
statements are issued, the Group is still in the process
of assessing the impacts of the COVID-19 epidemic (the
“Epidemic”) on the financial performance and position of the
Group and is currently unable to estimate the quantitative
impacts to the Group. The management of the Group will pay
close attention to the development of the Epidemic and perform
further assessment of its financial impact.

The Epidemic is a non-adjusting event after the financial year

end and does not result in any adjustments to the consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2019.

Statement of financial position and
reserves of the Company

(a) Statement of financial position

e BRI

3Bb. BEFEREH

BERSUBHmRBRMA - AEENET
T BB AR S RE ([ BIE 1) ¥ AN 52 E 87
BEENRROZE » BAIEEEEB
AEAKENSE AEEBZRTBEER
ENEE THEMBESEETE—SF
fl o

REREMRFEEBBNERARMES
W AREHEE2019F12A31B LEEFEE
CEREMBERRELFTMAZR -

36. XD FMBMRR KRB

(a) MMM =T

2019 2018
US$’000 US$’000
FEx EyTy
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RB AT RE 123 18,081
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Trade and other receivables FEUR R R LAt FE UK SR 47 55
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUR B B X BIFK 54,247 71,317
Financial assets at fair value through BREBRURBRAFEER
profit or loss HBTEEE - 8,780
Cash and cash equivalents HeERREEEY 1,379 388
Total current assets RBEEEF 55,673 80,540
CURRENT LIABILITIES REBEE
Amounts due to subsidiaries NI ERNGIEN 214 241
Accrued expenses and other payables BE R EMENATR 205 221
Total current liabilities REAEET 419 462
NET CURRENT ASSETS REEEFE 55,254 80,078
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT HEERRD
LIABILITIES a& 55,377 98,159
EQUITY ER
Equity attributable to owners of the ERRERBFEA
Company LR
Issued capital 2B ITRA 31,967 31,967
Reserves & 23,410 66,192
Total equity HRER 55,377 98,159
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

e ISR MR

36. Statement of financial position and
reserves of the Company (continued)

36. XA E AR KR K GH(E)

(b) Reserves (b) &
Equity
Share compensation Accumulated

premium reserve losses Total

[N
A fE B e RitEE st
US$’000 US$’000 US$’000 US$’000
TER FER TER TER
At 1 January 2018 M2018F181H 109,084 17,692 (58,814) 67,962
Loss for the year FREE - - (1,801) (1,801)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBEE - - (1,801) (1,801)
Equity-settled share option arrangements % < 25 3 A - 12 - 12
Exercise of share options TRERE 19 - - 19
At 31 December 2018 R20185F12831H 109,103 17,704 (60,615) 66,192
At 1 January 2019 720191818 109,103 17,704 (60,615) 66,192
Loss for the year FREE - - (42,829)  (42,829)
Total comprehensive loss 2HEEBE - - (42,829)  (42,829)
Equity-settled share option arrangements PR 7 1 2% R A - 47 - 47
At 31 December 2019 R2019F12831H 109,103 17,751 (103,444) 23,410

37. Approval of consolidated financial

statements

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the

Board of Directors on 27 March 2020.
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FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

IEHMBERE

2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
—B-hEF —E-N\F ZE—F ZE-RF —Z-RHE
US$ millionBEEB £
Sales HE 108.3 98.1 82.5 68.4 70.9
Gross profit EF 21.3 28.2 29.3 23.5 23.2
Net loss EEFEE (27.8) (13.8) (10.3) (6.9) (6.4)
Assets and liabilities EEREE
- Total assets —-HEE 76.9 107.0 116.2 115.6 123.4
- Total liabilities -HeE 25.6 28.0 24.4 14.6 14.9
- Shareholders’ funds -BRERER 51.3 79.0 91.8 101.0 108.5
US centsE1l
Loss per share BREE
- Basic (i) — E (i) (1.1) (0.55) (0.41) (0.28) (0.26)
- Diluted (ii) - >-1(0) (1.1) (0.55) (0.41) (0.28) (0.26)
Dividends per share BRRE - - - - -
Net assets per share () BREEFME() 2.07 3.19 3.70 4.08 4.39

(i) The basic loss and net assets per share are based on the weighted average of 2,469,461,802, 2,477,102,351,
2,478,135,913, 2,480,028,242 and 2,480,252,351 ordinary shares in issue during each of the years ended 31

December 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, respectively.

EREAEERSEREEFER D HBIEEHE20155F » 201645 ~ 2017F ~ 2018F K2019F 128318 L E
RENDBITZTHERINET Y E2,469,461,8028% ~ 2,477,102,3518% ~ 2,478,135,8311% * 2,480,028,242%
2,480,252,3518 st & o

(i) For 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018 and 2019, the diluted loss per share information is based on 2,469,461,802,
2,477,102,351, 2,478,135,913, 2,480,028,242 and 2,480,252,351 ordinary shares, respectively, which are the
adjusted weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding assuming conversion of all dilutive/potential

share options outstanding during the year.

20155 ~ 201645 ~ 20174  2018FE K 2019F » SR EE BN ER 2 5322,469,461,802% ~ 2,477,102,351 /% ~
2,478,135,913% ~ 2,480,028,242/% % 2,480,252,351 R EBIRFTE  MEBRBEEE N REBRREAMBE KT
EBREC/FERNARBRCETMEFYEERTE -

RFANEARAF
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

2013 Share Option Scheme

The share option scheme approved by shareholders for adoption at the annual
general meeting held on 28 May 2013

AMEPD Active Matrix Electrophoretic Display

AMOLED Active Matrix Organic Light Emitting Diode

BJ-LED Beijing LED Energy Management Technology Co. Ltd**., a company
incorporated in the PRC with limited liability

Board Board of Directors

Cayman Islands Companies

Companies Law (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of the Cayman

Law Islands

CEACI CEAC International Limited, a company incorporated in Hong Kong with
limited liability and a wholly-owned subsidiary of CECI, and a connected
person of the Company

CEC China Electronics Corporation, a state-owned information technology
conglomerate under the administration of the central government of the PRC,
is a substantial shareholder of the Company through its interests in Huada

CECI ZEYIhEE %S ERMY AR /A E (CECI Technology Co., Ltd.**), a company

established in the PRC and an indirect subsidiary of the CEC, and a
connected person of the Company

Code Provision(s)

Code provision(s) in the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules

COSO Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission is a
private sector initiative that has issued internationally recognized internal
control frameworks

CNY Chinese Yuan, Reminbi

Company Solomon Systech (International) Limited, a company incorporated in the

Cayman lIslands with limited liability, the shares of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange

Director(s)

The director(s) of the Company

ESL Electronic Shelf Label

FHD Full High Definition, a display resolution standard of 1920 x 1080 pixels

FHD+ A display resolution standard of 2220 x 1080 pixels, which is more than the
normal FHD 1080p

FVTPL Fair value through profit or loss

Group The Company and its subsidiaries

HES tRERNKXEMHER AT (Beijing Huada Empyrean Software Co., Ltd.*), a
company established in the PRC, and a connected person of the Company

HK$/HKD Hong Kong dollars

Hong Kong/HK/HKSAR Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC

HKAS Hong Kong Accounting Standards

HKFRS Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards, or collectively for HKAS and Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards

Huada Huada Semiconductors Co. Ltd., a PRC company with limited liability to
consolidate all IC businesses under CEC group. It is a substantial shareholder
of the Company

IC Integrated Circuit

1IGZ0O A semiconductor material consisting of indium (In), gallium (Ga), zinc (Zn) and

oxygen (O)
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY
BRLAR

20138 R AT 2 M2013F5 A28 ARIT 2 RERBFEAE L ES KRR ER M ERE 2

AMEPD FEEMERETR

AMOLED THEREREX_GE

BJ-LED TRERatHERREREELA  RAPBETMRZZ2ERAT

EEg 4y

HERBNAE HMERB AR (1961FA@E3 ) KEERBE)

CEACI g%?%ﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ’&ﬁ REBEMAL2ERLT » BCECINZEMNME A

HEIEF, CEC FEBEFEEEXEEERLAR  —REBRRERTEPRENEENES
EFEERMEXEE BBEHNERANEZALRARZEERR

CECI FYFEFAREERNEERAT  RABFMRLZEREEAE  HHE
EFEEZBHENE QR

<F A% 32 iR A R4 E 2 B EEAFRIRH<FRIR

COSO Committee of Sponsoring Organization of the Treadway Commission;g — & FA
it E BRREEBIATNADESERE

AR FET - ARE

¥ NN &mmnwammmammmnmmw-—%&ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁ%wﬁmﬂa'E

S KRARZES

EFEEER EFEEER

£ 5J8/FHD 255 2 BETHREENSE  BEEH1920 x 1080KE

FHD+ —EETRHBREENZE  BEEH2220x 10808%  B—KRE25/51080pE B

FVTPL BRBRIRMAFEENMBEE

rEE KRB REWE QA

ERARXR EREAARBHERAT  —KRHPBERINAGE > AEAQXANEEAL

BT BAET

0 BEEBHTHRE

EBEHER EBEHEL

BRMBHREER

BEBYBREEL  REBSFEARTBYBRELENNRE

m

ER

EAYERERLE  —HCECRAESETICEXMARKRHTBINERAE -
RABZEERR

SREREA

IGZO
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY

BERAR

IP Intellectual Property

JPY Japanese Yen

KRW Korean Won

LCD Liquid Crystal Display

Listing Rules The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange

LTPS Low Temperature Polysilicon, a technology for the manufacturing of TFT-LCD
LLC Limited liabilities company

Mainland China

Mainland China, for the purpose of this report, excludes Hong Kong and
Macau Special Administrative Regions of the PRC

MIPI Mobile Industry Processor Interface

Model Code Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
contained in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules

NTD New Taiwan dollars

OLED Organic Light Emitting Diode

Panda-FPD Nanjing CEC Panda Flat Panel Display Technology Co., Ltd.** » a company
established in the PRC with limited liability, is a subsidiary of Nanjing
Huadong Electronics Information & Technology Co., Ltd.**

Panda-LCD Nanjing CEC Panda LCD Technology Co., Ltd.**, a company incorporated in
the PRC with limited liability, is an associate of CEC

PMOLED Passive Matrix Organic Light Emitting Diode

POLED Plastic Organic Light Emitting Diode

PRC The People’s Republic of China, for the purpose of this report, excluded Hong
Kong and Macau Special Administration Regions

R&D Product design, development and engineering

S&D Selling and Distribution

SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance

SGD Singapore dollars

Singapore The Republic of Singapore

the Stock Exchange

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

TDDI Touch and Display Driver Integration

TFT Thin Film Transistor

UHD Ultra high definition is a display resolution standard of 3840 x 2160 pixels (8.3
megapixels; 4K)

UK United Kingdom

USA United States of America

USI-T Universal Samsung Interface for Television

US$/USD US dollars

**

for identification purpose only
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DEFINITIONS AND GLOSSARY
BRRAR
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AR RRER

Financial Calendar
Financial Year End
31 December

Announcement of Annual Results
27 March 2020

Share Listing

Listing Venue and Date

Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
8 April 2004

HKSE Stock Code
2878

Board Lot
2,000 shares

Trading Currency
HKD

Issued Shares
2,480,252,351 (as at 31 December 2019)

Principal Share Registrar and Transfer Agent
Tricor Services (Cayman Islands) Limited

2/F., Century Yard, Cricket Square

P.O. Box 902

Grand Cayman KY1-1103

Cayman lIslands

(with effect from 1 April 2020)

Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar
Tricor Investor Services Limited

Level 54, Hopewell Center

183 Queen’s Road East

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2980 1333

Fax: (852) 2810 8185

Website: www.tricoris.com

Independent Auditor
Ernst & Young

Solicitors
Reed Smith Richards Butler
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

Board Members
Executive Directors

Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lo Wai Ming

Non-executive Directors
Mr. Ma Yuchuan (Chairman)
Dr. Li Jun

Mr. Yu Jian

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Leung Heung Ying

Mr. Sheu Wei Fu

Mr. Yiu Tin Chong, Joseph

Authorized Representatives
Mr. Wang Wah Chi, Raymond
Ms. Poon Kim Hung, Shirley

Company Secretary & Qualified Accountant
Ms. Poon Kim Hung, Shirley FCCA, FCPA

Corporate Communications/Investor Relations
Ms. Carol Hui

Corporate Communications Manager

Tel: (852) 2207 1672

Email: communication@solomon-systech.com

Principal Office

6/F., No.3 Science Park East Avenue
Hong Kong Science Park

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

Tel: (852) 2207 1111

Fax: (852) 2267 0800

Website
www.solomon-systech.com
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CORPORATE AND SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION

AR RRER

This 2019 Annual Report (bilingual version in English and Chinese) has
been posted on the Company’s website at www.solomon-systech.com.

Shareholders who have chosen to receive the Company’s corporate
communications (including but not limited to annual reports,
summary financial reports (where applicable), interim reports,
summary interim reports (where applicable), notices of meeting,
listing documents, circulars and proxy forms) via the Company’s
website and for any reason have difficulty in gaining access to the
Annual Report posted on the Company’s website will promptly upon
request be sent by post the Annual Report in printed form free of
charge.

Shareholders may at any time change their choice of means of
receipt of the Company’s corporate communications.

Shareholders may request for printed copy of the Annual Report
or change their choice of means of receipt of the Corporate
Communications by sending reasonable notice in writing to the
Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services
Limited, at Level 54, Hopewell Center, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong
Kong or by sending an email to solomon2878-ecom@hk.tricorglobal.com.
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